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MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Good morning, ladies

4

and gentlemen, Members, members of the public.

5

hearing of the Pennsylvania House Health Committee.

6

would ask that you silence your cell phones.

7

is being recorded.

8
9

And I welcome you.

This is a
And I

This meeting

And before I have opening

remarks, I would ask that the Members here today introduce

10

themselves.

11

from Warren County, and I also represent part of Forest and

12

Crawford County.

13

I am State Representative Kathy Rapp, and I am

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Good morning.

I ’m

14

Representative Dan Frankel, the Minority Chair of the

15

Health Committee, and I am from Allegheny County, city of

16

Pittsburgh.

17

REPRESENTATIVE GAYDOS:

State Representative

18

Valerie Gaydos representing the 44th District, Allegheny

19

County.

20
21

REPRESENTATIVE Representative Dawn Keefer, 92nd
District, York and Cumberland Counties.
REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

22

Representative Clint

23

Owlett.

24

which is Tioga and parts of Bradford and Potter County.

25

I have the privilege of serving the 60th District,

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

Andrew Lewis representing

6
1

the 105th District in Dauphin County.

2
3

REPRESENTATIVE ROAE:

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

10

REPRESENTATIVE CEPHAS:

13
14
15

Morgan Cephas, I

represent the 192nd Legislative District from Philadelphia
County.

11
12

Paul Schemel, I

represent portions of Franklin County.

8
9

Stephanie Borowicz,

76th District, Clinton County and parts of Centre County.

6
7

Brad Roae, and I represent

parts of Crawford County and parts of Erie County.

4
5

Good morning.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Representative

REPRESENTATIVE ZIMMERMAN:

Representative

Zimmerman.

Zimmerman, 99th District, northeast Lancaster County.
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

We also have several

16

Members joining us virtually.

17

to introduce yourselves, Members of the Committee, at this

18

time who are joining us virtually.

19

unmute yourself.

20
21
22
23
24
25

Members, if you would like

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

Anyone?

You’d have to

Tim Bonner, Mercer and

Butler Counties.
REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:

Good morning, everybody.

Ben Sanchez, representing part of Montgomery County.
REPRESENTATIVE TWARDZIK:

Good morning.

Tim Twardzik representing 123rd, Schuylkill County.

This is

7
1
2

REPRESENTATIVE FIEDLER:

Good morning.

Representative Elizabeth Fiedler, Philadelphia.

3

REPRESENTATIVE LEE:

Good morning.

I ’m Summer

4

Lee.

5

Pennsylvania, the Mon Valley, and city of Pittsburgh.

I represent the 34th Legislative District in western

6

REPRESENTATIVE KRAJEWSKI:

Good morning.

This is

7

Representative Rick Krajewski, the 188th District in west

8

and southwest Philadelphia.

9
10

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:
virtually?

11

Anyone else joining us

Thank you, Members.
This morning, we are going to be looking at an

12

issue.

13

abortion, abortion clinics, abortion facilities, teen

14

pregnancy, anything that actually is related to abortion

15

and pro-life issues.

16

us a Deputy Secretary of the Department of Health, who has

17

oversight from the bureau or the Department of Health into

18

abortion facilities and abortion.

19

This Committee is responsible for oversight of

And this morning we are having with

We as Members of the General Assembly receive

20

yearly abortion statistics, and one of the concerns that we

21

will be addressing today is the fact that when we receive

22

the abortion statistics, we noticed that in the past years

23

there have been several minors, little girls who have

24

received an abortion, and the first category in the

25

reporting is the age of the person receiving the abortion.

8
1

And we noticed several 12 and under and then 13-year-olds,

2

14-, 15-, and 16-year-olds and 17.

3

So in the State of Pennsylvania in the criminal

4

offenses regarding sexual offenses, there is a definition

5

of a rape of a child.

6

of a child, a felony of the first degree, when that person

7

engages in sexual intercourse with a complainant who is

8

less than 13 years of age.

9

flag for us.

A person commits the offense of rape

So certainly this raises a red

The purpose of having the Department of

10

Health testify today is to request from then, which I had

11

done previously, by the way, in budget hearings when the

12

Appropriations Committee had budget hearings in the hall of

13

the House, I had asked several questions to Secretary Beam

14

regarding the statistics and did not receive an answer.
So we are going to be addressing this today,

15
16

trying to find out what procedures were followed.

17

one of the purposes of the hearing.

18

be hearing later on after the segment with the Secretary

19

from four physicians who will be testifying before us, the

20

gestational age and the development of the unborn child.

21

That is the purpose of the meeting today, as I have stated

22

before.

23

That is

And then we will also

Pennsylvania received nationwide -- I hate to use

24

the word recognition -- over the Gosnell case, and

25

certainly the last thing I want to see is for Pennsylvania

9
1

to see another Gosnell case.

2

take action and find answers as to how these cases are

3

followed up procedurally -- we are hoping certainly that

4

these cases are followed up by law enforcement and by

5

referrals to counseling.

6

find answers to what is the follow up on these cases.

7

If we as legislators do not

So that is our goal today, to

So I at this time will ask Representative Frankel

8

if he has any opening remarks before we go to the

9

Secretary.

10
11

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:
Chair.

12

Thank you, Madam

And I want to thank you for holding this hearing.
You know, over the years we've considered

13

repeatedly pieces of legislation that seek to limit access

14

to safe and legal abortions.

15

more than a decade, and I appreciate the opportunity to do

16

that.

17

include testifiers, so I appreciate the outreach.

18

This is the first hearing in

She didn’t need to hold the hearing or allow us to

In the spirit of pursuit of bipartisanship and

19

finding common ground, we specifically invited doctors who

20

are not only obstetricians and gynecologists but experts in

21

maternal-fetal medicine, both doctors at UPMC.

22

Emery is the Director of the Center of Innovative Fetal

23

Intervention and the Chair of the Steering Committee for

24

the North American Fetal Therapy Network.

25

Beck is an Assistant Professor in the Maternal-Fetal

Dr. Steve

And Dr. Stacy

10
1

Medicine Department at the University of Pittsburgh.

2

doctors are experts in fetal development.

3

you because they may need to leave the hearing to actually

4

see patients today.

5

these two experts who are joining us today from Allegheny

6

County who are seeing patients today and so may not be able

7

to be here again, for the whole hearing.

8
9

These

I ’ve got to warn

And I ’m just incredibly grateful for

You know, I certainly share the Chair’s concern
with respect to child sexual abuse and statistics here and

10

look forward to hearing from the Department of Health

11

regarding how they address these issues.

12

point out that while the Gosnell situation several years

13

ago was a horrific situation, abortion is one of the safest

14

medical procedures around.

15

and I think that we will find something out about that.

16

But I should also

It’s highly regulated as it is,

You know, abortion is a polarizing topic.

My

17

belief is that the common ground is science, evidence, and

18

ultimately the needs of patients, not what we believe our

19

needs are based on our political or religious viewpoints

20

but what they desire for their own lives.

21

will come out of this hearing with a deeper understanding

22

of these questions.

23
24
25

I ’m hopeful we

So thank you very much, Madam Chair, and I ’m
ready to proceed.
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Chairman

11
1

Frankel.

2
3

And at this time Deputy Secretary Klinepeter, are
you with us?

4
5

MS. KLINEPETER:

I am, Madam Chair.

Can you hear

me?

6

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Yes.

Yes, very well.

7

Thank you, Madam Secretary.

8

everything that's going on, we appreciate you joining us

9

virtually as well.

10

And because of COVID and

This is something new, you know, to House

11

Members, but this year the House rules gave us the

12

opportunity as Chairmen of Committees to swear in our

13

testifiers, so if you would be so kind as to raise your

14

right hand and I will ask the question, and then you will

15

be sworn in.

16
17

(Witness sworn.)

18
19

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Madam

20

Secretary.

21

us.

22

would kind of like to give us a summary and point out the

23

highlights specifically to the minors and the abortion

24

statistics, we would appreciate that.

25

And I see that you have prepared remarks for

And you don’t have to read the whole thing, but if you

MS. KLINEPETER:

And you may proceed.

Thank you, Chairwoman Rapp.

12
1

Good morning to you, Chairman Frankel, and to all Members

2

of the House Health Committee.

3

Klinepeter.

4

the Executive Deputy Secretary for the Pennsylvania

5

Department of Health.

6

morning.

7

minutes of high-level remarks, and then I ’m pleased to

8

answer your questions.

9

My name is Keara

I currently have the pleasure of serving as

It’s a pleasure to be with you this

I appreciate the opportunity to offer a few

So to commence, I wanted to highlight that there

10

are two primary regulatory and statutory authorities that

11

the Pennsylvania Department of Health has as it relates to

12

abortion facilities and abortion procedures.

13

that we are required to approve and regulate all abortion

14

facilities under our Quality Assurance Deputy.

15

function is very similar to the function that we play in

16

regulating licensing hospitals, nursing homes, home health,

17

and more.

18

The first is

This

The second function that we have is to report

19

data related to abortion procedures and statistics for the

20

public.

21

we play in reporting things like HIV statistics, our

22

vaccination rates, and the like.

23

oversight that the Department has of abortion facilities

24

and abortion procedures is fully aligned with the functions

25

that we play every day in other domains as well.

This is, again, very similar to the functions that

And so really the

13
1

Now, with respect to our first role as a

2

regulator, we have two primary regulatory requirements that

3

guide our work.

4

This act has been in place since the 1980s.

5

the Department of Health and the Department of State to

6

have regulatory oversight of abortion facilities and

7

providers in the Commonwealth.

8

Department of Health oversees the facilities, and the

9

Department of State oversees the providers.

10

The first is the Abortion Control Act.
It requires

It stipulates that the

The second regulatory requirement or statutory

11

requirement, excuse me, that oversees our work was the

12

Health Care Facilities Act.

13

through Act 122 in 2011.

14

providing surgical abortions to be licensed as ambulatory

15

surgical facilities.

16

This act was last updated

This requires facilities who were

Now, all abortion facilities are subject to the

17

Abortion Control Act, and some facilities, depending on the

18

type of services they offer such as surgical services, may

19

also be subject to the Health Care Facilities Act.

20

the former, the Abortion Control Act, that’s what requires

21

facilities to register with the Department.

It mandates

22

informed consent and reporting obligations.

The Health

23

Care Facilities Act is what requires registration or

24

licensure of facilities that perform surgical abortions as

25

either a Class A, Class B, or Class C depending on the type

So to

14
1

of anesthesia that they use.

2

There are currently 17 abortion facilities who

3

are approved to provide abortion procedures.

4

are classified as medical-only meaning that they only

5

provide medication-based abortions, and therefore, they are

6

only subject to the Abortion Control Act.

7

Class A facilities.

8

or local anesthesia or no anesthesia at all to perform a

9

surgical abortion, so those facilities are subject to both

Seven of them

There are four

These are facilities that use topical

10

the Abortion Control Act and the Health Care Facilities

11

Act.

12

these are facilities that can perform surgical abortions

13

using sedation or a type of dissociative drug.

14

facilities are subject to both the Abortion Control Act and

15

the Health Care Facilities Act.

16

And lastly, there are six Class B facilities, and

So those

Now, each of these 17 facilities receives two

17

surveys annually at a minimum.

18

annual survey.

19

are typical requirements that, as I mentioned, we use not

20

just for abortion facilities but for all ambulatory

21

surgical facilities, and we have similar requirements,

22

hospitals, nursing homes, and the like.

23

The first is a scheduled

The second is an unannounced survey.

These

Now, during the surveys, our surveyors do -

24

again, typical things that our surveyors do:

25

medical records, including the medical records of minors,

We review

15
1

to ensure that proper consent was obtained.

2

equipment and the facility to make sure that they are up to

3

life safety codes, so that’s everything from making sure

4

that the doorway is wide enough to the sprinkler systems

5

working and the like.

6

particularly true when there’s a complaint survey that

7

needs to be done to understand what’s happening in the

8

facility, why the complaint was lodged.

9

review policies and procedures at the facility.

We inspect the

We also interview staff.

This is

And lastly, we
An example

10

of a policy and procedure would be what a facility would do

11

if there’s a minor who comes in and there’s a question as

12

to whether or not the adult with the minor is actually a

13

parent or legal guardian.

14

have those policies and procedures, and the Department

15

reviews those regularly when we complete our surveys.

16

All facilities are required to

I ’m pleased to share that, despite COVID, as

17

Chairwoman Rapp mentioned, we were able to complete all 17

18

facilities’ two surveys this year, so even though we were

19

not conducting onsite surveys between March 31st and July

20

4th of 2020, we were able to complete all of those surveys.

21

So that is, you know, a summary of the quality

22

assurance role that the Department of Health plays with

23

respect to abortion facilities.

24

role, which really focuses on the data and ensuring that

25

the public has meaningful data regarding abortion

With respect to our second

16
1

facilities and procedures, we have a statutory obligation

2

to receive reports from facilities and compile that

3

information into reports for the public to review.

4

reports vary, but there are in total six of them that we

5

receive.

6

termination of pregnancy or an ITOP report.

7

information is required by statute to be included in the

8

Department’s annual report.

9

page.

10

Those

That includes a report of each individual
This

It can be found on the first

The second is a report of complications.

This

11

information is also available on the first page of our

12

annual report, as statute defines.

13

The third is the report of maternal deaths.

This

14

is a separate annual report that the Department issues.

15

currently have the 2018 report available.

16

informaticists are working on the 2019 report right now,

17

and that should be available soon.

18

We

Our

The quarterly facility reports, these reports are

19

available in the State Library for facilities who receive

20

State-appropriated funds for operation.

21

course not used to perform abortion procedures themselves

22

but to operate the facility overall.

23

Those funds are of

The fifth is the pathological examination of

24

results.

25

3214(c) of the Abortion Control Act, but these reports are

This is a report that is required by Section

17
1

actually extremely rare, and the Department has not

2

received one in a couple of years in fact.

3

required to receive them, though we are statutorily

4

required to not disclose them.

5

But we are

And lastly, there’s a Medical Care Availability

6

and Reduction of Error Act or MCARE.

By statute, these

7

MCARE reports are created when there’s an occurrence at a

8

facility where patient safety was at risk.

9

is confidential, and that’s defined by statute.

The information

So I hope that that’s a helpful overview of the

10
11

two primary roles that the Department of Health plays with

12

respect to abortion facilities and procedures.

13

Fundamentally, it’s our belief that once a woman makes the

14

decision to have an abortion, it’s our responsibility to

15

ensure that the facility where she receives her care is

16

safe and is providing high-quality care.

17

answer any questions.

18

for the opportunity.

Thank you again, Chairwoman Rapp,

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

19

I ’m happy to

Thank you, Madam

20

Secretary.

I have one question, and then I will allow the

21

Members to proceed with questions.

22

quarterly reports being at the State Library.

23

specific question that I asked acting Secretary Beam, and

24

in my questioning in the Appropriations hearing I stated

25

that the State Library has been closed, and the public has

But you mentioned the
That is a

18
1

not been able to obtain those quarterly reports.

2

And then specifically when you talk about the

3

onsite, no onsite, it is concerning to me when we see

4

through the COVID our restaurants and other facilities that

5

are regulated by the Health Department have had onsite

6

inspections, but I don’t know why the Department of Health

7

couldn’t do onsite inspections.

8

But specifically in regard to this hearing, we

9

requested what are the procedures, what are the follow-ups

10

that the Department of Health does when you see the minors

11

such as 12 and under?

12

follow up with law enforcement?

13

information about counseling to families and those children

14

that we see by the 2019 statistics that are cases obviously

15

of rape because in the crimes offenses for sexual offenses,

16

it is clearly stated that the age of 13, it is definitely

17

rape.

18

the categories of the minors in these abortion facilities?

19

What are your procedures of follow-up?

20

Do you follow up?

Do the facilities

Are they directed to give

So what is the Department’s follow-up in regard to

MS. KLINEPETER:

Sure, thank you.

So let me take

21

each of those and answer them directly for you.

22

regard to the State Library, as you know, the State Library

23

as a whole is not open at this time.

24

come in from certain Members for these reports.

25

know, these are sensitive reports, and so we did work to

So with

We did have requests
As you

19
1

identify a way to securely transfer those reports to the

2

Members who requested them.

3

is reopened, those reports will be available to the public,

4

and we look forward to that soon.

5

As soon as the State Library

With respect to onsite inspections, there was a

6

temporary period of four months where the Department of

7

Health did not conduct onsite routine registration and

8

licensure surveys.

9

there was a complaint.

We did conduct onsite inspections if
There was not a complaint that came

10

in regarding an abortion facility during that time, so we

11

did not complete any onsite surveys for those four months.

12

Despite not doing the onsite surveys for four months in

13

2020, we did complete all of our required two surveys per

14

year for each facility in the remaining time in which we

15

were conducting onsite surveys.

16

confidence, Madam Chair, that we did complete all of the

17

surveys in person and onsite for the abortion facilities in

18

Pennsylvania.

19

And so I can say with

With respect to the follow-up for the minors, so

20

within Pennsylvania, as you know, it is legal for a minor

21

to receive an abortion if they have appropriate consent.

22

That would be written consent from a parent or a legal

23

guardian.

24

that consent or are unable for any reason to provide that

25

consent, a minor may petition the Court to allow them to

If a parent or a legal guardian will not provide

20
1
2

receive an abortion.
In the instance that a minor does receive an

3

abortion, all providers in Pennsylvania are mandatory

4

reporters, so if a provider suspects any type of abuse,

5

they are required by law to report that to ChildLine.

6

Now, if a provider is working in an abortion

7

facility that is licensed under the Health Care Facilities

8

Act and the Department determines through the course of a

9

survey that there was not the proper reporting done, we

10

could and would cite a facility for not properly reporting

11

potential abuse to ChildLine.

12

found that, we would require the facility to develop a plan

13

of correction, and we would require them to do that

14

reporting at that time.

15

In that instance, if we

Statutorily, if the Department is required to do

16

the surveys, make sure that the policies and procedures are

17

in place, that includes counseling in advance of having the

18

procedure done.

19

procedure is done.

20

the Department.

21

enforcement options would really be under the jurisdiction

22

of the Department of State if a provider has done something

23

wrong such as not reporting or the Department of Human

24

Services if they determined that there was abuse or neglect

25

and a provider did not report it.

That does not include counseling after the
That’s not a statutory requirement of

And the remainder of, I think, the

21
1

The Department of Health strongly encourages

2

anyone who suspects abuse or neglect of a child to report

3

it to law enforcement, but under the statutes that we have

4

been given to effectuate, we do not have a specific

5

requirement to ensure that there is counseling done, for

6

example, afterwards.

7

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Madam

8

Secretary.

9

that goes to the abortion facilities that says if you are

And so you don’t have a handout or anything

10

performing an abortion -- and w e ’re not questioning or

11

condemning any of these cases, you know, of abortion.

12

simply asking if the Department -- surely you work with the

13

Department of State as well.

14

If you have a 12-year-old sitting in your facility, do you

15

follow up with law enforcement?

16

I ’m not going to belabor that question.

17

Representative Zimmerman follow up with a question.

18
19
20

I ’m

Do you even give a handout?

That was my question.

REPRESENTATIVE ZIMMERMAN:

But

But I will let

Thank you, Madam

Chair, and thank you, Madam Secretary, for your testimony.
So just to follow up a bit more on abortion

21

statistics, what is the Department’s role in crafting that

22

or distributing that kind of information?

23

actual role in that?

24
25

MS. KLINEPETER:
for the question.

What’s your

Sure, absolutely.

So thank you

The Department’s role is to receive

22
1

several pieces of information that I had mentioned before

2

that are statutorily required, and then we combine that

3

information by analyzing some of the statistics, you know,

4

crunching the numbers across the facilities and county

5

lines and the like to come up with summary information that

6

then is produced in two different annual reports, both the

7

annual abortion report and the maternal death report.

8
9

REPRESENTATIVE ZIMMERMAN:

Yes, thanks for that.

So the information in your quarterly report and the annual

10

report, where does that actually come from?

11

you acquire that?

12

MS. KLINEPETER:

Sure.

I mean, how do

So the quarterly report

13

is provided directly by the provider to the Department, and

14

then for the facilities that receive State funding, we

15

provide that through the State Library, so that is

16

facility-specific information.

17

The annual report similarly comes from statistics

18

about cases, ages, locations, et cetera from the

19

facilities.

20

available based on our surveys and the like is on our

21

website, and you can go onto I think it’s PAHealth.gov, and

22

w e ’d be happy to follow up with you with the specific

23

information that you can see both the results of surveys

24

and patient care information there.

25

deficiencies found during the survey, you can also find

Where the Department has information that is

And if there are any

23
1

there the plan of correction from the facility.

2

REPRESENTATIVE ZIMMERMAN:

Okay.

3

appreciate that.

4

where you’re required to do these reports?

5

correct?

6
7
8
9
10
11

Thank you.

So 3214(c) of the Abortion Act, is that

MS. KLINEPETER:

Is that

Yes, sir, to the best of my

knowledge.
REPRESENTATIVE ZIMMERMAN:
you, Madam Secretary.

Okay.

Thank you.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

Representative Zimmerman.
Representative Gaydos.

13

REPRESENTATIVE GAYDOS:

Thank you.

Thank you,

14

Madam Chair, and thank you, Secretary Klinepeter,

15

here today.

in our Commonwealth provide abortion services?

18

hospitals, clinics, et cetera.

20
21
22
23

for being

How many facilities in the State of Pennsylvania

17

19

And

Thank you, Madam Chair.

12

16

I

MS. KLINEPETER:

And that’s

There are 17 licensed abortion

facilities in the Commonwealth.
REPRESENTATIVE GAYDOS:

So are those listed in

the 2018 or 2019 report?
MS. KLINEPETER:

Let me check the report.

The

24

names of the facilities are available on our website.

25

don’t believe the actual names of the facilities are in the

I
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1

report, but I ’m happy to double-check that and follow up

2

with your office.

3

REPRESENTATIVE GAYDOS:

4

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

5

REPRESENTATIVE HERSHEY:

So thank you, Deputy

Secretary, for being here, and thank you, Chair.

8
9

Representative

Hershey?

6
7

Thank you.

So to clarify, the information on these quarterly
reports is self-reported by the abortion providers, but

10

only the facilities that receive public dollars have the

11

quarterly reports made publicly available, is that correct?

12

MS. KLINEPETER:

13

REPRESENTATIVE HERSHEY:

Yes, sir, that’s correct.
Okay.

So since not all

14

the information in the quarterly reports is publicly

15

available but all the abortions in Pennsylvania are

16

reported on the annual report, then the annual report

17

numbers, shouldn’t they be higher than the quarterly report

18

numbers?

19
20
21

MS. KLINEPETER:

Yes, sir, I believe that’s

correct.
REPRESENTATIVE HERSHEY:

Okay.

So it seems to be

22

then about 5,000 abortions take place in locations that do

23

not have publicly available quarterly abortion reports.

24

you know where these locations are?

25

MS. KLINEPETER:

I don’t have that readily

Do

25
1

available, sir, but our office would be happy to follow up

2

with yours.

3

REPRESENTATIVE HERSHEY:

Great.

And I look

4

forward to that information.

5

second trimester abortion reports on the quarterly reports

6

than there were in the annual report.

7

quarterly reports, there were over 2,400 second-trimester

8

abortions, but the annual report claims that there were

9

only just below 2,400.

And in 2014 there were more

According to the

Can you explain how that could

10

happen if all the abortions are reported in the annual

11

report?

12
13

MS. KLINEPETER:

Are you looking at table 2, sir,

on page 2 of the 2019 report?

14

REPRESENTATIVE HERSHEY:

15

looking at the quarterly reports.

16

MS. KLINEPETER:

Sure.

Yes, but I ’m also

I unfortunately don’t

17

have all of the quarterly reports in front of me.

18

have to have our office look into that.

19

don’t have those numbers in front of me.

20

up with you on that as well.

21

REPRESENTATIVE HERSHEY:

Okay.

I ’ll

I apologize.

I

And we can follow

And I was

22

referencing the 2014 annual report, not the 2019 one.

23

the same seems to be true for 2015 and 2016.

24

any reason why abortion facilities would report a second-

25

trimester abortion on their quarterly report and the

And

So is there
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1

Department of Health wouldn’t have record of that?

2

MS. KLINEPETER:

No.

I ’m not sure why that

3

discrepancy could be occurring, but I ’m happy to dig into

4

it with our team and personally follow up with you.

5

REPRESENTATIVE HERSHEY:

Okay.

Yes, I ’m just

6

curious why that discrepancy seems to be occurring.

7

does the Department have a process to follow up when these

8

numbers aren’t accurate?

Because it seems that these

9

numbers aren’t accurate.

And do you do anything to confirm

10

And

the information that you’re providing?

11

MS. KLINEPETER:

So with all of the data and

12

informatics that we collect and report, the Department does

13

have a robust quality assurance process for that data.

14

There are different mechanisms that we use to kind of

15

crosscheck the data.

16

that come in to calculate the number of abortions that are

17

completed in Pennsylvania and the gestational age at which

18

the abortion was completed.

19

think of a reason why the ITOP reports and the quarterly

20

reports would not be consistent, but I ’m happy to talk with

21

our informaticists about that and understand more deeply

22

why that could be occurring.

23

We predominantly use the ITOP reports

I can’t off the top of my head

REPRESENTATIVE HERSHEY:

24

Secretary.

25

here.

Okay.

Thank you, Deputy

And I look forward to receiving more clarity

Thank you, Chair.
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1
2

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:
Representative Hershey.

3
4

Thank you,

Representative Gaydos has a quick follow-up
question.

5

REPRESENTATIVE GAYDOS:

Yes, I just want to

6

comment that, I mean, this is kind of frustrating.

7

Member who’s sitting on this Committee, is very frustrating

8

to have a Deputy Secretary attending and, you know, this is

9

a hearing that presumably, you know, we expect the

As a

10

testifiers to be prepared for this.

11

know, these answers to these questions can’t be answered,

12

particularly, some of them they seem like they’re very

13

simple in these reports.

14

frustration that it’s very disappointing to see that some

15

simple questions can’t be answered and simple data.

16

just want to make that comment.

17
18

And to hear that, you

So I just want to express my

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

So I

Thank you,

Representative Gaydos.

19

Chairman Frankel has some questions.

20

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Thank you, Deputy

21

Secretary.

22

get back to us and follow up on some of these issues.

23

I wanted to get to this issue of child sexual abuse,

24

trafficking, and pregnancy and the related things.

25

you know, can you kind of walk us through what happens when

And I ’m sure that, hopefully, you’ll be able to
But

I mean,
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1

a 12-year-old case, you know, obviously of sexual abuse,

2

rape, what happens?

3

also happens when, you know, the issue of consent from a

4

parent when in some cases the parent may be the abuser as

5

well?

Does it go to ChildLine?

And what

So can you help walk us through some of that?

6

MS. KLINEPETER:

Sure, absolutely, Chairman.

So

7

providers have different workloads, and so I don’t mean to

8

overly generalize, but just to provide as detailed of an

9

answer as possible, so let’s assume that a young girl age

10

12 presents at an abortion facility in the Commonwealth

11

with someone who presumes to be a parent.

12

statutorily required to provide counseling to both the

13

minor and her parent or legal guardian at least 24 hours in

14

advance.

15

parent or legal guardian understand the procedure that

16

would be completed, depending if it’s a medication-assisted

17

abortion, it is a surgical abortion, what the procedure

18

entails physically, how the patient may feel afterwards,

19

and other, you know, key pieces of clinical information.

20

The facility is

That counseling ensures that the minor and the

The patient and her parent or legal guardian are

21

than asked to confirm the relationship between the two of

22

them.

23

documentation such as a driver’s license, a birth

24

certificate, a passport, something official that is

25

provided either by a State or Federal Government to show

The parent or legal guardian has to present
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1
2

that they have lineage between them.
If there is an instance where a provider cannot

3

unequivocally determine that there is an established

4

relationship between the child or the parent, they are

5

allowed to refuse to do the procedure.

6

the patient and the parent or legal guardian would have to

7

go to a court, and the court would have to determine either

8

that the parent or legal guardian is in fact the parent or

9

legal guardian or they would then have to provide -- the

In that instance,

10

patient would have to petition the court to receive a

11

letter stating that they may have the procedure done.

12

In an instance where a 12-year-old girl would

13

come in to an abortion facility and the provider is

14

concerned that the patient had been abused or raped, they

15

are required to report that to ChildLine.

16

would also have at a facility level policies and procedures

17

that they would need to follow.

18

define their own policies and procedures, so those can look

19

and feel a little bit different, but they would be required

20

to report that to ChildLine.

21

perpetrated a rape or, you know, any stepfather-type

22

figure, only the consent of the mother is required to

23

perform an abortion.

24

you know, I think that our duty as the Department is to

25

ensure that that proper consent is obtained prior to the

The provider

Each facility is able to

In instances where the father

And so in these tragic situations,

30
1

procedure.

2

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Thank you.

Let me

3

also ask you about the issue of safety generally that I

4

think is something that was a topic brought up earlier.

5

You know, in terms of do you keep statistics with respect

6

to complications from abortion procedures generally and

7

then maybe more specifically the safety of medication

8

abortion?

9

MS. KLINEPETER:

Sure.

Let me just find our

10

complication statistics.

11

thank you for that question.

12

report there are a summary of the complications from

13

abortions performed between January and December of 2019.

14

In total, there were 285 complications during the year of

15

2019.

16

the type of complication that the woman had, the

17

gestational age at which the complication occurred, and the

18

type of abortion procedure, termination procedure that was

19

conducted and the number of complications that resulted

20

from each.

21
22
23

I think it’s page 7, yes.

So

So on page 7 of our annual

Those complications are then further broken down by

I ’m so sorry, sir, I forget the second part of
your question.
DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

24

narrowly on medication abortions -

25

MS. KLINEPETER:

Specifically more

Oh, medication abortions --
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1
2
3

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

—

as well, in

addition to this.
MS. KLINEPETER:

—

yes.

Yes.

So in the table

4

9C on page 7 of our annual report, there were 172

5

complications as a result of medical abortions in 2019.

6

None of them were the result of an infection.

7

and fifty-five of them were a result of retained products

8

of conception.

9

tissue or something that remains in the woman’s body that

10
11

A hundred

That occurs when there is, you know, fetal

causes a complication.
There were 13 complications from medical

12

abortions due to bleeding, and then there were four other

13

complications.

14

those other complications were.

And I don’t have the information as to what
But in total it was 172.

15

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

16

of the 280-some complications overall, correct?

17

MS. KLINEPETER:

18

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

19

Yes, that’s correct.

MS. KLINEPETER:

21

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

23

Yes.

So that’s 280

complications out of, what, 31,000 abortions, correct?

20

22

And those are part

Correct, sir.
So how does that

record compared to other procedures?
MS. KLINEPETER:

Well, sir, it depends largely on

24

the population who’s having a different type of procedure

25

done and the like, but I would say generally that that is a
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1

very low rate of complication for a procedure to be done.

2

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Yes, the CDC, the

3

national statistics show that abortion is more than 99

4

percent safe without complications, and I think that our

5

statistics here seem to reflect that.

6

All right.

7

MS. KLINEPETER:

Thank you.

Oh, go ahead.

I was going to say to your

8

point, sir, there’s a really good report called the Safety

9

and Quality of Abortion Care in the United States, and it

10

is a little dated now.

11

conducted by premier institutions across the Nation.

12

read it in preparation for this hearing.

13

that may be helpful to you or other Members in

14

understanding the national landscape and then how safe

15

abortions are here in Pennsylvania.
DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

16
17

It’s from March 2018 but it was

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

19

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

MS. KLINEPETER:

25

Representative Benham.

Thank you, Chair, and

Forgive me, it’s a bit difficult

to hear.

23
24

Thank you, Deputy

thank you, Deputy Secretary, for joining us today.

21
22

And I think that

Secretary.

18

20

I

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Try this one.

Does this

one work?
MS. KLINEPETER:

That’s much better, thank you.
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2

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:
not be working.

3

Okay.

That one must just

Sorry about that.

Knowing the grave connections between child

4

sexual abuse trafficking and pregnancy, what more can we be

5

doing to address and prevent sexual assault and abuse and

6

rape-related pregnancy among all people but especially

7

children?

8

MS. KLINEPETER:

So this is a topic as, you know,

9

the entire Department of Health outside of necessarily our

10

quality assurance work, our statistical work, we take very

11

seriously, and we partner with a number of different

12

agencies, nonprofits, and communities to prevent rape and

13

to support rape victims.

14

I think one of the primary functions that the

15

Department plays is raising the awareness of the

16

significant trauma that women experience as a result of

17

rape, and then we seek to form partnerships and provide

18

funding to organizations that counsel women who have been

19

affected by this tragedy.

20

much the Department supports victims of rape and any

21

efforts that are being done to prevent it, particularly

22

child rape and child trafficking.

I can’t say strongly enough how

23

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

24

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

25

Representative.

Thank you.
Thank you,
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Representative Schemel.

2

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

Thank you, Madam Chair,

3

and thank you, Deputy Secretary.

4

regard to discrepancies that I ’ve seen between the

5

quarterly reports and the annual report, and specifically

6

in regard to the reporting of statistics on third-trimester

7

abortions, which are defined as 27 weeks or more.

8

quarterly reports, as we look through those quarterly

9

reports, I see a facility on Comly Road in Philadelphia

I have some questions in

In the

10

that in the April quarter of 2016 reported 66 third-

11

trimester abortions and then just three quarters later in

12

January reporting from the 2017 reported 94 third-trimester

13

abortions.
Now, third-trimester abortions, as you know,

14
15

under the Abortion Control Act, require a medical emergency

16

exception.

17

whether the medical emergency exception was met and how it

18

was met?

19

My first question is does the Department track

MS. KLINEPETER:

So thank you.

I will have to

20

check those numbers along with the others that we mentioned

21

before because in our annual report it does say that there

22

were zero third-trimester abortions performed.

23

what could happen -- this example is a helpful one -- is

24

there may have been a quarterly report that was self

25

reported by a facility that we saw staggering numbers like

Sometimes
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1

that as well and we went back and checked them before

2

publishing the annual report.

3

specific reference, and we will follow up with you on it.

4
5

But I appreciate this

Could you repeat your second question?

I ’m

sorry, sir.

6

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

Oh, my second question

7

was in third-trimester abortions, the Abortion Control Act

8

requires that a medical emergency be present in order to

9

perform a third-trimester abortion.

So in those third-

10

trimester abortions which are reported, is the Department

11

following up on what medical emergencies were in place or

12

were -

13

MS. KLINEPETER:

14

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

15

MS. KLINEPETER:

Yes.
—

indicated?

So in the report that providers

16

are required to provide to the Department in the instance

17

of an abortion that takes place 24 weeks gestational age or

18

later, they are required to tell us what medical emergency

19

was constituted.

20

but two physicians sign off on the abortion procedure.

21

there was an instance where we didn’t find the explanation

22

satisfactory, there were not two providers who signed off

23

on it, or anything else that seemed questionable, we would

24

absolutely follow up.

25

They are required to not just have one

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

Okay.

Does that

If
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1

information then -- is that reported anywhere in the annual

2

-- well, not in the quarterly reports, in the annual

3

reports of the follow-up and then the resolution of those?

4

MS. KLINEPETER:

I don’t believe that information

5

is available in the annual report, no, sir.

6

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

So if a facility

7

continually reports incorrect information or doesn’t follow

8

the guidelines, then how is the public or the legislature

9

supposed to be aware that the facility is not complying?

10

MS. KLINEPETER:

So that would come up in a

11

survey.

12

the unannounced survey.

13

medical records, and so if we were finding inconsistencies

14

between what the providers were telling us on those reports

15

and what was in the medical records, that would result in

16

either a citation due to a deficiency, and then that would

17

require that the provider complete a plan of correction.

18

Through that plan of correction, we would have to see that

19

they would either amend their existing policy or create a

20

better policy altogether, and then we would require them to

21

adhere to that policy.

22

ensure that they have improved, and if they had not

23

improved, then we would continue to cite them and go

24

through the cycle until they did improve.

25

So either the annual survey, which is announced or
During that time, we review

We would do a subsequent survey to

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

Okay.
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MS. KLINEPETER:

And those deficiencies and plans

of corrections are available on our website.

3

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

Okay, very good.

I do

4

look forward to hearing the explanation on the report

5

specifically from the 2016, 2017 because there is a

6

discrepancy.

7

in the quarterly reports that appear to be zero in the

8

annual report with no explanation.

9

been made in the past, those have obviously been explained.

10

It is 150 third-trimester abortions reported

When corrections have

And one last question in regard to judicial

11

bypass abortions.

12

bypass abortions so we know how many there have been?

Does the Department track judicial

13

MS. KLINEPETER:

14

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

15

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

16

No, we do not.
Okay, thank you.

Representative.

17

Representative Cephas.

18

REPRESENTATIVE CEPHAS:

Thank you, Chairwoman,

19

and good morning, Deputy Secretary.

20

questions.

21

Thank you,

I have a couple of

So my first question is in reference to accessing

22

abortion care.

23

facilities down to 17.

24

w e ’ve gone to 17 and the fact that a significant number of

25

Pennsylvania counties do not have access to an abortion

So since 1970, w e ’ve gone from 145
Can you explain why that is, why
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1

provider, leaving them in essentially medical and

2

healthcare deserts as it relates to this procedure?

3

you explain why the trend has gone down so much and so far?

4

MS. KLINEPETER:

Can

So I think that access to

5

abortion care and maternal care more broadly is a

6

fundamental right of all women in Pennsylvania.

7

respect to why the number of facilities have gone down and

8

why there are counties that don’t have an abortion facility

9

in them, the Department isn’t necessarily able, as you

With

10

know, to establish these facilities.

11

regulating them.

12

number of market forces, including, you know, where

13

demographics are, the increase in access to contraception

14

and the like that could have decreased the need for them in

15

a variety of different places.

16

W e ’re responsible for

But I think that there are probably a

Overall since the 1970s, as you mentioned, w e ’ve

17

actually seen a decrease nationally in the number of

18

abortions that are performed.

19

Pennsylvania, too.

20

the increased access to contraception and the practice of

21

safe sex across the Nation and in Pennsylvania.

22

That trend is true in

And one of the primary reasons cited is

REPRESENTATIVE CEPHAS:

Thank you.

Can you

23

articulate, is there a correlation between the lack of

24

abortion care in the county of residence and higher rates

25

of complications?
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MS. KLINEPETER:

I cannot draw that correlation.

2

I think that as w e ’ve discussed with Representative

3

Frankel, the overall number of complications is quite low

4

across the Commonwealth.

5

analysis to determine if women who had complications had to

6

travel for their care.

7

conclusion.

8
9

We would have to do further

But I cannot at this time draw that

REPRESENTATIVE CEPHAS:

Okay.

And my last

question is can you -- you mentioned it earlier in

10

reference to contraceptives.

11

increasing access to contraceptives would change the number

12

of abortions?

13

MS. KLINEPETER:

Can you talk about how

So what studies have shown is

14

that with the increase in access to contraceptives,

15

particularly long-term contraceptives such as IUDs, that

16

the number of abortions performed decreases.

17

know, abortions are often performed due to unintended

18

pregnancies that occur, and so with the increased access to

19

reliable contraceptives, whether it’s birth control such as

20

a pill or an IUD or condoms, we do see a decrease overall

21

in the number of abortions that are performed.

22

REPRESENTATIVE CEPHAS:

Thank you.

Sadly, you

Again, you

23

know, having access to this procedure is critical in the

24

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and, you know, I just kind of

25

want to get from your perspective what more can the General
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Assembly do to ensure that we don’t continue a downward

2

trend of these abortion facilities closing?

3

we do to ensure that we don’t go from 17 to about five?

4

MS. KLINEPETER:

What more can

I ’m trying to think of the

5

different levers that you all have at your disposal that

6

you could use to increase access in that way.

7

certainly funding is helpful to these facilities if not for

8

the actual abortion procedures but for helping to keep

9

those facilities open, but overall, that is very much the

I think

10

role of the legislature and not the Department, so I would

11

defer to all of you.

12
13
14
15

REPRESENTATIVE CEPHAS:

Thank you.

Thank you,

Chairwoman.
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

Representative Cephas.

16

Representative Borowicz.

17

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

Yes, I just wanted to

18

comment on Chairman Frankel and your statement on the

19

safety of abortions.

20

it’s, you know, not safe for the life of the baby in the

21

womb certainly.

22

I just want it on the record that

And then I wanted it on record of how many

23

abortions there were in Pennsylvania in 2020 and then how

24

many abortions there was from rape, incest, and the life of

25

the mother?
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MS. KLINEPETER:

Thank you.

We do not have the

2

2020 report completed yet, so I cannot share the number of

3

abortions that were completed in that year.

4

informaticists are still working through that information.

5
6

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

MS. KLINEPETER:

Yes.

So in 2019 there were a

total of 31,018 abortions performed in Pennsylvania.

9
10

Do you have

anything from years past, 2019, anything?

7
8

Okay.

Our

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

Now from rape, incest,

and the life of the mother?

11

MS. KLINEPETER:

We do not collect information -

12

it’s not statutorily required that we collect information

13

on the reason for the abortion.

14

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

15

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

16

Thank you.

Thank you,

Representative.

17
18

Okay.

Representative Klunk.

Sorry, Representative

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Yes, I just want to

Keefer.

19
20

follow up on Chairman Frankel’s questions that he asked

21

because I just can’t figure this out.

22

guardians -- I ’m following up on Chairman Frankel’s

23

questions.

24

that the counseling is provided, and you ask them to

25

confirm the relationship.

So minor and legal

The minor and legal guardian, I heard you say

And it says, you know, they have
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1

to provide identification to validate the relationship.

2

it’s not provided, the clinic may deny but they don’t have

3

to deny?

4

If

Is that accurate?
MS. KLINEPETER:

I believe what I said was that

5

if the provider has a question about the relationship

6

between the minor and the parent or legal guardian, that

7

would be cause to not perform the abortion.

8

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

9

MS. KLINEPETER:

10
11

Okay.

So if —

Because they wouldn’t have

proper consent.
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

If they have a question

12

because my concern is that, right, if you have a 12-year-

13

old coming in and they’re pregnant, it’s rape, correct?

14
15
16

MS. KLINEPETER:

That’s not within the Department

of Health’s jurisdiction to define or determine.
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

But aren’t you required

17

-- w e ’re required reporters, right, so schools, healthcare

18

providers have to report cases of abuse, correct?

19

MS. KLINEPETER:

20

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

21
22

That’s correct.
So the Department

wouldn’t say, I mean, this is what the law is?
MS. KLINEPETER:

The Department of Health doesn’t

23

have the jurisdiction to oversee mandatory reporting.

24

is overseen by the Department of Human Services.

25

the Department finds that providers are not obtaining

That

Now, if
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proper consent, we can and would cite them for that and

2

determine it to be a deficiency.

3

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Right, but my concern

4

here is just that you might have a 12-year-old who knows,

5

you know, being brought in by a parent who could have

6

possibly committed the offense, right, and they’re

7

intimidated, so it should just be an obligation.

8

shocked that that wouldn’t be a requirement that’s on

9

there, I mean, just knowing what some of our private

I ’m just

10

schools go through, you know, in their requirements of

11

required reporting.

12

documented abuse and that they’re not required, and that’s

13

not part of your requirement in that, so I was just making

14

sure I have that.

I mean, this is abuse.

So they may.

15

MS. KLINEPETER:

16

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

17
18

It’s

They’re not required -

No —
-- according to the

Department of Health.
MS. KLINEPETER:

-- the facility is required by

19

the Department of Health to obtain informed consent by the

20

patient and their parent or legal guardian.

21

true for an abortion, it is true for knee surgery, it is

22

true for having blood drawn.

23

question about whether or not that consent is being

24

provided by a parent or legal guardian, then they should

25

not pursue that procedure because the Department can and

So that is

And if the provider has a
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would cite them for improper consent.

2

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Okay.

So then we just

3

need to be more specific in the law of what we are

4

requiring.

5
6
7

Thank you.
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

Representative Keefer.
I ’m going to go to Representative Sanchez, who is

8

with us virtually.

9

mute your microphone and ask your question, please.

10
11
12

Representative Sanchez, if you want to

REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thank you, Madam Deputy Secretary, for being here today.
We talked a lot about the data today, and it

13

appears that the Department collects a robust amount of

14

data, and as to the providers’, you know, statutorily

15

mandated data of course.

16

comparable service to which the Department requires that

17

same level of reporting or oversight within the data?

18

MS. KLINEPETER:

To your knowledge is there any

The Department does not have the

19

same statutory obligations to receive the same information

20

for other procedures as we do for abortions.

21

REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:

And how about for any

22

other types of health effects like, say, if there was a

23

death by firearms?

24

speak with like deaths by suicide, deaths by homicide?

25

Do you slice and dice the data so to

MS. KLINEPETER:

We do, especially gun violence

45
1

is a great one to lift up.

2

publicly available now that demonstrates the different

3

pieces of data that we collect related to gun violence.

4

It’s the same for HIV, for environmental health, et cetera.

5
6

REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:

And those dashboards are

available on the website, the Department of Health website?

7

MS. KLINEPETER:

8

is specifically.

9

reports.

10

We have a dashboard that’s

Yes, sir, the gun violence one

The other two that I referenced are in

REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:

And with regard to the

11

reporting for abortion services and the providers, have

12

there been any studies of the costs of tracking that data

13

either, you know, within the Department?

14

keep this level of data, you need some kind of headcount,

15

some extra headcount and people solely dedicated to this,

16

not to mention at the providers I assume they have folks

17

that are gathering this data and not only, you know, the

18

practitioners that would be reporting the data but I

19

presume because of the nature of everything and in response

20

to reporting the data from the statutes, I assume that

21

requires some kind of lead overview probably on both ends,

22

legal review at the provider, legal review at the

23

Department of Health.

24

all the regulations this just keeps adding up to provide

25

the data, so if you -- do you have any idea of what that

I presume, to

So, I mean, it just seems like with
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costs?

2

MS. KLINEPETER:

3

REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:

I do not, sir, no.
Would you say it’s a

4

considerable amount of time likely in collecting and

5

reporting this data?

6

MS. KLINEPETER:

So to the best of my knowledge

7

the Department of Health does not have an individual who is

8

dedicated full-time to the abortion report.

9

of informaticists who annually collect and crunch this data

We have a team

10

like we do for a variety of different types of data we

11

collect, but we don’t have an individual staff member or

12

members who are responsible for doing this.

13

certainly a team effort, though, that we put time and

14

energy into.

15

person or, you know, three people or something like that,

16

it would be difficult for me to estimate for you how much

17

that would cost.

18

It is

But because we don’t have, you know, a single

REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:

Would you estimate that

19

they spend the majority of their time on the abortion

20

reporting statistics as opposed to the other ones w e ’ve

21

discussed?

22
23
24
25

MS. KLINEPETER:

I do not believe it would be a

majority of their time, no, sir.
REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:

Thank you.

And with

regard to the actual quality of the data -- and obviously,
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you know, there’s good data and, for instance, data that

2

protects minors from victimization, you know, certainly

3

good data, no question there.

4

other data that is either not necessary in the tracking

5

that, you know, could save time and efficiency from the

6

provision of it, general statistics that, you know, we

7

could look at that just don’t either demonstrate trends

8

that are worthwhile or, you know, hedge on privacy issues

9

or other items like that that could be removed from the

10

In your opinion is there any

law?

11

MS. KLINEPETER:

Truthfully, sir, I think that

12

the data received, each set is unique and it has its own

13

purpose, so I know that from the Department’s perspective

14

we use all of the data that we collect, and so it certainly

15

is up to all of you if, you know, you find it useful and if

16

you would like to add or subtract from a lawmaking

17

perspective, but from the Department’s perspective, we find

18

all of the statutorily required data helpful and

19

nonduplicative.

20
21

REPRESENTATIVE SANCHEZ:
much.

MS. KLINEPETER:

23

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

25

Thank you very

That concludes my questions.

22

24

Okay.

Thank you, sir.
Thank you,

Representative.
At this time I believe Representative Bonner,
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you’re joining us virtually.

2

Do you have questions, sir?

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

Yes.

Thank you, Madam

3

Chair, and thank you, Madam Secretary, for appearing here

4

today.

5
6
7

Do you believe your department has any duty to
report minor abortion procedures to ChildLine?
MS. KLINEPETER:

The Department of Health doesn’t

8

have a statutory requirement to, on our own, report abuse

9

to ChildLine.

We do have a statutory requirement that if

10

we identify a provider has not appropriately reported abuse

11

or neglect to ChildLine, that we would issue a citation to

12

that facility and require them to complete a plan of

13

correction, and we would ensure that they report through

14

that mechanism.

15

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

So is your department

16

following up to make certain that all such facilities

17

actually do file a report with ChildLine?

18

MS. KLINEPETER:

19

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

20

Absolutely, sir.
All right.

So you’re a

backup guarantor that these reports are actually being met?

21

MS. KLINEPETER:

22

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

That’s correct.
You mentioned that your

23

department performs spot checks on facilities and

24

providers, is that correct?

25

MS. KLINEPETER:

We complete two annual surveys,
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1

one of which is unannounced, sir, that’s correct.

2
3

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:
year for each facility?

4

MS. KLINEPETER:

5

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

6

Yes, sir.

MS. KLINEPETER:

8

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

10

And if you find that a

facility is not in compliance, do you issue a citation?

7

9

And does that occur every

Correct, sir.
And what are the

consequences of violating and not complying with a
citation?

11

MS. KLINEPETER:

It depends on what the citation

12

is for.

13

is important, but something like a sprinkler system not

14

working, and so that would not necessarily be a monetary

15

penalty of any kind, nor would it result in the closure of

16

a facility but in the instance of an egregious act that

17

could result in monetary policy or something more severe.

18

We can give citations for something as -- well, it

So in any instance where we find a citation that

19

we issue, we require the facility to complete a plan of

20

correction.

21

reviewed by the Department, we then conduct an additional

22

survey to ensure that the plan of correction has been

23

implemented.

24

deficiencies, then the provider is back in compliance with

25

our regulation, and all that information is on our website.

Once that plan of correction is submitted and

If that survey comes back without any other
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REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

Have you issued any

2

citations for failure to report abortions for minors to

3

ChildLine?

4

MS. KLINEPETER:

I do not know that.

I know that

5

we have issued one citation in the last three years for

6

failure to provide proper consent in the abortion of a

7

minor, but I do not know of an instance where we issued a

8

citation for failure to properly report to ChildLine.

9
10

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

And how long have you

served in your position?

11

MS. KLINEPETER:

Ten weeks.

12

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

You have not gone back

13

then, I assume, over the past years to look to see whether

14

any citations have been issued to providers for failure to

15

report a child abortion to ChildLine?

16

MS. KLINEPETER:

The team, in preparing for this

17

hearing, did lift up with me a number of concerning

18

citations that we have issued over the last five years, and

19

none of them were for this specific instance.

20

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

I ’m sorry, that was over

21

the last 10 years, Madam Secretary?

22

MS. KLINEPETER:

23

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

24
25

thank you.

The last five years, sir.
The last five years,

Has a license ever been revoked for a provider?
MS. KLINEPETER:

Not for an abortion facility,
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no.

D

2

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

Do you believe you have

3

the authority to revoke a license for any particular

4

violations?

5

MS. KLINEPETER:

6

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

Yes.
And I assume that you

7

would believe that failure to report to ChildLine,

8

particularly after warnings have been given, would be a

9

basis for the revocation of a license?

10

MS. KLINEPETER:

I would have to consult with

11

legal to give you a definitive answer on that, sir.

12

believe that if a facility repeatedly was out of compliance

13

with something as serious as ChildLine, that that would

14

result in significant action on behalf of the Department,

15

but I would have to consult with legal as to whether that

16

would result specifically in the revoking of the license.

17

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

I do

Do you think that your

18

department has the authority to report a minor abortion to

19

ChildLine?

20

MS. KLINEPETER:

The Department of Health

21

surveyors are not mandated reporters, so I do not believe

22

that our surveyors are required to do that either under the

23

auspices of mandatory reporting, nor the statutes under

24

which the Department of Health operates.

25

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

Knowing, though, that you
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have the discretion to report such procedures to ChildLine?

2

MS. KLINEPETER:

3

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

4

Yes.
Do you know whether your

department has ever made such a report ChildLine?

5

MS. KLINEPETER:

6

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

I do not know that, sir.
Do you think that should

7

be a mandate on your department to minimally report the

8

name of the facility that has reported an abortion of a

9

minor, obviously without providing the very personal

10

information, so at least ChildLine is aware that a minor

11

abortion has occurred at a facility that would allow them

12

to conduct an investigation?

13

MS. KLINEPETER:

Sir, I would defer to my

14

colleagues in the legislature as to what the role of the

15

Department is.

16

role that we play with regard to abortions, and given

17

everything that I ’ve shared with you today about our role,

18

the information we have access to, I hope that that would

19

be helpful to you in making a determination of whether we

20

should be mandated reporters.

21

I think the Department has an important

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

But you’re not aware of

22

any time your department has reported such a procedure to

23

ChildLine?

24
25

MS. KLINEPETER:
sir.

I ’m not personally aware, no,
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2

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:
Secretary.

Thank you, Madam

I appreciate your time and your testimony.

3

MS. KLINEPETER:

4

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

5

Thank you.
Thank you,

Representative Bonner.

6

At this time, I ’ll go to Chairman Frankel.

7

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

8

Thank you, Madam

Chair.

9

I just want to be clear.

You know, providers are

10

required to report this to ChildLine.

11

fact.

12

reporting child abuse, and they also have counselors on

13

staff to be able to deal with a traumatized child.

14

mean, I just want to be clear about that.

I mean, that is a

And the fact is they are very diligent about

So, I

I also want to go to follow up a little bit on

15
16

Representative Cephas.

17

information about this, but one of the things that clearly

18

-- and Representative Cephas has been very focused on this

19

issue of maternal mortality and kind of like the reversal

20

that w e ’ve had in terms of increasing mortality among

21

women, particularly pregnant women, is do you see any

22

potential correlation between the astounding reduction in

23

access to safe abortions, potentially impacting maternal

24

mortality?

25

become so limited in many cases, you know, going back to

And I don’t know if you have

I mean, do we see more women because access has
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the issue of self-abortions and things like that?

2

I don’t there’s any information about that.

3

MS. KLINEPETER:

Sure.

I mean,

Thank you,

4

Representative.

5

to have Director Toth follow up with your office.

6

you take a look at the maternal death report from our vital

7

statistics team, the last table is a table that shows the

8

maternal deaths by the mother’s residence.

9

few maternal deaths as a result of abortion procedures in

So if you take a look at -- and I ’m happy
But if

There were very

10

the years 2018, 2017, and 2016.

11

deaths, in 2017 there were 12 deaths, and in 2016 there

12

were 16 deaths.

13

In 2018 there were 18

And so when you look across the counties in which

14

those deaths occurred, there isn’t it to me -- first, it’s

15

such a small sample size that I would struggle to draw a

16

correlation from such a small N, but there does not to me

17

seem to be a strong correlation between the location and

18

the result of a death.

19

in 2018 there were four deaths, in 2017 there were two, and

20

in 2016 there were tragically three, and so arguably there

21

is access to both abortion facilities and, you know, good

22

primary care in the county of Philadelphia, so I think it

23

warrants further discussion and analysis.

24
25

For example, in Philadelphia County

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:
non-abortion-related maternal mortality?

Compared to other
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MS. KLINEPETER:

2

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

3

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

4

Yes.
All right.

Thank you.

Does that

conclude your -

5

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Yes.

6

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

questions,

7

Representative Frankel?

Thank you, sir.

8

Representative Owlett.

9

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

10
11

—

Thank you, Madam Chair.

And thank you, Deputy Secretary, for being here today.
Just real quick before I -- I have a number of

12

questions, but we seem to have a lot of dashboards for

13

information out there, which is very helpful for us as a

14

legislature, policymakers, as we look to draft meaningful

15

legislation that helps all of our constituents.

16

appreciate that.

17

version that goes to a library that’s locked.

18

Department support an effort to be more transparent with

19

these reports, as we have been with a lot of other

20

information?

21

I really

However, this information is in a printed

MS. KLINEPETER:

Would the

So we follow what we are

22

statutorily required to do with regard to the report, so if

23

you think that a dashboard would be more helpful to the

24

public and the legislators,

25

would encourage that to be constituted in statute, but our

I would defer to you, sir, and
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office would be happy to discuss that further with you.

2

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

Okay.

Well, if we work

3

at that, it’s always help to know where the Department is

4

going to stand on that because if we get a letter of

5

opposition or we don’t want to do this, it’s hard for us to

6

then move the policy, so that’s why it’s helpful for me to

7

know right now if the Department would support something

8

like that as we look to draft policy from hearings.

9

can get back with us on that, I think it’s important for

10

So you

us.

11

I want to talk a little bit about real quick

12

another quick question hopefully.

13

still missing parts of the 2019 report?

14

MS. KLINEPETER:

You said there w e ’re

The 2020 annual report is still

15

being created, and then the 2019 maternal death report is

16

still being completed.

17

process to collect all of those death reports, which is why

18

it takes us a little longer to get out the maternal death

19

report.

20

That is a very time-intensive

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

Okay.

I was just curious

21

about that.

22

Chairman’s questions on complications.

23

are these tracked here in the Commonwealth?

24
25

I want to talk a little bit more on the

MS. KLINEPETER:

Specifically, how

So complications are tracked by

-- let me pull up the name of the report, sorry -- the
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MCARE reports that we receive, as well as the reports of

2

complication.

3

the provider that performed the abortion, but whenever a

4

provider determines that there is a complication as a

5

result of an abortion procedure, they’re required to

6

complete a report of complication and submit it to the

7

Department.

8

completes the abortion, the woman has some type of

9

complication and goes to her primary care provider or

So whenever a provider -- and often it isn’t

So in this instance let’s say provider A

10

urgent care or something like that, it would be that second

11

physician most of the time who would then be responsible

12

for completing the report of complication and submitting it

13

to the Department.

14

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

Well, that answered my

15

next question.

16

self-reporting for patients to the Department of Health?

17

I appreciate that.

MS. KLINEPETER:

So is there a way for

Yes, so anybody can submit a

18

complaint to the Department through our quality assurance

19

line, so if a patient was dissatisfied with the care that

20

they received, they could submit a complaint through our

21

online complaint portal.

22

identify themselves, they could submit it anonymously, and

23

then we would investigate it.

24
25

And if they didn’t want to

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

Okay.

Are there any

consequences for a physician that wouldn’t report any
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complications?

2

MS. KLINEPETER:

Yes.

So that is a requirement

3

that the Department of State under their license would take

4

action against.

5

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

I ’d like to follow up on

6

some of the complications that are occurring that I read in

7

the report, which is very helpful for me.

8

were 61 complications due to abortions -- I ’m sorry, let me

9

rephrase that.

So in 2010 there

In 2010 there were nine complications for

10

6,600 medication abortions or chemical abortions.

11

there’s 172 complications from 13,800 chemical abortions.

12

Statistically, this is skyrocketing.

13

the two could be linked?
MS. KLINEPETER:

14

In 2019

Do you believe that

You know, sir, I ’m not a

15

clinician, so I would be cautious in answering that.

16

think Dr. Denise Johnson, who’s our acting Physician

17

General, would be better equipped to properly answer your

18

question.
REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

19

Okay.

Well, we can

20

follow up with that.

21

weeks of gestation, chemical abortions drop way off.

22

this risk generally or greatly increase later in the

23

pregnancy when it comes to a medical or a chemical

24

abortion?

25

I

I see on the report that after 10

MS. KLINEPETER:

Does

I ’m sorry, sir, again, as a non-
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clinician, I don’t want to give you bad information, but I

2

would be happy to accompany Dr. Johnson in following up

3

with you on that question.

4

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

Okay, that would be great

5

because in the report there were 41 medical or chemical

6

abortions on the 21- to 23-week period.

7

One of my last questions here, do medical or

8

chemical abortions require a face-to-face appointment?

9

MS. KLINEPETER:

10

face-to-face appointment,

11

allow telemedicine abortions.

At this time they do require a
I believe.

12

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

13

MS. KLINEPETER:

I don’t believe we

Okay.

I would have to double-check

14

that.

15

legislation or policy that the Department was interested

16

in, but I don’t believe that that is allowed at this time.

I believe that that was a piece of, I know,

17

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

18

just how curious on how that has happened.

19

MS. KLINEPETER:

Okay.

And during COVID,

Yes, I believe that the FDA has

20

primary jurisdiction over that, so, forgive me, COVID is

21

such a whirl, but I just want to double-check that because

22

I can’t remember where the FDA landed on that.

23

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

Okay.

Well, I appreciate

24

you being here and the information that you provided.

25

very helpful for us and the public, and thank you for

It’s
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taking the time to be here.

2
3

And thank you, Madam Chair.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

Representative.

4

Representative Lewis?

5

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

Thank you, Madam Chair,

6

and thank you, Madam Deputy Secretary, for being with us

7

and testifying today.

8

Committee.

9

I am working to gain a deeper understanding of these

I am a new incoming Member of this

It’s my first term on the Health Committee, and

10

issues.

11

the induced abortions performed in Pennsylvania for 2019.

12

And these abortions are categorized by the type of

13

procedure.

14

different types of procedures mean.

15

were over 15,000 -- if I ’m saying this correctly -- suction

16

curettage abortions performed in 2019 and about 29 sharp

17

curettage abortions.

18

procedures are and what the difference is between them?

19

And table 5 talks about and gives us a report on

And I am trying to understand what the
For example, there

Can you help me understand what those

MS. KLINEPETER:

Sure.

So welcome to the

20

Committee, sir, on behalf of the Department.

21

forward to working with you closely.

22

We look

Again, I will emphasize I am not a clinician, but

23

I can give you my layperson interpretation and then would

24

be delighted to have Dr. Johnson, who is a clinically

25

trained OB/GYN, provide additional detail for you if this
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isn’t helpful.

2

So my understanding of the difference is the

3

suction curettage uses a machine that gently pulls air out

4

of the woman’s uterus and eventually pulls either the fetus

5

or the fetal tissue from the uterus, as opposed to the

6

sharp curettage, which actually instead of sucking it out,

7

cuts it out.

8
9
10

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:
explanation.

Thank you for that

And then there were three intrauterine

installation procedures.

11

Okay.

MS. KLINEPETER:

Can you explain that procedure?
I believe that that is when

12

saline is used to flush the uterus or another chemical like

13

that, and that results in the fetus not connecting to the

14

uterine wall, and that results in the termination of the

15

pregnancy.

16

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

There were eight

17

hysterotomy or hysterectomy procedures done as abortions.

18

Is the unborn baby removed in the uterus during this

19

procedure?

20

MALE SPEAKER:

21

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

22
23

It’s frozen.
I think we have a

technological difficulty here.
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

24

are frozen on our screen.

25

and then reenter the meeting, please?

Madam Secretary, you

Could we request that you leave
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1
2

Did you hear all of the Representative’s
questioning?

3
4

MS. KLINEPETER:
difficulty.

5
6

I apologize for the technical

No, I did not hear the entire question.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Okay.

Representative

Lewis, would you like to repeat your last question, sir?

7

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

Sure.

I only have two

8

more, Madam Chair.

There were eight hysterotomy or

9

hysterectomy procedures done as abortions.

And my question

10

is is the unborn baby removed in the uterus during these

11

procedures?

12
13

MS. KLINEPETER:
question, sir.

18

Okay.

Madam Chair, can I

ask a question of the Chair?
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

16
17

We would have to consult with Dr. Johnson.

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

14
15

I don’t know the answer to that

Yes, Representative

Lewis.
REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

Have we requested or can

19

we request Dr. Johnson to also testify to provide clarity

20

on some of these issues?

21

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

I think it was

22

requested that Dr. Johnson join us today because of her

23

expertise, but that is certainly the discretion of the

24

Department in who appears before the Committee.

25

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

Understood.

And, Madam
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Deputy Secretary, you are certainly doing a good job,

2

especially being 10 weeks in testifying today.

3

think that the Department would do well to help us and the

4

public and all of Pennsylvania by having the true subject

5

matter experts here as well.

6

answers, but I think the record should

7

attempted to have Dr. Johnson here, and I think it would

8

serve the public well to have that testimony as well.

9

I just

So thank you for providing
reflect that w e ’ve

My last question, there were three procedures,

10

abortion procedures done in Pennsylvania in 2019 classified

11

as "other."

12

type of procedures would have been?

13

MS. KLINEPETER:

Do you have any insight in what these other

Sure.

So today is Dr. Johnson’s

14

11th day on the job, and so that’s why she isn’t appearing

15

today.

16

of weeks to get up to speed and, you know, simple things

17

like get her badge, but I know that she would be pleased to

18

appear before you just as soon as she’s had a little bit

19

more time to get acquainted with the Department and our

20

work.

21

with each of you.

22
23
24
25

We thought it prudent to give her at least a couple

And I know that she’s looking forward to working

With respect to the "other" category, I do not
have insight into what those other procedure types are.
REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

Okay.

My request would be

if you could get that information and provide it to my
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office, it would be beneficial to the Committee.

2

MS. KLINEPETER:

3

REPRESENTATIVE LEWIS:

Absolutely.
Okay.

4

Secretary, thank you for your answers.

5

Chair.

6
7
8
9
10

My pleasure.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Madam Deputy
Thank you, Madam

Thank you,

Representative Lewis.
And actually, Madam Secretary, if you could
provide that to the entire Committee,

I would appreciate

that as well, your answer to the "other."

11

MS. KLINEPETER:

My pleasure.

12

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you.

And

13

certainly I ’m sure maybe Dr. Johnson could help us out with

14

that as well.

15

Representative Klunk.

16

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

17

I want to do some follow-up on a couple different

Thank you, Madam Chair.

18

things that were brought up in the hearing today and a

19

question first about telemedicine.

20

in this pandemic right now, a lot of patients have chosen

21

telemedicine as an option to receive care.

22

are abortions occurring now via any telemedicine methods?

23

MS. KLINEPETER:

You know, w e ’re living

So, question,

As I stated previously,

I need

24

to check what the FDA’s most recent requirements are.

25

believe that they require the patient to be at the office,

I
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2

but I do need to confirm that.
REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

Okay.

Because, you know,

3

w e ’re hearing that certain abortion providers are

4

highlighting the fact that they can perform, you know, some

5

sort of a telemedicine abortion and abortion services via

6

telemedicine, so additional information on that would be

7

certainly most appreciative.

8

forward, that might be something that should be, you know,

9

on these reports, and maybe that’s something that we can

And as we, you know, move

10

work on, you know, as a Committee is, as we move into this

11

telemedicine realm, you know, what is going on in

12

telemedicine when it involves abortion, what types of

13

conversations are being had over the internet and via

14

telemedicine?

15

in a doctor’s office?

16

concerns that certain conversations should be had in

17

person, certain conversations should be, you know, had in

18

front of a doctor.

19

where, you know, the connection has been lost, some

20

information hasn’t quite translated, so just some concerns

21

on that particular front.

22

Are these conversations being had in person
Because I do have some serious

I ’ve had some telemedicine visits

I want to circle back on the issue when it comes

23

to the reduced access.

24

seen a lot of the consolidation of healthcare.

25

w e ’ve got all of these healthcare conglomerates that are

You know, in Pennsylvania w e ’ve
You know,
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1

servicing Pennsylvania.

2

moving in that direction.

3

believe that because of those market forces, because of

4

those independent business decisions that these healthcare

5

providers are making, do you believe that that could be the

6

reason why w e ’re seeing the consolidation among these

7

facilities and really their decision to locate those

8

facilities to where more of their clients might physically

9

be located within the State?

10

MS. KLINEPETER:

The market forces seem to be
So my question to you is do you

Well, certainly I think you’ve

11

hit on an important trend that we see happening across

12

Pennsylvania.

13

Executive Deputy was as the Director of Rural Health

14

Innovation on the Pennsylvania Rural Health Model, and so,

15

you know, many of the hospitals that we worked within the

16

model, you know, are independent and proudly so and are

17

really resistant to that consolidation.

18

One of the roles I served in prior to

I think it’s difficult to remain an independent

19

provider in the competitive healthcare market and landscape

20

that we see in Pennsylvania.

21

competitive healthcare ecosystem both on the payer and the

22

provider side, and so I think to some extent, you know,

23

there has to be a concerted effort for providers to remain

24

independent and to not sort of consolidate due to financial

25

reasons.

Pennsylvania has a uniquely
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REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

Okay.

Thank you for that.

2

And just one last comment.

3

three-month-old at home, I ’ve got two daughters, and I look

4

back and think back to myself as a 12-year-old.

5

daughter is only three, but I can, you know, see her as a

6

12-year-old here very quickly, time flies, and I think

7

about those 12-year-olds that we are seeing on these

8

reports, and they are numbers on paper but they are little

9

girls.

Look, I ’m a mom.

They are sixth graders.

I have a new

My

And I go back to my sixth

10

grade experience, and I can only imagine what these little

11

girls are going through.

12

families aren’t there for them, if their moms and dads and

13

their families aren’t there for them, we need to be there

14

for them.

15

And as government, if their

At the end of the day, I do believe that there

16

needs to be a presumption of abuse when it comes to those

17

12-year-olds.

18

Department should have a duty, whether it’s the Department

19

of Health, whether it’s DHS, government needs to make sure

20

that we are protecting these children.

21

I do believe that we have a duty and the

And I do believe that we as a Committee and a

22

legislature need to take a good hard look at this because

23

if our laws are not protecting those children properly and

24

not giving you the tools and those providers the proper

25

tools to protect those children, we are failing them.

And
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at the end of the day, those children deserve a voice

2

because they are truly voiceless.

3

I think back to being a 12-year-old.

I might

4

have had a little bit more of a voice than most.

5

that’s why I ’m here today.

6

friends at that point wouldn’t have had a voice.

7

w e ’re dealing with human trafficking and so many of these

8

children right now, you know, coming across our border

9

illegally and, you know, entering our society and just

Maybe

But I know that some of my
And when

10

through illegal means, they should not be trafficked, they

11

should not be abused, they should not be used for sex.

12

need to be making sure that we are protecting them in any

13

way that we can.

14

them as a Committee, as a society, as a department, as

15

government.

16

standing up for them.

17

is going on in their life to protect them.

18

We need to be working together to protect

They need a voice.

They need somebody

They need somebody questioning what

So I really look forward to having that

19

discussion as a Committee, as a legislature, and working

20

with the Department on that because we cannot fail those

21

little girls.

22
23

We

Thank you.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

Representative Klunk, very well said.

24

I believe our last Member other than the Chairman

25

and myself will be Representative Roae unless I have missed
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1

somebody.

2
3

Representative?
REPRESENTATIVE ROAE:

Chairwoman.

4

Thank you, Madam

And thank you for your testimony today.

I was looking at some of the old abortion

5

reports, and, you know, these, you know, summary pages or

6

whatever you want to call them on these reports, they state

7

how many abortions were performed in the last year, you

8

know, what, you know, age groups the women were and what

9

counties they were from, you know, information like that.

10

And from year to year to year these basically look the same

11

except one thing that’s a little bit different is on the

12

very bottom -- this is a 2013 report -- it showed there

13

were 22 hospitals and 18 regular abortion clinics, but when

14

you look at the 2019 report, that sentence isn’t on here.

15

So I was wondering, are there zero hospitals now doing

16

abortions?

17

abortion clinics, but are we down to zero hospitals?

18

Because looking at all reports, in 2010 there were 65

19

hospitals doing abortions.

20

hospitals, by 2014, 18 hospitals.

21

hospitals now as of 2019?

22

MS. KLINEPETER:

I mean, I think you testified there are 17

By 2013 there were only 22
So are we down to zero

So my understanding is that

23

hospitals had been approved at one time, but now that is a

24

separate license that they would have to obtain.

25

would have to go back and review the 2013 report to look at

So I
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1

those specifics.

2

this testimony to find that detail for you, but I believe

3

that they are licensed now if they are doing the surgical

4

abortions as the ambulatory surgical facilities.

5

me double-check that and get back to you, sir.

6

I did not review the 2013 report before

REPRESENTATIVE ROAE:

But let

Yes, where it is on the

7

summary, the second to the last paragraph on the very first

8

page in 2013 talks about the complications from abortions,

9

and then the very next sentence it says during 2013

10

calendar year, 22 hospitals and 18 nonhospital facilities

11

performed abortions in Pennsylvania.

12

report the very last paragraph is about the 285 reports of

13

complications, but then the sentence regarding how many

14

hospitals, it’s just not on here.

15

interesting to know how many hospitals there are.

16

Within the 2019

So, yes, that would be

So if those aren’t on the report, are those

17

included in the numbers in the reports of how many

18

abortions there are every year?

19

MS. KLINEPETER:

20

REPRESENTATIVE ROAE:

Yes.
Okay.

And then my second

21

question is -- this is a tough topic to talk about all

22

around, but in the report, how are the numbers tracked for

23

babies that are born alive during an abortion?

24

like back during the Gosnell investigation,

25

something like seven babies were thought to have been

Because

I think it was
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killed after they were born.

2

all over the country where babies are born alive.

3

Sometimes they’re killed after they’re born.

4

they let the babies live.

5

Department of Health handle that as far as the numbers?

6

like if a baby is accidentally born alive during an

7

abortion, would that count as an abortion or would that not

8

count as an abortion?

9

MS. KLINEPETER:

There’s all kinds of reports

Sometimes

But how does Pennsylvania
So

To the best of my knowledge,

10

sir, that has not occurred in Pennsylvania in 2019 or 2020.

11

Whether that would count as an abortion, sorry, that is a

12

tough topic to talk about.

13

as a procedure that was completed, but I don’t know how we

14

would count that in our report.

15

I suppose that it would count

REPRESENTATIVE ROAE:

And maybe you could follow

16

up with us and we could get more information.

17

you know, specifically, if the baby is accidentally born

18

alive and it’s allowed to live, you know, is that treated

19

differently than if the baby is born alive and then killed?

20

Now, that’s illegal to kill a baby after it’s born, but

21

that does happen.

22

you can find all over the world where babies are born alive

23

and they’re killed after they’re born.

And then,

A simple search of, you know, articles,

24

And then another follow-up question, you know, if

25

that does happen, would that be under the "other" category,
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you know, the different types of -- you know, should there

2

be a category on the reports for babies that are born alive

3

and then killed?

4

MS. KLINEPETER:

Respectfully,

I don’t believe

5

that there should be because, to your point, that would be

6

a criminal act, and so I think that at that point if we

7

determine through a survey that that happened, we would

8

refer it to the proper authorities.

9

have a conversation about how we should be reporting that

We could certainly

10

if it were to occur in Pennsylvania in our report, but I

11

think at that point law enforcement would need to be

12

involved.

13

REPRESENTATIVE ROAE:

Okay.

Well, thank you.

I

14

do appreciate.

15

stuff like that because like, you know, one minute earlier

16

it would have not been illegal to kill the baby, but a

17

minute later it’s illegal to kill the baby.

18

you know, want to make sure that the reports, as horrific

19

as that is, should reflect when that happens.

20

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

I just have trouble even talking about

And I just,

Thank you.

Thank you,

21

Representative.

22

like to say to the Members, our physicians panel is up

23

next, and one of our physicians has to leave at 11:15, so

24

if you could be brief, I would appreciate it.

25

Representative Borowicz.

I have two more Members.

I just would
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2

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

I ’ll be quick.

Thank

you, Chairwoman Rapp.

3

Deputy Secretary, when the Department of Health

4

stopped elective surgery during the COVID shutdowns, why

5

were elective abortions allowed to continue?

6
7

MS. KLINEPETER:

is an essential procedure to be completed for them.

8
9

Abortions and all maternal care

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:
maternal care?

10

MS. KLINEPETER:

11

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

12

Thank you,

Our next Member -- and again, sir, if you could
be brief -- Representative Krajewski.
REPRESENTATIVE KRAJEWSKI:

15
16

Yes.

Representative.

13
14

So abortions qualify as

Yes.

Thank you, Madam

Chair, and thank you, Keara, for your testimony so far.

17

My question is regarding something that’s been

18

raised by Members already, a bit about -- obviously, you

19

know, there’s concerns about young people who have had to

20

receive abortions, and I understand that, you know, it is a

21

very unfortunate situation that many young people are in

22

that situation of having to seek an abortion.

23

be curious about your opinion and your role as Deputy

24

Secretary.

25

do as legislators to provide support or care or what is

I would just

What do you think is the best thing that we can
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necessary for these young people who find themselves in

2

need of seeking an abortion?

3

MS. KLINEPETER:

So, generally, the Department,

4

you know, is supportive of expanding access to

5

contraception in order to prevent situations like this from

6

occurring, but I think it is of course up to all of you as

7

to what your role is.

8

provide access to counseling for children, we can support

9

families, and we can raise strong young girls through our

I think anything that we can do to

10

education system who are willing to speak up for themselves

11

and create the channels and outlets for them to do so.

12

think that all of those are necessary things.

13

I

But overall, I mean, I think it’s our role as the

14

Department to ensure that there’s safe access to care and

15

that that care is high quality, and so anything that all of

16

you can do to partner with us on that I think would

17

certainly be within, you know, our scope and

18

responsibilities as they currently stand.

19

REPRESENTATIVE KRAJEWSKI:

Excellent.

20

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

21

Thank you.

Representative.

22

Representative Frankel.

23

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Thank you.

And

24

hopefully, you know, go back to the Chair to conclude this

25

portion today, but I want to clarify a couple of things.
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One, infanticide is not abortion, and that is not what

2

abortion providers in this State do or anywhere else.

3

had an awful situation several years ago with Gosnell who

4

had lost his license and was committing infanticide, so I

5

just don’t want to confuse this.

6

that takes place with our abortion providers, which are

7

safe, follow medicine and science in terms of the way they

8

perform their procedures.

9

We

It just is not something

The other thing I want to clarify because I think

10

there might have been some confusion and I don’t want to

11

leave the impression with folks, and you can confirm this.

12

There were not 18 deaths from abortion in 2018 or any year

13

for that matter that I ’m aware of, and I think that the

14

impression was left here that that was the case.

15

to give you an opportunity to correct that, Deputy

16

Secretary.

17

MS. KLINEPETER:

Sure.

Sorry, sir.

So I want

When my

18

internet went down, I seem to have accidentally closed out

19

the report.

20

Let me pull it back up in just a moment.

You are correct, sir, that those were total

21

deaths for mothers, whether that was because of something

22

like an ectopic pregnancy or the like.

23

due to abortion.

24
25

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:
Secretary.

That was not deaths

Thank you, Madam
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I just want to make certain, the other issue to

2

me is, you know, consolidation of healthcare facilities is

3

not really the reason that w e ’ve had a reduction in access

4

and the number of facilities that perform abortions.

5

mean, there has been a national strategy to basically shut

6

down facilities that perform safe and legal abortions

7

that’s been highly successful, and Pennsylvania has been no

8

exception to that, so that’s, I think, more of a reason

9

that we have limited access today that w e ’re seeing all

I

10

across the country is a kind of strategy that has been to

11

try and shut down facilities for any number of reasons, so

12

I just wanted to also put that on the record.

13

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

14

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman

Frankel.

15

Madam Secretary, I do appreciate you being here

16

with us today.

17

have some remarks.

18

and under.

19

females under 12 was a table that was kept by the

20

Department of Health and readily available.

21

previously provided to the Attorney General’s Office.

22

intent is to show that the prior Attorney Generals tracked

23

this information.

24

by the Department now shows in my opinion an intention to

25

ignore criminal behavior.

One last question that I have and then I ’ll
And this is in regards to the girls 12

Historically, information on abortion of

And it was
The

To see that this information is not kept

Are you aware the statistics
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were previously provided by the Department, the Bureau of

2

Health Statistics and Research with respect to induced

3

abortions performed in Pennsylvania to females 12 and

4

under?

5

they currently continuously sent to the Attorney General’s

6

Office?

7

Are they currently kept by the Department?

MS. KLINEPETER:

And are

They are continually kept by the

8

Department.

9

send them to the Attorney General, but I ’m happy to double

I am not aware of a statutory requirement to

10

check that with legal and follow up with you.

11

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

I believe, Secretary,

12

that it was a request specifically from the former Attorney

13

General, but from what I ’m hearing from you, there has been

14

no current request from the current Attorney General for

15

what we would consider crimes.

16

is Child Abuse Prevention Month, I just wanted to bring

17

that up that, unfortunately, our current Attorney General

18

is not seeking this information.

19

And considering that April

I want to thank you today.

And I do want to say,

20

as Chairman of the Health Committee -- and I ’m also

21

Chairman of the Pro-Life Caucus, Madam Secretary, which I ’m

22

sure that you are aware of.

23

reasons also that abortions have gone down -- and I ’m

24

pleased to say that they are going down -- but we have

25

another system in Pennsylvania and other providers, the

And I daresay that one of the
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alternative care for women and pro-life groups and women’s

2

care centers -- I have one in my county -- and many of

3

these facilities have stepped forward to provide services

4

and care and items that, you know, young girls and women

5

when they find themselves in these situations, and it’s not

6

a good situation for many, but it certainly can turn out to

7

be a blessing.

8

pro-life community has certainly stepped up.

9

seen those numbers go down because people in our

But I think those facilities there and the
And w e ’ve

10

communities have stepped up to help these women in need

11

throughout their pregnancy and after birth.

12

But that is one of the reasons that I will give

13

myself as to why -- and hopefully w e ’ve seen abortions go

14

down in our States even though this year it was 31,000-some

15

unborn children, which is higher than the COVID deaths.

16

And not to downplay that at all, but I ’m happy to see the

17

numbers go down.

18

specifically about this population.

19

We still have concerns.

I do

But, Madam Secretary, I want to thank you for

20

being willing to be before us today, and hopefully at some

21

point in time Dr. Johnson will be willing to come and

22

testify before the Committee.

23

So I want to thank the Members for being here,

24

our technical people.

Thank you for bearing with us, Madam

25

Secretary, with the little technical glitch.

And I want to

79
1

thank everyone for their participation in the hearing

2

today.

So thank you very much.

3

MS. KLINEPETER:

4

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, m a ’am.
This part of the

5

hearing is then concluded, and we will move on at this time

6

to the four physicians.

7

FEMALE SPEAKER:

8

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

9

Five.
Five?

And because of

time constraints, Dr. Stacy Beck, who is with us, will be

10

our first presenter.

11

Emery, Dr. Joseph Castelli, Dr. Eric Hussar -- I ’m sorry if

12

I pronounced your name wrong -- and Dr. Monique Ruberu.

13

I ’m sorry if I ’ve mispronounced your name.

14

ladies and gentlemen, we thank you for being here to

15

present to us today.

16

We also have with us Dr. Stephen

But certainly,

And, Dr. Beck, if you want to proceed, I know

17

your time is constrained, so I would just ask you to

18

proceed with your testimony.

19

being here.

20

DR. BECK:

Hi.

And thank you very much for

Thank you very much, Madam

21

Secretary, and for the other Members,

for inviting me here

22

today as a subject matter expert.

23

Professor at the University of Pittsburgh Medical Center in

24

the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, and I ’m also a

25

maternal-fetal medicine physician who practices at the

So I am an assistant
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University of Pittsburgh Medical Center.

2

Also just so it’s stated for the record, I am

3

also one of the Chairpersons for the Pennsylvania State

4

Maternal Mortality Committee, so if anybody has any

5

specific questions about that, I ’m happy to help field any

6

of those questions as well.

7

I apologize.

When I was invited, I was under the

8

assumption that I was going to be asked questions, so I

9

don’t have a truly formal testimony.

I am here as a

10

subject matter expert on questions about fetal development,

11

fetal neuron development,

12

fetal perceptions of pain.

I mean, suffice it to say that just kind of my

13

medical expert response to some of the comments that were

14

made, again, access to abortion care is absolutely a right

15

for all women.

16

imperative right that women should have.

17

It is a maternal care and maternal health

In regards to the questions about the 2018

18

maternal deaths related to abortions, again, we are still

19

in the process of completing our review of the 2018

20

maternal deaths.

21

of Pennsylvania, so again, we are probably about 70 percent

22

through with those, so, again, can’t give you final full

23

statistics, but I can tell you from the cases that we have

24

reviewed, very little to none are related to abortion care.

25

There were over 110 deaths in the State

With that being said, if you look at data from
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other States that have had more longstanding Maternal

2

Mortality Review Committees, there is absolutely direct

3

correlation to decreasing access to contraception and

4

abortion care and rising maternal deaths and maternal

5

morbidity, which is a much larger problem in States where

6

access to abortion has been significantly limited.

7

So I really just wanted to be available if

8

anybody had any specific questions, again, with my

9

expertise being on fetal development.

10

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Representative

11

Frankel, I believe, is Dr. Beck your constituent?

12

have questions?

13

minutes.

14

Did you

She’s only here for questioning for a few

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Sure, sure, and

15

thank you for being here, Dr. Beck, and for your leadership

16

particularly on the issues of maternal mortality.

17

that you chair the Commission.

18

practice?

19

DR. BECK:

I know

Can you describe your

Yes, absolutely.

So I am in a large

20

group, maternal-fetal medicine practice, academic practice,

21

and so we both provide routine prenatal care to high-risk

22

pregnancies, and by definition high risk being either that

23

the mother is entering the pregnancy with some underlying

24

health condition which makes her pregnancy more at risk for

25

adverse outcomes, or a healthy mother who is pregnant with

82
1

a fetus who may have more complications at the time of

2

delivery.

3

are also consultants for a lot of western Pennsylvania in

4

helping other obstetrician/gynecologists improve access to

5

care and care for their pregnant patients.

6

So not only do we provide routine care, but we

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Okay.

And can you

7

discuss the stability and robustness of fetal development

8

research and what the criteria might be that would merit

9

new research to supersede previous research?

10

DR. BECK:

Yes.

I mean, I think that we are

11

constantly trying to expand the field on the research of

12

fetal development.

13

ethical limitations to being able to do direct research on

14

fetuses, and so a lot of our knowledge now comes from

15

animal models, which does have significant limitations or,

16

you know, improving technology in fetal MRI, fetal

17

ultrasound where we are extrapolating information from

18

those imaging studies on the development of the fetus.

19

However, there is obviously a lot of

And so I guess to more directly answer your

20

question, like many things in obstetrics, there is a large

21

dearth of good, high-quality, evidence-based research on

22

fetal development.

23

something that continues to be dealt with, but again, there

24

are many national and State limitations on what can be

25

studied directly on a fetus.

It is an expanding field.

It’s
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DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

All right.

And I

2

think it’s important for us to understand what patient-

3

centered care is and how important is that to your

4

practice?

5

DR. BECK:

So patient-centered care is basically

6

taking the traditional paternalistic concept of counseling

7

patients in a very directed, scripted manner, whereas

8

clinicians and physicians, we are basically driving our

9

patients towards a specific set of decisions with our

10

advice and our counseling.

11

turned that around and really put the patient and their

12

families and their advocates at the center of decision

13

making, and we are providing them information about the

14

information or data that we know about the complications or

15

consequences that they have, all the options that are

16

available for them on the table, answer any questions for

17

them about the risks and the benefits of each of those

18

options, and trying to help them make the decision but

19

really leaving the patient as the primary decision-maker in

20

what ultimately is the outcome of which choice they make.

21

Patient-centered care has

I, personally, if you’re asking my opinion, I

22

feel that patient-centered care is extremely important in

23

our practice.

24

Center we strive to make patient-centered care kind of the

25

forefront of what we are providing to patients.

At the University of Pittsburgh Medical
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DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

And finally, what

2

range of options do parents need to navigate based on fetal

3

development?

4

DR. BECK:

I want to make sure I ’m understanding

5

your question because it’s a little bit vague.

6

specifically asking what range of options are presented to

7

patients if they’re considering an abortion?

8
9

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

That would be one,

yes, or adverse diagnosis.

10
11

Are you

DR. BECK:

Diagnosis of what in particular?

Again, I just want to clarify before I answer the question.

12

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

13

DR. BECK:

Fetal abnormality.

So diagnosis, obviously,

14

traditionally, is done with an ultrasound.

15

standard in any routine healthy pregnancy it is typically

16

recommended that there are at least two ultrasounds done in

17

pregnancy.

18

what’s called a dating ultrasound, which has very limited

19

ability to pick up any sort of fetal development or organ

20

abnormalities.

21

the gestational age of the fetus.

22

trimester is often the most accurate time an ultrasound to

23

help confirm what gestational age a woman is.

24

not mandatory.

25

menstrual periods, there are many practices that don’t

I will say

Usually in early first trimester there is

It is primarily emphasized more to confirm
Early in the first

And that is

For women who have very clear and certain
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routinely do that early ultrasound.

2

It is standardly recommended by the American

3

College of Obstetrics and Gynecology that women have an

4

anatomy ultrasound or what’s called an anatomic survey, and

5

that is traditionally done between 18 and 22 weeks

6

depending on the obstetric practice where, you know, most

7

women think of it as the ultrasound where they’re going to

8

find out the sex of their baby but more importantly from a

9

medical standpoint we are looking at all of the anatomy to

10

the best of our ability and trying to determine if there

11

are any structural or anatomical defects.

12
13
14

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Thank you.

Anybody

else?
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

15

Representative.

16

in your profession and as a physician, would you describe

17

yourself as an abortion provider?

18
19

I have a couple follow-up questions.

DR. BECK:

So

Abortion is something that falls into

the scope of my practice as a maternal-fetal medicine, yes.

20

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

21

DR. BECK:

Okay.

I don’t solely define myself as an

22

abortion provider.

23

advocate, as a maternal care expert who takes care of high-

24

risk pregnancies, and part of that scope of my practice is

25

counseling on options for continuation of pregnancy versus

I define myself as a women’s health
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termination of pregnancy.

2

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

So if a 12-, 13-, 14-

3

year-old walked into your office and obviously is pregnant

4

-- and we heard from the Secretary prior that you’re all

5

mandated reporters -- can you tell me as a provider what

6

steps you would take when you have a minor in your office

7

who is pregnant and maybe accompanied by an adult, what

8

steps do you take as far as reporting?

9

DR. BECK:

So I just want to clarify and state

10

for the record first that as a maternal-fetal medicine

11

doctor, it is extremely rare to see somebody under the age

12

of 18 to be honest in my practice unless they have a

13

significant health complication.

14

very subjective question about something that isn’t truly

15

realistic in my practice.

16

year-old who needs to see a high-risk maternal-fetal

17

medicine doctor.

So you’re asking me a

It is rare to have a 12- or 13-

18

So I will counsel you generically on how I would

19

talk to any patient who comes to see me, and I always talk

20

about routine prenatal care, how to have a healthy

21

pregnancy.

22

a patient if this is a desired pregnancy, if it is an

23

unplanned pregnancy, and if their answer to those questions

24

guide me to believe that they -- you know, even if it’s an

25

unplanned pregnancy, if it’s desired, then my care is

It is always standard in my questioning to ask
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solely focused on optimizing the health of the mother and

2

the pregnancy.

3

If the woman expresses a concern or belief that

4

this is an unplanned and undesired pregnancy, then in my

5

practice I start talking about the entire scope of options

6

for that woman that are within her reproductive rights.

7

But I can’t particularly comment on 12- and 13-year-old

8

girls because that is not something that is routinely seen

9

in my practice early on in pregnancy.

If they are seeing

10

me, they are further along in pregnancy and have some form

11

of a complication.

12

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Doctor.

13

believe Representative Cephas -- I know you’re time-

14

constrained, but I believe Representative Cephas has a

15

question.

16

REPRESENTATIVE CEPHAS:

I

Thank you so much,

17

Chairwoman, and thank you for your testimony today and your

18

work with the issue around maternal mortality.

19

So some of the questions we asked with the

20

previous testifier was directly related to that issue.

21

I know you mentioned that with the report being relatively

22

new, a lot of conclusions and correlations can’t be made

23

thus far.

24

deeper into other States and the correlation between

25

maternal mortality rates and the decrease in access of both

And

But I ’d love to see if you can just dig a little
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contraceptives and abortion care.

2

As I stated previously and with the previous

3

conversation, w e ’ve gone from 145 providers down to 17,

4

and, you know, to understand that other States have made

5

the correlation, can you just dig a little deeper as to why

6

w e ’re seeing those trends and what we can do as a General

7

Assembly as it relates to increasing access to reverse the

8

trends of maternal mortality here in Pennsylvania?

9

DR. BECK:

Yes, I will try my best to answer your

10

question.

11

detailed State reports right front of me to directly answer

12

a question, but being relatively quite familiar with the

13

reports, if you look at States that have the most

14

restrictive and conservative abortion laws -- and I use

15

Texas, for example, has pretty strict laws, and they’ve

16

also been tracking the maternal deaths for much longer than

17

we have in Pennsylvania -- there are epidemiologic studies

18

and statistical analyses that have been done.

19

a statistician expert.

20

State has decreased funding to, you know, private abortion

21

facilities and made more restrictive rules around transfer

22

laws between abortion clinics and supporting hospitals, but

23

as the access to abortion care goes down, the maternal

24

mortality rates rise.

25

Again, I don’t have those specific, you know,

And I am not

I will say that up front.

As the

Obviously, again, not having that data in front

89
1

of me, maternal mortality is a very complicated statistic

2

that has many facets contributing to it, but it is very

3

blatantly easy to see if you could pull up those graphs

4

that there is a direct rise in maternal mortality as you

5

decrease access to abortion clinics, freestanding abortion

6

clinics and Planned Parenthood, which Planned Parenthood

7

also primarily, statistically speaking, offers more

8

contraceptive care than abortion care by far.

9

Why that is, again, I can only extrapolate from

10

looking at our data.

11

to not be able to give you an exact statistic without the

12

numbers in front of me -- the records on women and when

13

maternal mortalities or reviewing deaths, there is not a

14

small percentage -- meaning more than a small percentage of

15

these deaths were pregnancies that were occurring and when

16

it was clearly stated in the records that they didn’t

17

desire to keep the pregnancy, not that that is what led to

18

their complication, but many of these women enter the

19

pregnancy with very poorly controlled chronic health

20

conditions, and then to have limited access to abortion

21

care, which for some women who enter the pregnancy with

22

very poorly controlled heart disease, very poorly

23

controlled hypertension, pregnancy itself poses a much

24

greater risk of complications to those women than a very

25

safe abortion, which has a very low rate of complications.

Again, when you look at -- I ’m going
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And so there are definitely data from States such

2

as Texas, Colorado, Utah, again, where they have the most

3

published data on their outcomes that because of limited

4

access to abortion, there is definitely at least some

5

association to women not being able to express their

6

reproductive rights and have access to an abortion, and so

7

most were forced or coerced to continue a pregnancy that

8

ultimately ended up leading to them having complications.

9

REPRESENTATIVE CEPHAS:

I thank you for your

10

remarks and your work.

11

study that showed our maternal mortality rate has increased

12

by 21 percent between the years of 2013 and 2018.

13

we are really going to truly tackle this issue, we have to

14

ensure that we aren’t limiting options as pregnant

15

individuals go through this time period in their life.

16

I appreciate your remarks and your work.

Again, we just recently saw the

17

DR. BECK:

18

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

19

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you,

Representative.

20

Dr. Beck, do you have time for a couple more

21

questions?

22

Representative Frankel.

I think one question and one closing from

23

Representative Schemel.

24

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

25

And if

Thank you, Dr. Beck.

You expressed that you had expertise in regard to neural

So
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pathways and neurological development,

2

so I know that just from anecdotally watching reports of

3

things that you can see that, you know, in fetal

4

development you can see responses to stimuli, which I

5

assume is a neurological development or an indication of

6

that.

7

we had a description of those procedures from an earlier

8

testifier -- is there fetal pain that is felt or sensation

9

on the part of the child or the unborn child or the fetus

10
11

fetal development,

So with third-trimester abortions -- you know, and

as the abortion is performed in your opinion?
DR. BECK:

I ’m going to answer a question in two

12

ways because, number one, I am not a provider who has

13

expertise in third-trimester abortions due to the

14

limitations of where I practice, so I cannot comment on -

15

I can comment from my general knowledge as an

16

obstetrician/gynecologist that a large percentage of third-

17

trimester abortions are actually inductions, which are

18

performed similarly to inducing labor in any woman in the

19

third trimester.

20

However, again, acknowledging that’s not my

21

expertise to go back to your question about fetal pain, I

22

want to first respond to a comment that you made about the

23

fetus, you know, being able to respond to stimuli.

24

neurons in the fetus develop before the brain matter of the

25

fetus that responds to those neural pathways develop, so

So the
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very early on in pregnancy probably between like 12 and 15

2

weeks you will see more robust neuron development, and so

3

the types of nerves that responded to pain are present.

4

And much earlier on in pregnancy towards, you know, the

5

early second trimester they can have responses that are

6

reflexes.

7

nucleus of the nerve, hence, why you can tap on somebody’s

8

knee and make their knee jerk but they don’t have a pain

9

response.

10

That reflex only occurs within the nerve and the

So those are the same nerve pathways.
The final end connection of those nerve pathways

11

first have to be communicated through a part of the brain

12

called the thalamus.

13

processing that next step in the neural pathways.

14

neura of the thalamus isn’t kind of what most people would

15

consider formed or permanently formed until at least 22 to

16

24 weeks.

17

The thalamus is then responsible for
And the

Beyond the thalamus, you know, in order to -

18

pain is a psychologic construct.

19

development of the most robust part of the brain, the

20

cortex, in order for somebody to process the neurologic

21

stimuli.

22

base, what’s called the subcortical layer of the cortex,

23

isn’t even fully developed until arguably 26 to 28 weeks,

24

and so that is the third trimester.

25

It requires the

The pathway from the thalamus to even just the

And so, yes, is it possible that a fetus in the
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third trimester can respond to and has the anatomic

2

structures to respond to pain?

3

based on that neurodevelopment that occurs prior to 26 to

4

28 weeks.

Yes.

5

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

6

DR. BECK:

It is highly unlikely

Thank you.

And I just want to state for the

7

record also just in justifying my -- one of my

8

undergraduate -- my entry into medicine is that I am a

9

neurobiologist.

I graduated with honors in neurobiology,

10

and much of my research in college had to do with animal

11

models of fetal pain.

12

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

13

believe no one else has a question.
REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

14
15

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

17

Borowicz, go ahead quickly, please.

19

I

I do unless w e ’re in a

hurry.

16

18

Thank you, Doctor.

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:
kind of last minute.

Representative

No, you’re fine.

I was

So do you deliver babies?

20

DR. BECK:

21

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

Yes, I do.
Okay.

So what’s the

22

earliest you’ve delivered a baby?

Because I see 21, 22

23

weeks that, you know, they have lived and made it.

24

there’s a picture of a 14-week baby that was miscarried,

25

perfect little fingers and life there.

I mean,

And so, you know --
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DR. BECK:

2

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

Yes.
—

21 weeks are making

3

it, and you’re telling me that they do not feel pain?

4

Sorry, it’s just a hard subject to understand that somebody

5

cannot understand that a baby doesn’t feel pain when their

6

hands and their fingers are perfectly formed.
DR. BECK:

7

I understand this is a very emotional

8

subject, so I apologize if anything I ’m saying is upsetting

9

you.

Absolutely, the formation of the fingers and being

10

able to identify them structurally occurs long before the

11

neurologic pathways for perception of pain, so I get it’s a

12

complicated and difficult subject to hear about.

13

To answer your question, again, I deliver babies

14

across the entire spectrum of pregnancy, and so women who

15

unfortunately regularly come into our practice who are

16

going into labor at 16, 17, 18 weeks, and when I deliver

17

those babies, they have vaginal births, and again, it’s the

18

part of the brain that processes pain, which is, again, a

19

construct of the brain is not fully developed.

20

understand that this is a heated and upsetting subject

21

matter.

22

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

Again, I

And then also when

23

there’s an abnormality, do you guys encourage, recommend

24

abortions when there’s an abnormality found?

25

DR. BECK:

So, again, going back to the fact that
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we focus on patient-centered care, we talk to the patient

2

about the abnormality that we see.

3

what that abnormality means in terms of how the baby would

4

do after the baby is delivered outside of the womb and the

5

potential long-term complications that are associated with

6

that.

7

we discuss all of their reproductive rights, but we really

8

rely heavily on the patient’s ideological beliefs, what

9

their values are.

We talk to them about

And then, you know, if it is a severe abnormality,

10

Never in my practice -- and I can only speak for

11

myself -- have I ever coerced a patient into trying to

12

terminate a pregnancy.

13

objectively as possible discussed all the options for them

14

and then relied on a very patient-centered conversation

15

between them and their spouse and any family members that

16

they want to be part of the conversation about what their

17

reproductive options are and help answer any questions that

18

they have.

19

have a termination of pregnancy.

20

circumstances where there are lethal anomalies and we talk

21

about the implications and what it means to deliver a baby

22

with a lethal anomaly.

23

option that is offered to those patients in those

24

circumstances.

25

I have kind of very diligently and

But no, I do not strongly encourage people to
There are definitely

And termination is, again, an

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

I do have a friend, you
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know, has basically implied that she was to have, you know,

2

an abortion after finding out that, you know, her child,

3

her daughter had Down syndrome.

4

do that.

5

So glad to hear you don’t

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Doctor.

6

just have one follow-up question.

7

there are doctors in the field who possibly disagree with

8

you in the area of when a child can sense pain or feel

9

pain?

10

DR. BECK:

Absolutely.

I

Do you acknowledge that

It’s a very controversial

11

area.

12

pathway stimulation studies on fetuses without entering the

13

womb, usually, you know, causing a miscarriage, so

14

historically a lot of this data, again, has come from

15

animal models, which have, to be honest, significant

16

limitations because the neural pathways in a mouse or a

17

sheep aren’t directly correlated to humans.

18

also a lot of newer imaging data studies which, again, is

19

more stronger evidence-based in terms of talking about the

20

pathways between the thalamus and the cortex.

21

knowledge of those pathways, again, most of it is

22

understood from adult human or childhood studies on just

23

understanding the underlying neurobiology of nerve

24

processing and pain.

25

Again, because we can’t directly do neurologic

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

But there is

The

Thank you, Doctor.
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And I thank you for acknowledging that there is a

2

difference of opinion in the field.

3
4

At this time, Representative Frankel, you have
some remarks.

5

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Thank you.

A

6

couple of things.

7

to meet with and talk to a number of women who faced the

8

very difficult choice in the third trimester with a fetal

9

abnormality.

First of all, I ’ve had the opportunity

Firstly, all of them -- and we had them at a

10

press conference here in Harrisburg a couple years ago.

11

Virtually every single one of them, the pregnancy was a

12

desired pregnancy,

13

was, you know, emotionally devastating to all of them they

14

faced to end up terminating in the face of that

15

catastrophic diagnosis.

16

faced with a catastrophic diagnosis that

So, I mean, I just want to make that point, and I

17

wonder, do you have patients that have faced that kind of

18

challenge, and what do those women go through and those

19

families?

20

DR. BECK:

Yes, I have helped women through those

21

traumatic experiences in my practice.

22

those patients -- you know, if a woman is diagnosed with a

23

life-threatening abnormality in her baby, at no point in

24

pregnancy, whether it’s the first trimester, the second

25

trimester, the third trimester is it ever an easy decision

And again, whether
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for the woman in my experience in having done this practice

2

for over a decade.

3

decision, she never can comprehend, nobody can comprehend

4

the torture that she goes through as a parent having to

5

make choices about whether or not to continue a pregnancy.

6

Until a woman is faced with that

And whether I ’m talking to patients who choose to

7

terminate the pregnancy or choose to continue their

8

pregnancy, the posttraumatic stress that either one of

9

those patients deal with and the lifelong struggle of

10

losing a child remains with those patients.

11

of evidence-based literature that women who deliver babies

12

who have lethal anomalies and absolutely expressed their

13

reproductive right to continue their pregnancy and we

14

supported them through that, absolutely are traumatized

15

after they watch their child pass away.

16

who choose to express their reproductive right and

17

terminate their pregnancy are equally traumatized by the

18

decision that they are making.

19

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

There’s lots

Equally so, women

Thank you.

I do

20

want to thank you for being with us today.

21

your time has been limited.

22

thank you for the work that you do in maternal health and

23

maternal mortality and also for confirming what I ’ve in my

24

gut believed is that the drastic reduction in the access of

25

women to reproductive healthcare and abortion probably is

I know that

And I particularly want to
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linked to increasing maternal mortality.

2

you being here.

3

see you back in the district.

4

DR. BECK:

5

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

So I appreciate

Thank you for the work you’re doing, and
Take care.

Well, thank you so much.
Doctor, thank you so

6

much for being with us today.

7

willingness to provide your information to this Health

8

Committee, and we appreciate your time.

9

much.

We truly appreciate your

10

DR. BECK:

11

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you so very

Thank you.
Our next presenter is

12

going to be Dr. Ruberu, who also is in a short time frame.

13

Doctor, thank you for being with us.

14

will be meeting with patients around 12:15, so -

15

DR. RUBERU:

16

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

I understand that you

Correct.
Okay.

If you would

17

want to do a short presentation to the Committee and then

18

on your background, your expertise, and then the Members

19

will have questions for you.

20

willingness to be here.

Thank you for your

21

DR. RUBERU:

22

having me here today.

23

to be here to speak with all of you.

24
25

Absolutely.

Thank you so much for

I am so honored to have been asked

Madam Chair, Kathy Rapp, and Chairman Dan Frankel
and the Members of the Committee, thank you for the
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opportunity to present testimony concerning fetal

2

development and public policy.

3

address the topic of fetal development from the perspective

4

of a board-certified obstetrician/gynecologist, whose

5

primary concern is the health and well-being of my

6

patients.

7

experience and opinions in regard to my specialty.

8
9

I have been invited to

My comments are limited to my personal

I practice general obstetrics and gynecology in
Abington, PA, and I have almost 13 years in practice

10

following residency training and a history of serving women

11

from diverse economic and cultural backgrounds in the

12

Philadelphia and Abington areas.

13

Many years ago at the onset of my medical career

14

I took an oath to maintain the utmost respect for human

15

life.

16

white coat ceremony as they joined the ranks of physicians

17

in training.

18

return to this great task of defending all life from

19

conception to natural death.

Every physician made the same promise during their

20

I hope that we as physicians can recall and

Throughout my career, there have been many life-

21

and-death moments where the decision of whether to continue

22

care and intervention was rooted on the presence of a

23

heartbeat.

24

own grandmother’s life where my father held her hand and

25

cried tears of sadness as her heartbeat slowly faded away.

I experienced this in the last moments of my
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With the flatline on the monitor, we knew that she had

2

moved on.

3

I experience the joy of the new heartbeat as a

4

physician that helps infertile couples grow their families.

5

As we check for signs of life with early obstetrical

6

ultrasound just four to five weeks after conception, we are

7

so thrilled to see the flicker of a heartbeat on the

8

ultrasound screen.

9

hope.

10

Where there is a heartbeat, there is

Every obstetrics and gynecology textbook that I

11

have ever read states that the earliest step in each human

12

life is that of fertilization, the singular moment in time

13

when one sperm wins out the race out of millions of others

14

to join with that particular egg and begin a new life.

15

This new being with its own set of unique DNA begins the

16

process of cell division.

17

is called a blastocyst.

18

to 12-cell structure that is present three days after

19

fertilization is releasing signals and chemicals that will

20

improve its chances for implantation and for survival.

21

As this cell rapidly divides, it
Even at this early stage, this 8-

According to the Fifth Edition Of Clinical

22

Gynecologic Endocrinology and Infertility by Speroff, the

23

embryo is capable of preimplantation signaling, which

24

increases the estrogen and progesterone levels available to

25

it from its mother.

Five to seven days after
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fertilization, implantation occurs.

2

a half days after fertilization, the inner cell mass is

3

differentiated into primitive ectoderm and an underlying

4

layer of endoderm.

5

organs and structure [inaudible] develops into the

6

umbilical cord is also formed at this time.

7

As early as seven and

These layers ultimately become the

By about the 17th day, fetal blood vessels are

8

functional and placental circulation is established.

9

21st day following fertilization, this new creation is

10

first called an embryo.

11

realize they have missed a period.

12

present.

13

stalk that I just mentioned before is also well-

14

differentiated.

15

Typically, this is the time women
The chemical hCG is

The embryonic disc is well-defined.

The body-

In the fourth week after fertilization, the

16

chorionic sac is 2 to 3 centimeters in diameter.

17

embryo is 4 to 5 millimeters in length.

18

the primitive heart begins in this week.

19

magical moment when the early heart begins to beat.

20

circulation is established between the embryo and the

21

chorionic villi.

22

this time in the fourth week.

23

At

The

Partitioning of
This is that
True

Arm and leg buds are present as well at

In the sixth week after fertilization the embryo

24

is 22 to 24 millimeters in length.

25

in comparison to its trunk.

The head is quite large

The heart is completely
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formed.

Fingers and toes are present.

2

elbows.

The upper lip is complete, and the external ears

3

are beginning to form.

4

Arms bend at the

In the eighth week after fertilization we are

5

entering the fetal period.

6

fetus.

7

body structures except the lungs are already formed.

8

young human being just needs time to grow.

9

protection.

10

This being is now called a

It is four centimeters long.

Most of its major
This

It needs

It is deserving of love and of care.

I hope that this testimony fills each of you with

11

wonder and awe at the beautiful, complex, and unbelievable

12

process that occurred in the earliest weeks of your lives.

13

I call on you as lawmakers to consider this knowledge and

14

perspective as you make public policies that affect each

15

member of the human race, especially the youngest and most

16

vulnerable preborn humans who are so deserving of our

17

protection.

18

Thank you all for your time, and God bless you.

19

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Doctor.

20

And we will now move to questions from our Members.

21

believe Representative Borowicz has the first question for

22

you.

23

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:
Thank you for the testimony.

And I

Thank you for being

24

here.

You know, I have three

25

boys, and I think every mom in here and dad -- and my
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husband was standing beside me when we heard the heartbeats

2

of my kids and how that changed my life forever.

3

and they looked for mine.

4

They were looking for my son’s and they found mine and it

5

scared me.

6

that your heartbeat and then they found my son’s.

7

always say two heartbeats, two lives.

8

being a doctor that stands for life.

9

right now.

I told this in a testimony once.

And I said is that my son’s?

They said, no,

It’s so important

And again -
DR. RUBERU:

11

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

12

doctors check on an unborn baby’s heartbeat?

14
15
16
17
18

DR. RUBERU:

I ’m honored to be one.

I ’m so sorry.

couldn’t hear the question.

My questions are why do

You broke up and I

Can you please repeat it?

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

Sure.

My question was

why do doctors check on an unborn baby’s heartbeat?
DR. RUBERU:

Why do doctors check an unborn

baby’s heartbeat?

19

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

20

DR. RUBERU:

21

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

22

So I

So thank you for

10

13

You know,

Yes.

To verify that the baby is living.
Okay.

So the baby is

Okay.

So —

alive by the heartbeat, correct?

23

DR. RUBERU:

24

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

25

DR. RUBERU:

Correct.

Correct.
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REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

—

then we can then

2

say, you know, as a doctor I think life ends when the

3

heartbeat stops, and life begins when the heartbeat begins,

4

correct?

5

DR. RUBERU:

6

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

7

answer.

8

detected?

9
10

I would agree with that.
Okay.

That’s a good

When would you as an OB expect the heartbeat to be

DR. RUBERU:

I ’m sorry, can you please repeat

that?

11

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

When would you as an OB

12

expect the heartbeat to be detected by sonogram and then

13

Doppler?

14

DR. RUBERU:

Absolutely.

I would expect the

15

heartbeat to be detected by ultrasound, transvaginal

16

ultrasound between six and a half to seven weeks of

17

gestation, which would be four and a half weeks after the

18

actual fertilization has taken place.

19

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

20

early on.

21

till eight weeks, very early on.

Okay.

So, yes, very

I mean, I didn’t even go to the doctor I think

22

DR. RUBERU:

23

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

Correct.

Most people don’t, yes.
Yes.

And then the last

24

question, what are the chances of miscarriage after seeing

25

and hearing the heartbeat?
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DR. RUBERU:

The chance of miscarriage does

2

decrease significantly after [inaudible].

3

achieve that part in pregnancy, in order to have a

4

heartbeat, the baby has to go through a lot.

5

of chemical signaling that needs to take place in order for

6

implantation to be able to occur.

7

have to occur.

8

babies to miscarry.

9

miscarrying after we see that initial heartbeat, but the

10

In order to

There’s a lot

Many, many processes

And it is still possible, obviously,
We do hear reports of babies

percentage does decrease significantly.

11

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

[inaudible] life and

12

science.

13

heartbeat legislation.

14

out of Committee onto

15

Pennsylvania will be a State that stands for life.

Heartbeat, there’s life, and so I have the
Hopefully, w e ’ll get that passed
the State House Floor, and

16

DR. RUBERU:

17

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

God willing.
The doctor has to

18

leave at 12:15, Members, so we do have some time for

19

questioning.

20

for

Doctor, when the Department of Health was with

21

us, there were some questions by the Members in regard to

22

-- and I ’m sure that you are familiar with some of the

23

abortion procedures as an OB/GYN.

24

were looking at some of the difference in the abortion

25

procedures as far as the differences between the suction

I just wondered if -- we
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and the sharp curettage and dilation evacuation and the

2

intrauterine instillation and hysterotomy and hysterectomy.

3

We had a question, and can you maybe give us a little more

4

in depth as a physician what happens with the different

5

procedures?

6

asked the question about the -- I ’m not pronouncing this

7

right -- hysterotomy and the hysterectomy procedures of

8

abortion?

9

And specifically,

DR. RUBERU:

I think Representative Lewis

So I can comment on these generally

10

just from what I ’ve read and what I ’ve seen.

11

am not an abortion provider.

12

for people, and I have not experienced these myself.

13

speaking with and reading about abortion procedures, the

14

suction curettage versus the sharp curettage, so I was

15

listening in while she was describing them, and she

16

mentioned gentle suction.

17

It is a vacuum aspiration, a vacuum you can imagine 30

18

times the strength of your normal vacuum.

19

I personally

I do not perform abortions
From

There’s nothing gentle about it.

We do use vacuum suction in patients who have had

20

miscarriages as well following the death of the baby to

21

remove the contents of the uterus and the babies’ parts and

22

the fetal tissue.

23

dilate the cervix, you open up the cervix, and then you

24

insert the suction cannula and you turn on the suction and

25

you allow it to reach a certain height in the strength of

And in that case what it is is you
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the suctioning, and then you remove the contents of the

2

uterus.

3

miscarriage where the baby has already passed very early in

4

the pregnancy.

5

this baby being suctioned out with a large vacuum.

6

done early on in the gestation.

I perform that in a patient who has had a

For a baby that is living, you can imagine
That is

As the baby gets bigger, then the baby cannot fit

7
8

through those suction cannulas, and so they have to

9

actually go in, they rupture the bag of the water that the

10

baby is in, and then they reach in with a sharp instrument

11

that has kind of serrated ends on the end of it and they

12

grab whatever portion of the baby that they can grab, and

13

they literally dismember the baby.

14

it.

15

pull hard until that leg comes off and then they’ll reach

16

in and they’ll -- sorry, it’s very difficult to talk about

17

this.

18

they’ll remove that arm, and then they’ll reach in and

19

they’ll grab the chest and they’ll remove the chest.

20

ultimately what’s left behind is the head, and they will

21

reach in and they’ll grab the head.

22

that they have the head is because when they squash the

23

head, the white brain matter will come out and they’ll be

24

able to see that, and that’s how they know that they have

25

had the head.

They can grab a leg.

They reach in and grab

They’ll grab a leg and they’ll

They’ll reach in and they’ll grab an arm, and then

And

And the way they know
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Following this procedure, they will have to put

2

all the parts back together to make sure that all of the

3

parts are present, because otherwise, the mother could end

4

up with a very difficult situation.

5

septic and she could end up with a horrible infection.

6

this process, you know, there could be perforation to the

7

uterus and whatnot as well.

She could end up
In

8

As far as abortion in terms of saline abortions,

9

I honestly did not realize that that was even happening at

10

this point in time.

11

have been saline abortions.

12

horrific, but that in particular is extremely horrific.

13

have a close friend of mine who actually was -- her

14

grandmother asked her mother or forced her mother to have a

15

saline-induced abortion, and they inserted the saline, and

16

this woman miraculously survived, but she was sitting in

17

the saline for many days.

18

alive, and she was saved by a nurse.

19

I was horrified to hear that there
All abortion in my mind is
I

And then they delivered her

However, the way that a saline abortion works is

20

that this chemical is introduced around the baby, and it

21

burns the baby.

22

and then the baby is delivered.

And that is how the baby ultimately dies,

23

As far as hysterectomy for abortion or

24

hysterotomy -- hysterotomy means you’re making an incision

25

on the uterus and removing the baby -- I have not ever seen
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or heard of hysterectomy abortions or hysterotomy abortions

2

being performed, so I can’t really speak to those.

3

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Doctor.

4

And when a facility or physician is looking at these

5

specific procedures, which procedure they would use would

6

be dependent on the gestational age, am I correct, or is

7

that -

8

DR. RUBERU:

9

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

10
11
12
13
14
15

That is correct.
-- a big determining

factor, the gestational age of the unborn child?
DR. RUBERU:

Yes, that is typically the

determining factor.
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you.

And I

believe Representative Schemel has a question.
REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

Thank you, Doctor, and

16

thank you for your support of life recognizing the

17

personhood of these children.

18

My wife and I are blessed with six children, and

19

w e ’re unlikely to have more at our age, but my wife has

20

often said, you know, one of the challenges for women, you

21

know, who want to support the life within them is to find a

22

provider, a physician who shares that view.

23

for being that safe space for those women who do.

And thank you

24

My question is specifically in regard to Down

25

syndrome, and I ’ve seen the statistics on the number of
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children born in the United States with Down syndrome,

2

which is drastically reduced.

3

understanding, medically something that we can cure, so a

4

reduction in the number of children born with Down syndrome

5

would indicate that more women having Downs children are

6

choosing to abort them.

It is not, from my

So then I wonder what goes into the counseling of

7
8

the women as they consider whether, you know, as the

9

previous testifiers said, to terminate the child because of

10

a fetal abnormality.

11

will counsel their patients, these women patients in regard

12

to these abnormalities because they are incompatible with

13

life.

14

with patients that have children that have various

15

conditions.

16

you know, in your discussion with those mothers; and then

17

secondly, do you believe that Down syndrome is a condition

18

that is incompatible with life?

19

DR. RUBERU:

We often hear, well, these physicians

Undoubtedly in your practice you’ve dealt with this

First, I ’d like to hear how you handle that,

So I ’m going to flip it and I ’m

20

going to answer the second one first because I think that

21

is such an important -- I think both are important

22

questions, but that second one is so, so important.

23

mind Down syndrome is such a great gift for our society,

24

for our world.

25

met who has Down syndrome has been nothing but a source of

In my

Every single individual that I have ever
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love, a source of light, and that individual is typically

2

the heart of their entire family and of their community.

3

When they meet you, whether it’s the first time they’ve met

4

you or whether you’re a lifelong friend, all they want to

5

do is hug you and give you love.

6

the Thanksgiving table that even the grumpiest, meanest

7

relative who doesn’t want to speak to anybody else, that’s

8

the one person that they can get along with.

9

person who is just nothing but love.

10

That’s the individual at

That is the

And in my mind, these patients, these people who

11

have any sort of disability of any sort, they are not

12

individuals to be terminated or to be discarded but rather

13

they’re just people that give us an opportunity to love

14

better, people who give us an opportunity to really be the

15

hands and feet of goodness and kindness in this world, and

16

they bring out the best in all of us.

17

So I think anyone with any form of disability

18

needs to be just surrounded with love and protected and

19

encouraged and given every form of support to survive and

20

to thrive.

21

any means.

22

I don’t think eliminating them is the answer by

As far as how I counsel my patients in the

23

office, what I always tell them is every single one of us

24

has some sort of disability or abnormality.

25

one of us has some sort of dysfunction, something that went

Every single
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wrong somewhere along the way.

2

that we wear outwardly, something that people can easily

3

recognize, or it could be something internally.

4

be that, you know, we have Down syndrome or a cleft lip or

5

a cleft palate or something wrong with our fingers or our

6

toes or our ability to walk or to perform certain

7

functions.

8

depression or that we have obsessive compulsive disorder or

9

that we have hormonal dysfunction or that we have diabetes

And it could be something

It could

Or it could be that we have anxiety and we have

10

or that we have a heart condition or that we have a lung

11

condition or that we have a bowel condition.

12

various flavors of all sorts of disabilities that every

13

single human being on this planet encounters in some way or

14

form.

15

disabilities.

16

others.

17

None of us is perfect.

These are all

We all have different

It’s just that some are more obvious than

So taking that into mind, I believe that every

18

single life is precious, and that every single life

19

deserves to have the opportunity to live.

20

believe that any of us have the ability or the say-so to

21

decide to end the life of another human being.

22

deserves that right.

23

protect every single life from the moment it is conceived.

24

And if your child has some sort of fetal anomaly

25

And I don’t

None of us

And so it’s our job to nurture and to

or disability, then I do not think that that is a reason to
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end its life.

2

single goal that you ever had for that child in the short

3

time that you have with that child.

4

memories while the child is in utero with you.

5

the shore, you go and you pick apples, you go and you

6

celebrate all of the birthdays that you can possibly

7

imagine.

8

take the pictures, and you create the memories so that down

9

the road one day when you die and you meet that child again

10

in heaven, you can discuss all of these things and how that

11

child only knew love and protection and peace from the

12

moment it was conceived until the moment it left this

13

world.

It is a reason for you to accomplish every

You create all the
You go to

You read the books, you tell the stories, you

14

And if you are told that your child will not

15

survive in utero, I am so sorry, but you can know that

16

every moment of that precious child’s life you did

17

everything possible to honor that child and to protect that

18

child and to celebrate its life.

19

you don’t have a second of regret that at any moment you

20

caused the end of their life, and then you can move forward

21

with peace knowing that all that that child knew was love.

22
23
24
25

When that child passes,

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you.

Our next

question is from Representative Benham.
REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Thank you, Chair, and

thank you, Doctor, for joining us here today as well.
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I am a bioethicist by trade, and so for me these

2

kinds of ethical and moral questions are not only

3

critically important to me personally but also

4

professionally.

5

I so appreciate the discussion that you have had

6

around disability because I am a person who has a

7

disability and a pre-existing condition.

8

of that pre-existing condition, pregnancy would be quite

9

dangerous and potentially life-threatening for me.

10

And as a result

And so my question, as someone who believes that

11

protecting people with disabilities is paramount so that

12

they may thrive and survive is how would you counsel the

13

person with a disability like myself who needs to avoid

14

pregnancy in order to thrive and survive?

15

DR. RUBERU:

I ’m so sorry.

Thank you.

Your audio was

16

cutting in and out.

17

your question, how would I counsel a person with a

18

disability?

19

Can you just repeat that last part of

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Yes, so how would you

20

counsel a person with a disability like myself who needs to

21

avoid pregnancy in order to thrive and survive?

22

DR. RUBERU:

Got it.

Thank you.

So in my office I treat

23

patients using natural family planning methods, and I allow

24

them to have the understanding of their bodies and how

25

their bodies function when exactly in their cycle they’re
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able to conceive and when they cannot conceive based on

2

their natural functions of their body.

3

there are some really amazing, effective methods of

4

abstaining from pregnancy and avoiding pregnancy, which

5

they can participate in and truly understand what is going

6

on with their fertility and to know their fertility at

7

every moment of every day.

8
9

And in doing so,

And with the use of these methods, that’s what I
would speak to my patient about, and I would counsel them

10

on the ways that, you know, in their marriage if they were

11

trying to avoid pregnancy because of their physical health,

12

that’s how I would counsel them, that they could possibly

13

do so.

14

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

And as a follow-up,

15

what’s the failure rate on that kind of pregnancy

16

prevention that you’re suggesting?

17

DR. RUBERU:

It’s actually -- you know, I am an

18

obstetrician/gynecologist that delivered many condom

19

babies, birth control pill babies, IUD babies, so I do

20

realize that there is a failure rate of every sort of

21

contraception.

22

there, you can look it up on the FACTS website, which is a

23

really wonderful website that accumulates a lot of the

24

literature and the studies that have been done on fertility

25

awareness-based methods.

According to the literature that is out

You can have a success rate in
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avoidance of pregnancy using this fertility awareness-based

2

methods of in the upper ends of 90 percent, which is really

3

fantastic.

4

in their bodies, it gives them a really great power to

5

abstain when there is a possibility of pregnancy.

6

you’re abstaining, then there’s no possibility of pregnancy

7

when you’re not having sex.

8
9
10
11

When people actually understand what’s going on

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

And if

And are there doctors and

specialists who disagree with that assessment, the success
of those kinds of methods?
DR. RUBERU:

I ’m sure you could find physicians

12

who agree and disagree on every single possible topic when

13

it comes to medicine.

14

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Thank you.

And as my

15

final question, given that you believe that we need to

16

protect people with disabilities so that they can thrive

17

and survive, particularly around Down syndrome, would you

18

agree that we need to prioritize additional State funding

19

for supports and services for people with intellectual and

20

developmental disabilities?

21

DR. RUBERU:

I ’m sorry, once again, it broke up

22

at the end.

23

additional what type of services?

24
25

What I agree that we need to provide

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Additional funding, State

funding for supports and services for people with
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intellectual and developmental disabilities.

2

DR. RUBERU:

Yes, I ’m absolutely for the funding

3

which would help people with intellectual disabilities

4

survive and thrive, absolutely, when it comes to their

5

education, when it comes to function and to live, yes.

6

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Wonderful.

I will hope

7

that all of my colleagues here in this Committee would

8

agree that it is important that we prioritize additional

9

funding for the supports and services that people with

10

disabilities need to thrive.

11
12

Thank you.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:
Representative.

Thank you,

Thank you, Doctor.

13

Representative Owlett.

14

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

Thank you, Doctor, for

15

being here and for your testimony.

16

dry eyes up here during your testimony.

There weren’t too many

17

Twelve years ago my wife and I were on our way to

18

Lamaze class to learn how to have a child, and our son came

19

five weeks early.

20

the NICU.

21

practice today, which is pretty exciting.

We left there, headed in an ambulance to

And h e ’s 12 years old and going to have baseball

22

DR. RUBERU:

23

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

Oh, wonderful.
But I wanted to talk

24

briefly about the report that we got -- and I asked some

25

questions to the Department of Health about complications
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around abortions.

2

of answers because we didn’t have an opportunity at that

3

point to talk to a doctor, but in 2010 there were nine

4

complications from 6,600 chemical abortions.

5

complications for over 13,000 medical abortions.

6

Statistically, this is skyrocketing even to the point where

7

in the report on the medical and chemical abortions they’re

8

still providing them at 41 weeks.

9

problematic to you as a physician?

10

And, you know, we were not given a ton

DR. RUBERU:

In 2019, 172

Does that seem

It seems extremely problematic to

11

me.

12

when they’re given the abortion pill is take this pill, go

13

home, sit on the toilet, and have your baby or pass -- they

14

don’t call it a baby -- pass the fetus into the toilet and

15

then flush.

16

just scary than having to go through that sort of a

17

procedure by yourself in your bathroom.

18

a college student and you’re doing this in a stall of the

19

bathroom in your dorm where you’re bleeding like crazy.

20

You know, the instructions that are given to women

I can’t imagine anything more traumatic or

Imagine if you’re

Sadly, I ’ve gone through two miscarriages, and

21

those were not, you know, obviously induced with any sort

22

of medication, but a miscarriage in and of itself at seven

23

to eight weeks, you bleed so much, and you’re passing large

24

clots, and then you’re in severe pain as your uterus is

25

contracting and expelling your child.

I can’t even imagine
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at later weeks, past eight weeks, past 10 weeks, being

2

given the opportunity to do this on your own at home

3

unsupervised without a medical professional anywhere near

4

you or in sight to take care of you in case you run into

5

complications.

6

being told to just flush it down the toilet.

7

imagine.

8
9

And then after you deliver your child,

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

I can’t

I appreciate it and just

thank you for being here today and your testimony and your

10

work.

11

to 14 weeks, 16; 15 to 17 weeks, 19; 18 to 20 weeks, 23;

12

and 21 to 23 weeks, 41.

13

table 11 on chemical abortions.

14

putting that out on the record for people to realize.

15

These reports are incredibly hard to get, but they are

16

produced for us as legislators so that we can develop

17

policy, and I appreciate you being here.

18

for your work.

But this is happening.

Eleven to 12 weeks, 18; 13

This is straight off the report on
And I think it’s worth

19

DR. RUBERU:

20

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you so much

Thank you.
At this time I believe

21

Representative Bonner is with us virtually.

22

Bonner, would you want to unmute and ask your question,

23

please?

24
25

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

Representative

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Thank you, Doctor, for your testimony today.
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1
2

Doctor, I believe you mentioned that you heard
the testimony of Dr. Beck.

3

DR. RUBERU:

Is that correct?

I heard the testimony of the

4

individual that was on two people before me, as well as the

5

physician that was on right before me.

6

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

Okay.

I believe Dr. Beck

7

indicated that it was her opinion that the unborn can feel

8

pain at 26 to 28 weeks.

9

different thought than Dr. Beck.

10

DR. RUBERU:

And I wondered if you had a

So I do feel differently on that

11

topic.

12

early on and you touch the baby, they do respond.

13

move.

14

I have not, you know, had the ability to see if they would

15

cry as a response to something.

16

In my experience when I have delivered babies very
They

I have not tried to inflict pain on those babies, so

But when you’re in the NICU and you’re looking at

17

babies who are very, very early in gestation and the

18

physicians are placing IVs for them, they do cry.

19

lot of what she was saying -- at the very end, she said

20

that most of the thoughts about fetal pain are based on

21

theoretical knowledge that comes from studies that have

22

been done on animals because we cannot do testing on humans

23

in utero to check and see if they have a painful response.

24

And so my gut is why would you want to err in that?

25

would you want to take the chance that this baby is feeling

And so a

Why
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pain and to just, you know, discard that thought and to not

2

acknowledge that that might be a possibility?

3

For me, any life is something that I would not

4

ask anybody to do.

5

choice to end a life.

6

are used for abortion, I think they’re brutal.

7

yes, honestly, I can’t testify as to exactly when pain

8

begins, but I would not want to mess up on that one.

9
10

I don’t think that it’s ever a good

I ’m sorry.

And particularly, the methods that

I can’t hear you.

And so,

I think you’re

muted.

11

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

I ’m sorry.

I ’m assuming

12

that there are no pain relief measures given to the unborn

13

during the abortion process?

14

DR. RUBERU:

As I said before, I ’ve never done an

15

abortion, so I haven’t been in the room when an abortion is

16

taking place.

17

to provide pain relief for the baby in the process of an

18

abortion.

19

But to my knowledge it’s not common practice

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

Now, would you agree with

20

me that fingerprints are an identifying factor for a person

21

for their entire life?

22

DR. RUBERU:

23

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

I would.
And do you know at what

24

point the unborn would have fingerprints that would

25

identify the unborn for the balance of their existence?
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DR. RUBERU:

I honestly don’t know at what point

2

the baby has a fingerprint.

3

I will get back to you on that one.

4
5

I will look it up, though, and

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:
four to six weeks.

6

DR. RUBERU:

7

REPRESENTATIVE BONNER:

8

I ’ve read it’s between

you, Doctor.

9

Yes.

All right.

Well, thank

I appreciate your time and your testimony.

DR. RUBERU:

10

That would make sense.

Thank you.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

I think we have time

11

for one more question before the doctor has to leave.

12

Representative Keefer.

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Sorry, that mic didn’t

work well.
So a couple questions for you.

How often do you

actually perform in utero or in uterine surgery?
DR. RUBERU:

Like a D&E procedure for a

miscarriage?
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:
on the baby itself.
DR. RUBERU:

No, on the fetus itself,

Do you ever have to do that?
I have never performed in utero

surgery for a fetus.
REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Okay.

All right.

So I

24

was just trying to understand a little bit of how that

25

process works and, you know, if they give anesthesia to the
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baby at that point in time, you know, if they're doing any

2

of those processes.

3

DR. RUBERU:

4

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

5

DR. RUBERU:

Sure, yes.
Okay.

Yes, I wish I knew that knowledge.

6

I mean, there is amazing surgery that is done for babies

7

that have, you know, spina bifida and different gut-related

8

issues where they can do fetal surgery.

9

oh, my gosh, it's unbelievable, yes.

It's absolutely -

But I don't know

10

exactly what they do as far as pain relief for the baby at

11

that time.

12

read in one article that during a surgery that they had

13

given different types of pain medication in one instance

14

and they hadn't in another, and what they noted was that

15

the baby's response as far as heart rate and breathing and

16

the patterns for that baby when they were monitoring

17

afterwards were significantly different in the ones that

18

had received some sort of anesthesia through the mom.

19

From what I was reading a long time ago, I did

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Okay.

And one other

20

question I have on another subject real quick if I can, so

21

I had what's deemed a geriatric pregnancy, so every time I

22

was going into my OB/GYN, you know, they were offering me

23

different tests because of how old I was when I had the

24

baby.

25

fetal anomalies, I think I only got one because what I was

And the blood tests that were requested to detect
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told at that point in time was that, you know, the false

2

positives that you got in a lot of those blood tests were

3

pretty high, so there wasn't an accuracy in that.

4

still true today?

5

DR. RUBERU:

Is that

I believe the testing is becoming

6

more and more accurate, but there are still obviously false

7

positives with every test that we do when it comes to

8

medicine, so, yes, that can be [inaudible] both of my

9

pregnancies I did get genetic testing done with the

10

sequential screen and, you know, I was interested in

11

knowing any information that I could possibly have about my

12

children not with the intention of ever aborting them if

13

there was something wrong but simply so that I could be

14

prepared and that I could provide the best possible care

15

for my children and to have the correct resources around if

16

they had any sort of disabilities or challenges.

17
18

REPRESENTATIVE KEEFER:

Thank you very much for

your testimony.

19

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Doctor, thank you so

20

much for being here and taking time out of your busy

21

schedule.

22

starting at 12:15.

23

questions, but truly, we do appreciate your presence here

24

and all of the information, the valuable information that

25

you’ve provided to us.

We did receive word that you have appointments
I don’t see any other Members with

And hopefully you can be a resource
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in the future as well.

2

time today.

3
4

Representative Frankel, did you have any
comments, sir?

5
6

But I want to thank you for your

All right.

So thank you, Doctor.

the -

7

DR. RUBERU:

8

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

9

Thank you for

Thank you so much.
So our next physician

who will be with us -- and I believe he is with us

10

virtually -- is Dr. Eric Hussar.

11

name correct, Doctor?

12

DR. HUSSAR:

13

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

14

DR. HUSSAR:

15

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Am I pronouncing your

It’s Hussar.
Hussar, okay.

That’s correct.
All right.

Thank you

16

for correcting me.

17

little bit of your background, and then if you would want

18

to proceed with any information you want to provide to us,

19

and then the Members will have some questions for you.

20

thank you so much for taking time out of your schedule

21

today.

22

So, Doctor, if you could give us a

Do you have any time constraints, Doctor?
DR. HUSSAR:

I have a patient that will be

23

waiting to see me after I finish here, but he said h e ’s

24

flexible and can allow me to talk here and take a few

25

questions, so that’s my situation but --

And
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MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Okay.

You may proceed

2

then.

3

schedule to be with us, and thank you to your patient for

4

giving us some extra time.

5

And thank you again for taking time out of your

DR. HUSSAR:

Thanks.

I ’ll pass that on.

So yes,

6

thank you, Madam Chair Kathy Rapp and Chairman Dan Frankel,

7

Members of the Committee, for this opportunity to present

8

testimony regarding fetal development and to speak

9

specifically about in utero life.

And I ’m coming from the

10

perspective of a board-certified family physician.

11

serve as the Pennsylvania Director of the American Academy

12

of Medical Ethics, and I am actually a certified prescriber

13

for the Abortion Pill Reversal Program, which does utilize

14

progesterone in a very specifically designed and tested

15

protocol in order to give women who have taken the abortion

16

pill an opportunity to try to reverse that and to

17

successfully carry out the rest of the pregnancy.

18

I also

So my intentions going into medicine were to

19

improve the safety and well-being of the patients I would

20

see to help them experience life to the fullest measure.

21

And my comments are coming from my own personal experience,

22

available scientific evidence, and also opinions regarding

23

my specialty.

24

of a father of six children ages 14 down to 7.

25

twins who are 12 years old.

And then I also speak from the perspective
We have

They were born at 28 weeks
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gestational age and spent about three months in the NICU,

2

and we do have one adopted child as well.

3

I've been practicing in Lancaster County in

4

family medicine for 16 years now and see all ages of

5

patients, including pediatrics all the way up to the

6

elderly and just a wide spectrum of medical conditions.

7

And then I spent the first five years of medical practice

8

doing prenatal and obstetrical care in addition to other

9

outpatient and inpatient work.

10

One of the things that came to mind as I prepare

11

this testimony was that, as a physician,

12

mandated reporter and must file a report for any situation

13

where there's even a suspicion of possible abuse against a

14

child.

15

intentional physical neglect or abuse, are quite

16

appropriate and needed and as they're intended to protect a

17

vulnerable member of our community from one who would cause

18

significant physical or emotional harm.

19

in place, too, which protect vulnerable adults and the

20

impaired elderly from harm as well, and these are equally

21

needed.

22

I'm considered a

These laws, which cover shaken baby syndrome to

We have other laws

The truth of the matter is that the primary

23

difference between the fetus at six to eight weeks

24

gestational age and these other populations is really their

25

physical location.

When abortion laws were being decided
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years ago either through the courts or through policy -

2

and these are decades ago -- the science of the ultrasound

3

and the embryology were not nearly available to the degree

4

that they are today as they guided decisions about these

5

tiny humans.

6

being we know, but yet at the same time they’re endowed

7

with possibly more potential than any humans after birth.

8

And by six to eight weeks -- we heard a lot of the detail

9

on the anatomy from Dr. Ruberu, and I appreciate her

They’re more vulnerable than any other human

10

expertise in the matter, but as we get to six to eight

11

weeks, you’re looking at a heart with four chambers, lungs

12

beginning to bud, the gastrointestinal tract finding its

13

place, a central nervous system developing into forebrain,

14

midbrain, and hindbrain, and then many other organs

15

simultaneously developing.
The studies of genetics and reproduction have

16
17

established that even at conception the fertilized egg has

18

a new and unique genetic profile.

19

the expendability of the unborn to the choices of their

20

parents are saying that they’re either a blob of tissue or

21

a cluster of cells, but yet this life form is far beyond

22

that.

23

that will continue to grow and develop for the following

24

seven months as it prepares for life outside the womb.

25

Many that have promoted

It’s actually an exquisitely designed human being

This fetus is a human being, and though the
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cognitive capacity is not at the level of older children,

2

we don’t let that factor keep us from protecting others who

3

are cognitively impaired.

4

completely dependent on the life and health of its mother,

5

but even children who are recently born continue to rely on

6

the care and the provision they need from those around

7

them.

8
9

And yes, the unborn child is

So as a matter of medical ethics I feel it’s
imperative that we refrain from valuing human life based on

10

their location, their abilities, or whether they are

11

wanted.

12

safeguards for them.

13

They above all need us to provide protection and

So there’s no doubt that most women who consider

14

the possibility of an abortion are in very difficult

15

circumstances, and we cannot take lightly the many factors

16

that could lead them to this decision.

17

seems that many mothers and fathers may see abortion as the

18

only option they have or the lesser of two very difficult

19

outcomes.

20

that of all physicians is to seek the well-being and

21

healing of those who are in our care, including the parents

22

of these children.

23

Unfortunately, it

And as mentioned before, my goal and hopefully

So the woman who sits in our office and seeks

24

possibly an abortion must still be cared for and respected,

25

but some presume abortion to be what’s best for them, and
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many call these situations a therapeutic abortion.

2

However, there are many scientific studies that strongly

3

suggest significant negative mental health outcomes for

4

mother.

5

suicidal ideation, substance abuse, and certainly there’s

6

physical harm as well that can be associated with either

7

medical chemical abortions or surgical abortions, and w e ’ve

8

kind of talked a little bit about that previously.

9

there was a comprehensive review of the literature by David

This would include PTSD, anxiety, depression,

And

10

Reardon in 2018 which showed a statistically significant

11

increase in the negative mental health outcomes for

12

patients with some of the similar conditions that I

13

mentioned above.

14

showed negative effects on maternal mental health, and we

15

do have some evidence suggesting certainly negative effects

16

on paternal mental health as well when they’ve been

17

involved in that decision process.

An overwhelming majority of these studies

18

An alarming trend in the medical field has been

19

towards leaning to provide the patient with whatever they

20

think they want even in the absence of solid evidence

21

suggesting a true benefit for them.

22

presenters ago -- I think it was Dr. Beck -- talking about

23

patient-centered care, and I agree patient-centered care is

24

extremely important, but I would also say it doesn’t go as

25

far as just giving the patient or helping them achieve

We heard from two
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whatever they want.

2

spend extensive time and training between medical school

3

and residency and current practice is to be able to

4

evaluate what the patient desires.

5

take that into consideration and make that important part

6

of what we see, but also put that in the context of

7

available science and medical ethics in order to determine

8

what are truly the best options for someone.

9

different circumstance might be somebody that says, well, I

In fact, the reason most physicians

We have to definitely

A totally

10

feel like I need antibiotics, I want antibiotics, and as a

11

family doctor, I say, well, that’s actually not good for

12

you.

13

cause more harm than good.

14

This will get better on its own, and the antibiotics

There are other circumstances like this where a

15

woman may think that she needs or wants an abortion, but it

16

may not truly be in her best interest and certainly is, you

17

know injurious and lethal to the child in utero.

18

if a woman were to come through an abortion without known

19

adverse outcomes, it still does not negate our

20

responsibility to protect the child who lives inside of

21

her.

22

So even

And I would say it’s offensive even to call a

23

procedure that takes the life of another therapeutic.

24

Other alternatives such as adoption are certainly available

25

that would truly be therapeutic to the child and
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potentially so to the biological parent as well, knowing

2

that they were able to give their child a safe and loving

3

home.

4

they could do at providing the safe and loving home

5

themselves.

6

In other cases, parents may not be aware of how well

A couple other points that I wanted to bring up

7

is w e ’ve considered the scientific truth of the humanity of

8

these babies, I also feel that other measures should

9

naturally follow that.

Currently in Pennsylvania a baby

10

who was aborted could be disposed of as medical waste.

11

This practice falsely reinforces that this child is not a

12

person or worthy of proper treatment after death, and for

13

any human at any age I think a proper burial or cremation

14

would honor the life that has passed, and this should be no

15

different for children whose lives have been ended by an

16

elective abortion.

17

Finally, another ethical issue that’s present

18

with us today is the concept of research being carried out

19

using aborted fetal cells and organs.

20

allow for donated organs from a deceased individual to be

21

used in a transplant situation to save a life or improve

22

the health of another person.

23

done on those who have passed to benefit society at large.

24

A parent can donate a child who died of natural causes or

25

is stillborn for scientific research.

It’s reasonable to

Certainly, research can be

In all these
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situations, those involved in making the decision to donate

2

the body for research or therapeutics were not involved in

3

the actual decision to end the life at hand.

4

cause a significant potential conflict of interest.

5

A study in Nature this past fall actually

That could

6

demonstrated researchers at the University of Pittsburgh

7

Medical Center are doing studies implanting scalps and hair

8

from aborted babies onto the backs of mice and then growing

9

that hair out.

Lymphoid tissues and stem cells from

10

aborted babies have also been implanted into mice at the

11

same center.

12

abortion doctors are even providing the fetal tissues to

13

the tissue bank.

14

Evidence has arisen that Planned Parenthood

When there’s opportunity for gain from these

15

procedures, that ends up putting more pressure on the

16

centers performing them and then also potentially on the

17

pregnant women who are contemplating an abortion.

18

if there was no financial compensation, a parent could

19

naturally feel more easily able to justify aborting a child

20

if they thought the tissue would be used in medical

21

research, and then this would all the more increase the

22

vulnerability and risk of coercion of the mothers.

23

And even

So I feel strongly that we have the science and

24

technology in these days to demonstrate the humanity of the

25

fetus in the womb.

This was not available decades ago when
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Roe v. Wade was decided, and I would conclude by asking you

2

as lawmakers and policymakers to consider what’s being

3

presented here today and to use the power that’s been given

4

you to protect all members of our society and, while doing

5

that, to also look for ways to support the parents and to

6

guide them through what can be very challenging

7

circumstances.

Thank you for your time.

8

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

9

Representative Klunk, would you like to ask the

10
11
12
13

Thank you, Doctor.

first question?
REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

Sure.

Thank you, Madam

Chair, and thank you, Doctor, for joining us today.
I have a question.

At the beginning you said

14

that you are a family doctor but you also counsel patients

15

on abortion reversal options that are available to them.

16

Can you talk to us about, you know, what that entails, what

17

drugs are available, what you go through in counseling a

18

patient who comes to you who may have had an abortion who

19

wants, you know, reversal.

20

do those conversations entail?

21

does that process look like for that patient in that

22

standard of care that you would provide?

23

DR. HUSSAR:

Sure.

What does that look like?

What

And then, you know, what

So the abortion pill reversal

24

program was started by Dr. George Delgado close to 10 years

25

ago and has since had a research study of 700 to 800
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patients about four years ago that was published three or

2

four years ago.

3

commonly known as the abortion pill.

4

it actively blocks progesterone receptors, and ultimately

5

the intent is to cause the fetus to detach from the wall of

6

the uterus or the endometrial lining.

7

second medicine, misoprostol or Cytotec is given that the

8

woman takes a day or two later to cause the uterus to expel

9

the fetus and to basically contract.

Anyway, mifepristone or RU486 is what is
When this is taken,

And then usually a

So the abortion pill

10

reversal program involves very large doses of progesterone

11

to basically compete with the mifepristone, and then by

12

competing with it and then obviously the misoprostol second

13

medicine would not be taken, but the hope would be that by

14

competing with the mifepristone, it overcomes the effects

15

of the mifepristone and allows the woman to continue to

16

carry the pregnancy.

17

effective.

18

the range of 60 to 65 percent.

19

taken, the better.

20

hours at the latest.

21

And this has been found to be

In the most recent study it was looking at in
Certainly, the earlier it’s

It usually has to be done within 72

So, yes, what can happen is if a woman has taken

22

the abortion pill and wants to try to reverse that because,

23

as we talked, these women are in very difficult

24

circumstances.

25

option or they have somebody else forcing or coercing them

Sometimes they feel like it’s their only
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to do this, and what could happen is if they take the

2

abortion pill, they regret their decision, wish they would

3

not have done it, most often they end up researching online

4

and finding the abortion pill reversal program.

5

way a nurse would triage them and then send a message to a

6

local physician who’s certified with that program, and then

7

we would connect with them.

8

saying, you know, fortunately there’s not been any

9

increased risk of birth defects for women who have carried

And that

And typically, counseling and

10

successful pregnancies after this treatment, and, you know,

11

we certainly warn them about increased risks for bleeding

12

that would be associated just from having already taken the

13

mifepristone and reasons to seek emergent medical care but

14

also connecting them with an appropriate obstetrician and

15

making sure they’re getting the prenatal and pregnancy care

16

that they need.

17
18

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:
Representative.

19

Representative Benham.

20

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

21

Thank you,

Thank you, Chairwoman.

And thank you, Doctor, for being here as well.

22

As the previous speaker noted, there are no forms

23

of contraceptives that are 100 percent, and I ’m not sure if

24

you heard or not, but I ’m someone for whom pregnancy would

25

be dangerous and potentially quite life-threatening.
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You spoke about adoption as a therapeutic option,

2

but how would you counsel someone, a pregnant person, for

3

whom that pregnancy is quite dangerous and life-

4

threatening?

5

Thank you.

DR. HUSSAR:

I think it’s an excellent question,

6

and certainly these situations can be very difficult.

7

think, you know, as we even heard just some of the

8

statistics about maternal mortality, obviously any

9

pregnancy has a potential risk to the mother.

I

Obviously,

10

if abortion is carried out, that’s a 100 percent death rate

11

for the fetuses involved in that or for the babies involved

12

in that, but I think any condition, you know, you can look

13

at and say, well, what’s the actual risk to the mother

14

based on her underlying disability or her medical condition

15

that she has and what would be the risk put to her on that?

16

My goal would be to try to help them to understand exactly

17

what the risks are.

18

As someone who does not carry out abortions, I ’m

19

obviously not someone who could carry through with a

20

procedure like that for them, but I would also want -

21

somebody might say, well, if there’s a, you know, certain

22

percentage of risk to the mother for going through with

23

this pregnancy but then there’s also this maybe a

24

significantly higher percentage chance that they would be

25

able to successfully carry a pregnancy to term or that if
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something were to start happening that would put their life

2

at risk, then they could have a procedure at the time to

3

save their life.

4

So I would want to try to understand the

5

perspective that they were coming from and also to

6

understand more specifically what the actual risks were

7

involved.

8

mothers can enter pregnancy with, there might be some that

9

are much higher risk to the mother and others that are far

I mean, for all the different conditions that

10

lower, and so I think knowing what those specific numbers

11

are could be much more helpful to the mother in that

12

situation.

13

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

That sounds quite

14

patient-centered to me in fact.

15

then, it sounds to me as though you agree that these

16

circumstances are personal and specific to each pregnant

17

person and that these are conversations that ought to be

18

had between that woman and her doctor with regard to her

19

particular circumstance, correct?

20

DR. HUSSAR:

As a follow-up question

I would agree that I would want the

21

patient and the doctor to talk through those things and

22

evaluate what those specific circumstances are and the

23

percentage risks, and I think for many States and places or

24

many people would say if the pregnancy is imminently

25

endangering the life of the mother, then yes, there would
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be reason to say -- I mean, obviously, if the mother dies,

2

then the baby is going to die anyway, but also w e ’re not

3

just trying to throw aside either the life of the mother

4

for the sake of doing whatever we can to keep the baby

5

alive.

6

patient-centered and value the patient’s perspectives in

7

this, I think we also still want to give dignity and

8

respect to the life of the child there.

9

where I think there have to be many factors that play into

10
11

But at the same time I think as we want to be

And so that’s

that and to not just only balance it on one or the other.
REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

As a fellow ethicist, my

12

question then would be whose dignity and life supersedes,

13

that of the parent or that of the fetus?

14

DR. HUSSAR:

Well, it may not be something where

15

we have to just say one is more important.

16

mentioned earlier, if something would be happening with the

17

parent where her life was imminently in danger, then if she

18

passes away as a result of something, a medical condition

19

from the pregnancy, then the baby would not survive either.

20

But if we can deliver the baby imminently and try to do our

21

best to help that baby survive but also, by delivering,

22

save the life of the mother, then that is the prudent and

23

appropriate thing to do in that circumstance.

24

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

25

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

I mean, like I

Thank you.
Thank you,
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Representative.

Thank you, Doctor.

2

Chairman Frankel.

3

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Thank you, Madam

4

Chair, and thank you, Dr. Hussar, for being here today.

5

Remind me, what is your medical background?

6

is in family medicine did you say?

7

DR. HUSSAR:

8

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

9

Your practice

Family medicine, that's correct.
So I'm looking at a

report, a least a summary of a report from the American

10

College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists with respect to

11

the abortion reversal procedure, which they completely

12

believe is -- not believe but demonstrate is unproven.

13

mean, the case that was reported on in six women who took

14

mifepristone were then administered varying progesterone

15

doses.

16

where people with the background and the knowledge and

17

practice in this area believe that this is at best unproven

18

and at worst considered unethical.

19

point that out.

I

So it seems like, you know, this is kind of an area

So I just wanted to

And -

20

DR. HUSSAR:

Can I comment on that?

21

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

22

DR. HUSSAR:

Sure.

So certainly the gold standard in

23

science and medicine for trials and studies today is the

24

randomized placebo control double-blind study.

25

imagine, the ethics of saying to a population of women who

As you can
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are pregnant you’re going to all receive the abortion pill

2

and then one half will get the sugar pill instead of

3

progesterone and the other half will get true progesterone

4

couldn’t be ethically carried out.

5

revert to saying, well, what are the kinds of studies that

6

we can perform with these women?

So they have to then

And when Dr. Delgado initially carried out the

7
8

study on the six women, that was just, you know, a

9

beginning to the start of his work.

The study that was

10

then subsequently done in 2018 looks at, you know, 700 to

11

800 women and basically follows their courses throughout

12

pregnancy.

13

was to compare the risk of, you know, maternal health but

14

also birth defects to the general population and did not

15

find a significant difference in that.

16

And, like I said, one of the intentions of that

So yes, there are many that would say that the

17

procedures or the treatments that are in this program are

18

unproven, but it would basically be because a study that’s

19

needed to make it scientifically gold standard proven are

20

not ethically able to be done.

21

had to be taken for those reasons.

22

So that’s the approach that

And certainly there is another organization, the

23

American Association of Pro-Life Obstetrics and

24

Gynecologists who would be in favor of this program, and

25

they are also certainly well-trained in their field of
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specialty, and I would consider them to be equal in their

2

expertise to those who are coming out of the ACOG.

3
4

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:
Chair.

5
6

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Representative Schemel.

8

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

10

Thank you, Doctor.

Thank you, Chairman.

7

9

Thank you, Madam

Thank you, Madam Chair,

and thank you, Doctor, for doing what you do to promote a
culture of life.

11

We've seen advertisements from some abortion

12

providers in Pennsylvania that indicate that they provide

13

chemical abortions via telemedicine.

14

not an abortion provider, you have some experience via the

15

response to reversals of abortion, but can you speak to the

16

ethics of both medically and also to the ethics of

17

providing a service like a chemical abortion through

18

telemedicine without in-person or in-clinic contact?

19

DR. HUSSAR:

I know that you're

Yes, thank you for the question.

20

I've been doing a number of telemedicine visits, as

21

everybody can imagine, throughout the pandemic.

22

we are happy for the convenience of this option and

23

certainly it seems to be appropriate in many situations,

24

especially with trying to avoid exposures to COVID or

25

otherwise,

So

And while

I can also tell you that I would far rather see
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a patient in the office than in person to discuss issues.

2

And even as I think about different types of issues that

3

people come in for, if they're dealing with a mental health

4

issue, depression, anxiety, stress, grief, I think being

5

able to be there in person with them, being able to look

6

into their eyes not just through a screen but in the actual

7

room with them is extremely important to me and I think

8

also therapeutic for the patient.

9

So even aside from, you know, the physical exam

10

that could be involved in doing an in-person visit, I think

11

actually having an in-person discussion with a patient is

12

far more beneficial and far more appropriate to any kind of

13

office visit, especially in someone who's considering

14

whether to terminate a pregnancy that they are carrying.

15

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Doctor.

16

Our next question is from one of our virtual participants,

17

Representative Krajewski.

Representative -

18

REPRESENTATIVE KRAJEWSKI:

Yes.

19

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

-- if you want to

20

unmute and ask your question, please.

21

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

22

Chair.

23

your testimony to the Committee.

24
25

Thank you, Madam

Thank you, Doctor, for coming today and providing

I had a question regarding something that you had
mentioned regarding the adverse effects, whether it's
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mental health or otherwise, that people have dealt with

2

after seeking abortion.

3

specifically I ’m referencing a 2008 study from the American

4

Psychological Association -- there’s actually not been a

5

link between seeking abortion and adverse mental health

6

effects afterwards.

7

reciting those statistics.

8
9

DR. HUSSAR:

From what I ’ve seen -- and

So I ’m curious about your source for

I think it’s a great question.

The

study that I was looking at in regards to that was done in

10

2018 by David Reardon, and it actually was a literature

11

review, and he stated that he incorporated all the

12

different studies that he could find on this since 1995.

13

So I don’t have a way of sharing a screenshot with you from

14

that, but I would certainly be happy to try to find a way

15

to get that to you after the fact.

16

REPRESENTATIVE KRAJEWSKI:

Okay, I would

17

appreciate that.

18

follow-up, you know, you had mentioned some of the adverse

19

effects that some people may deal with, but can you speak

20

to any positive effect that people may have?

21

seen studies that have said that people who have, you know,

22

sought abortion of their own volition have also by majority

23

have felt it was the right decision, have felt that it was

24

psychologically and economically the right decision for

25

them as well.

Thank you.

And then another quick

I ’ve also

Could you speak to any positive results of
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someone seeking abortion when needed?

2

DR. HUSSAR:

Yes.

The study that Dr. Reardon did

3

basically if you drew a centerline down the middle and

4

said, you know, the ones to the right are those that have

5

suffered negative mental health effects and the ones to the

6

left suffered or experienced a beneficial effect from

7

having had the abortion, there were no studies that showed

8

a statistically significant positive change for those

9

women.

There were three studies out of probably the 25 to

10

30 that I saw there that’s showed a slight trend towards

11

benefits, but they were very close to that center line, and

12

then what they call the confidence interval that

13

statisticians use to say is this a statistically

14

significant amount.

15

that line to say that they were not statistically

16

significant.

17

The confidence intervals fell over

So certainly I could understand why someone might

18

say, yes, it would be easier on me mentally, emotionally

19

not have to carry out this pregnancy, but I have not seen

20

data to strongly suggest that people benefit mentally after

21

carrying through with a procedure like this.

22

REPRESENTATIVE KRAJEWSKI:

And you said most of

23

the results on that data set were around the center line,

24

is that correct?

25

DR. HUSSAR:

Not necessarily.

Most of the
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results I would say -- the vast majority of studies that

2

were statistically significant -- well, all the ones that

3

were statistically significant showed negative mental

4

health effects.

5

trend towards a benefit, which are still an extreme

6

minority, were not statistically significant.

7

there were others that kind of just overlapped.

8

trending towards negative effects but weren’t statistically

9

significant.

10

However, the ones that showed a slight

REPRESENTATIVE KRAJEWSKI:

Okay.

And then

If you could

11

follow up and send me those studies that you’re

12

referencing, that would be great.

13

DR. HUSSAR:

14

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

They were

Thank you.

Yes, I ’d be happy to do that.
Thank you, Doctor.

15

And again, as the previous speaker was willing to provide

16

us a study, if you could provide the entire Committee with

17

that study, we would truly appreciate it.

18

DR. HUSSAR:

19

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

20

Representative Zimmerman, did you have a

21
22

Yes, I ’d be happy to do so.
Thank you, Doctor.

question?
REPRESENTATIVE ZIMMERMAN:

Yes.

23

Chair, and thank you, Doctor, for being on.

24

Rep from Lancaster County.

25

Thank you, Madam
I ’m a State

So my question has to do with the detection of
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disabilities during pregnancy.

2

the point where you can do much of that with surety, or is

3

still some of that -- for example, Down syndrome, is that

4

something that you know for certain or is there some

5

question even if there’s testing done?

6

DR. HUSSAR:

Has technology advanced to

I think as mentioned by Dr. Ruberu,

7

certainly with any test there can be false positives.

8

There are many times where whether it’s bloodwork or an

9

ultrasound might show something that initially looks like

10

an abnormality but after further testing or even delivery

11

of the baby is discovered not to have been an issue.

12

times I think with the technological advances that we have

13

today, if a woman has a child that’s diagnosed with Down

14

syndrome while in the uterus, it’s highly likely that that

15

child could ultimately -- will have Down syndrome after

16

birth and be confirmed for that.

17

Most

Now, you know, certainly there are blood markers

18

and other labs that can be done in the first trimester.

19

And again, Dr. Ruberu spoke to that and certainly would

20

have more expertise in that realm than I would.

21

would say, yes, the technology is advancing that we can

22

identify those.

23

of the child with Down syndrome or other chromosomal

24

abnormalities or deformities has significant value and

25

should not be made to be lighter than those that do not

But I

However, I would still posit that the life
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3
4
5
6

have some of those deformities or abnormalities.
REPRESENTATIVE ZIMMERMAN:
appreciate it.

Thank you.

I

Thanks, Madam Chair.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

Representative.
Doctor, I have a question.

In your opening you

7

talked very briefly about the research at the University of

8

Pittsburgh or the medical facility at Pittsburgh.

9

assuming this is well-known in the medical community, and I

And I ’m

10

believe the Members of the Health Committee are aware of

11

this type of research.

12

of ethics concerns regarding using aborted babies as part

13

of this type of research?

14

DR. HUSSAR:

Do you as a physician see any type

Yes.

I would have significant

15

concerns about that because I think if there is the

16

opportunity to use children that have been aborted for

17

research, it’s going to cause people to seek out ways that

18

they can, you know, earn either money or financial

19

compensation from that.

20

even if there was no compensation, even just the ability

21

for a parent to potentially justify having an abortion by

22

saying, oh, well, my child could at least be used for

23

medical research, I think there’s a huge potential conflict

24

of interest there when those that could benefit from the

25

abortion are the ones performing it or having a say in that

I think, like I mentioned earlier,
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decision process.
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

As a physician, do you

3

believe that there are other methods that medical research

4

could use to try and find the same type of results that the

5

university is looking for other than using aborted babies?

6

DR. HUSSAR:

I would say yes.

I mean, w e ’ve had

7

lots of research done on adult stem cells.

8

you know, there’s been a lot of discussion regarding COVID

9

vaccines where there is a cell line from an aborted fetus

Certainly even,

10

from decades ago that has been used either in potential

11

research or production of certain vaccines.

12

that was done a very long time ago.

13

purpose of using them, and it wasn’t being actively, you

14

know, sold at the time for that reason.

15

In those cases

It was not for the

But I would say primarily it’s best for us if we

16

can try to focus our work and research on the adult stem

17

cells and certainly continuing -- or, you know, thousands

18

and thousands of trials that happen with living humans

19

trying to figure out what treatments are going to work best

20

and how effectively they’re going to work that can’t even

21

be done with tissues from aborted babies.

22

are many other options out there that we need to avail

23

ourselves of and to try to avoid the use of aborted babies

24

for these purposes.

25

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

So I feel there

Thank you, Doctor.

I
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think we have two more questions.

2

Representative Klunk.

3

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

Thank you, Madam Chair.

4

And I would like to follow up on some of the mental health

5

issues surrounding abortions and even postdelivery, you

6

know, for those postpartum moms.

7

situated to answer some of these questions as a family

8

physician because a lot of these women, you know, once

9

they’re out of that OB realm, you’re the one who’s seeing

I think you’re uniquely

10

them.

11

maybe their OB, and in your experience do those mental

12

health issues, you know, crop up after an abortion or even

13

after, you know, maybe a reversal just doesn’t work or even

14

postpartum?

15

on that mental health front when it comes to those

16

patients?

17

patient comes to you at those various, you know, stages and

18

situations to provide care from a mental health standpoint?

19

You’re seeing them on a more regular basis than

And as a family physician, what are you seeing

And as a family physician, what do you do when a

DR. HUSSAR:

Yes, thank you.

So I think

20

certainly it is well-known that women can experience, you

21

know, different varieties or types of mental health issues

22

after abortion or even with the stresses that are involved

23

with having a baby, we know that many women will go through

24

like a postpartum depression or, you know, often called

25

baby blues.

And so as I talk with people, someone’s

152
1

experience in abortion who's coming to me, my goal is not

2

to try to make them feel guilty or to try to hammer down

3

what I think they should have done differently.

4

would be more to say how can I come alongside of you right

5

now?

6

medical treatment or ways to try to help you process what

7

you're experiencing right now so that I can help them get

8

to a better state, a better place of healing in life to the

9

fullest.

My goal

How can we get you connected with counseling or with

10

And for those that are coming from a side of

11

having some postpartum depression, it would also be, you

12

know, saying what are the ways that we might be able to

13

decrease stressors as far as other things you're having to

14

deal with in addition to taking care of a newborn baby.

15

Again, is there counseling involved that we can use to help

16

you?

17

for you?

18

Is there medical treatment that would be appropriate

And so I do see it as a great opportunity to try

19

to meet the needs on either side of the aisle, whether it's

20

somebody coming out of an abortion or somebody having had a

21

newborn baby and saying I want to come alongside of you,

22

partner with you right where you're at and try to help you

23

through this.

24

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Doctor.

25

And our last question is from Representative
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1
2

Owlett.
REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:

Thank you, Doctor.

And I

3

appreciate you being here and taking the time.

4

wanted to -- I ’ve been asking kind of the same line of

5

questioning around complications for chemical and medical

6

abortions and procedures.

7

your thoughts on this as well.

8

possibly heard the previous testimony.

9

nine complications out of 6,600 chemical abortions.

And I just

And I just would love to know
I ’m sure you heard or
In 2010 there were
In

10

2019, 172 complications out of 13,845.

11

significant amount after 11 weeks.

12

and help us understand?

13

these complications and trying to figure out what could be

14

done or if something needs to be done at the State level to

15

help with this.

16

DR. HUSSAR:

And there were a

Could you speak to that

As policymakers w e ’re looking at

Sure, and I think what w e ’re seeing

17

especially with the mifepristone or the abortion pill is

18

that chemical medical abortions are happening at higher and

19

higher ages of gestation for women who are pregnant.

20

certainly, there does seem to be lower risk if it’s done

21

very early on in the gestational age but much higher risk

22

if it’s done at a later point.

23

form of better regulations to try to prohibit women who are

24

further along in their gestational age from being able to

25

carry out a chemical medical abortion would be appropriate.

And

And I think having some
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You know, as you guys can tell from my

2

perspective,

3

at all unless there would be imminent danger or harm to the

4

mother.

5

gets and the more that it grows in the womb, the higher the

6

risk is for significant hemorrhage and other complications

7

that can follow that if they follow through with a chemical

8

abortion at that point in time.

9
10
11
12
13
14
15

I would certainly love to see them not happen

But I also do think that the older that a child

REPRESENTATIVE OWLETT:
for joining us today.

Thank you, and thank you

Thank you, Madam Chair.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

Representative.
Chairman Frankel, do you have some closing
statements, sir?
DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Thank you.

Just,

16

first of all, I need to repeat the fact because the Center

17

for Disease Control statistics show that abortions are more

18

than 99 percent without complications, one of the safest

19

medical procedures around.

20

And when we're talking about issues with respect

21

to psychological impacts, I think one of the things that so

22

far we've failed to have testimony with respect to are the

23

psychological impacts to women who are forced to carry a

24

pregnancy to term that didn't want to.

25

on a turn away study from the University of California at

And we know based
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San Francisco, the turn away study that's been cited

2

repeatedly and done, you know, with extraordinary care,

3

that we know -- and I'm going to quote from this -- that

4

women denied a wanted abortion who have to carry an

5

unwanted pregnancy to term have four time greater odds of

6

living below the federal poverty level and more likely to

7

experience serious complications from end of pregnancy,

8

including eclampsia and death, more likely to stay tethered

9

to abusive partners, more likely to suffer anxiety and loss

10

of self-esteem in the short term after being denied an

11

abortion and less likely to have aspirational plans for

12

their lives.

13

that 95 percent of women who have had an abortion have no

14

regrets whatsoever with respect to that.

15

In addition to which we know from surveys

So I just want to -- you know, there's been a lot

16

of opinion, a lot of very compelling testimony, compelling

17

opinion, but I think it doesn't register with respect to

18

some of the facts in terms of whether, you know,

19

complications, you know, how women feel about the choices

20

that they made, and the consequences, quite frankly, for

21

women who might be forced because they don't have access to

22

abortion care from being able to have an abortion for many

23

different reasons that clearly are individual to each

24

person making what is oftentimes a difficult decision.

25

So I just wanted to point that out as we proceed
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here.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

2
3

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Chairman

Frankel.

4

Doctor, did you want to respond to that at all?

5

DR. HUSSAR:

I would quickly say, you know, even

6

for those that would say the abortion is overall very safe

7

for the woman and there could be some that still dispute

8

the level to that safety, you know, what we've been arguing

9

here is that it's 100 percent dangerous for the child and

10

lethal to the unborn child.

11

agree with the fact that women that would be forced to

12

carry or feel like there were forced to carry a child to

13

delivery even though they might have chosen to have an

14

abortion, one of the things that we as a community and as a

15

society can do or should do is try to find ways that we can

16

continue to come alongside of those folks.

17

And I think while I would

And I know many crisis pregnancy centers do this

18

very well where they're partnering with women throughout

19

their pregnancy, they're trying to help them out of

20

situations that could be dangerous or harmful, including a

21

potentially abusive partner or they're also trying to help

22

provide for them with resources and learning and skills

23

that they can use to try to care for the child after

24

delivery or to assist them in the process of adoption,

25

which, again, very complex and many times a lot of
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emotional ups and downs that can go along with that but can

2

also be extremely rewarding to those that are involved in

3

it.

4

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Doctor, I just want to

5

thank you so very much for being here today and taking the

6

time out of your busy schedule and answering the questions,

7

and we really appreciate the information that you have

8

provided.

9

have been requested to send to the Committee, but I again

10

And we will be looking for the study that you

want to thank you for your time.

11

DR. HUSSAR:

We truly appreciate it.

Thank you.

I appreciate the time to

12

come before you, and I wish you the best with the rest of

13

your day.

14

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

15

We do have Members, two more doctors, and we had

16

said that we would end around 2:00.

17

physician a half hour.

18

Stephen Emery.

Thank you, Doctor.

That would give each

So I want to go directly to Dr.

Doctor, are you with us?

19

DR. EMERY:

Yes, I am.

20

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

You may proceed, sir,

21

if you would like to give us your background, and then we

22

will have some time for questioning.

23

Doctor, for being willing to come before us today.

24
25

DR. EMERY:

And thank you,

Well, thank you for the opportunity.

My name is Dr. Stephen Emery.

I ’m professor of obstetrics
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and gynecology and reproductive sciences at the University

2

of Pittsburgh School of Medicine.

3

for the Center for Innovative Fetal Intervention, Magee-

4

Womens Hospital of UPMC.

5

I ’m a fetal surgeon, so for those of you with questions

6

about how we do that, provide anesthesia, I ’ll be glad to

7

talk to you about those things.

I provide fetal surgery for UPMC.

I ’m not here to opine about abortion as an

8
9

I ’m also the Director

abortion provider.

I ’m not an abortion provider, so I

10

would encourage you to direct those questions to people

11

with expertise in that field.

12

I don’t have any prepared statements.

I didn’t

13

realize that was an expectation, so I am prepared to

14

provide you information that would help you make evidence-

15

based and informed decisions to keep the citizens of the

16

Commonwealth safe.

17
18
19

So with that, I ’ll be happy to take any
questions.
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Doctor, maybe you

20

could provide us with a little bit more in-depth

21

description of exactly what you do as a fetal surgeon in

22

your duties on a day-to-day so that we have a good

23

understanding of what exactly you perform as a fetal

24

surgeon so that we have a little bit more understanding.

25

DR. EMERY:

Sure.

So approximately 3 percent of
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all pregnancies have some type of fetal anomaly that is

2

life-limiting, life-threatening.

3

of those have some type of anomaly that’s amenable to some

4

type of in utero intervention.

5

intervention, I mean that we understand the natural

6

history, we understand the processes, and we understand

7

that if we intervened at this point with this particular

8

intervention, we can change the trajectory of the pregnancy

9

away from disease and toward normal.

Approximately 5 percent

And by in utero

So a baby that is

10

born and is on the way to having a life-limiting or life-

11

threatening or disabling condition can be born normal.

12

That’s what I do.

13
14

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:
Doctor.

Thank you very much,

That actually does help us quite a bit.

15

Do we have any -- Representative Klunk.

16

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

Thank you, Madam Chair.

17

And thank you, Dr. Emery, for joining us today.

18

questions around your practice of this.

19

said that it -- it does sound like it’s really incredibly

20

rare.

21

surgeries in your practice like on a day-to-day basis, you

22

know, how many surgeries are you performing a week, a

23

month, a year just to give us an example of how often this

24

presents itself.

25

Just some

I know you just

So how often are you performing these types of

DR. EMERY:

Typically, one to two a week because
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we have a large catchment area, and we are the only center

2

in this geographic region, so patients are referred from

3

all around to Pittsburgh for the service.

4

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

5

types of cases would you normally treat?

6

some examples of what types of surgeries you would perform

7

on those people?

8
9

DR. EMERY:

Sure.

Okay.

And then so what
Can you give us

One you might be aware of that

an earlier speaker mentioned was in utero repair for spina

10

bifida.

11

and we know that the natural history is that the neural

12

tube didn’t close in the back, and over the course of the

13

pregnancy, those exposed nerve roots are damaged, which

14

leads to loss of function typically from the hips down.

15

And we know that if we go in prenatally usually around 24,

16

25 weeks gestation and close that defect, we are able to

17

preserve that neurologic function so that those babies are

18

born with function of their lower extremities.

19

higher proportion of them avoid the major complications of

20

spina bifida that children who were treated after delivery

21

experience.

22

So spina bifida is easily diagnosed prenatally,

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

And a

So you’re kind of a

23

miracle worker there, which that’s amazing what you do.

24

if a mom comes to you and has, in the example that you

25

gave, you know, a child who presents with spina bifida and

So
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you can perform surgery, how do you prepare that mom and

2

the baby for that particular surgery?

3

counsel them on?

4

type of a conversation would you have with me?

5

What would you

If I ’m the mom sitting here today, what

DR. EMERY:

Well, first let me say I ’m not a

6

miracle worker.

7

is what we are capable of doing these days because of the

8

information and the knowledge that we have, so it’s nothing

9

more than that.

This is science.

This is medicine.

This

This is all capable and doable.

10

The prenatal diagnosis of spina bifida is -

11

spina bifida is a really serious condition, so without

12

surgery these kids are born with varying degrees of

13

function of their lower extremities plus bowel and bladder

14

function plus sexual function later on in life.

15

they are of normal intelligence, so as they get older and

16

get bigger, their limbs, their lower extremities are less

17

able to support their weight, and so they sort of graduate

18

from, you know, a cane to a walker to finally a wheelchair.

19

And then they’re in wheelchairs for the rest of their

20

lives.

21

system because of complications they experience.

22

very difficult diagnosis.

23

Usually

And they are very high utilization of the medical
So it’s a

It’s a very difficult life.

So in counseling these patients we talk to them

24

about all the options.

25

utero repair spina bifida, it only benefits about 50

And I should say that regarding in
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percent of the fetuses.

2

that it cuts the risk for shunt placement, the shunt that

3

drains the excess cerebral spinal fluid from about 80

4

percent to 40 percent, which is a major victory because the

5

shunt morbidity is the major complication moving forward in

6

life.

7

Now, the benefit is significant in

And they have, you know, significantly better

8

neurologic function of the lower extremities but only about

9

50 percent of them do.

So another 50 percent of these

10

patients will go through this surgery that I ’ll explain in

11

a minute for no benefit and potentially harm because it’s a

12

major surgery for the mom that affects her in that

13

pregnancy and subsequent pregnancies.

14

So the point I ’m making is that these discussions

15

are complicated, and I want to push back a little bit about

16

what someone said about patient-centered care as being sort

17

of like, you know, the cafeteria, you go and you pick what

18

you want.

19

are far more sophisticated than we give them credit for.

20

They are the ones that understand the complexities of their

21

lives, their own limitations and strengths and access to

22

resources.

23

all available options, the risks and benefits of each of

24

these, they make a decision that is right for them.

25

once w e ’ve reached that point, then we move forward with

It’s far more complicated than that.

Patients

And so through discussion with me discussing

And
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that plan because that's what the patient desires after

2

thorough consideration.

3
4

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:
Representative.

Thank you,

And, Doctor, thank you.

5

Representative Schemel.

6

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

Thank you, doctor.

You

7

were making reference to some of the different things or

8

conditions that you treat.

9

syndrome to be, in your language, a life-limiting

10

Would you consider Down

condition?

11

DR. EMERY:

12

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

No.
Okay.

And then,

13

secondly, my second to last question, I find it, you know,

14

fascinating the work that you do on, you know, this very,

15

you know, obviously infant human life still in utero in the

16

mother's womb.

17

a physician, do you find it to be scientifically

18

inconsistent that the work that you do on this life is to

19

sustain this life but at the same time legally that same

20

child could also be terminated?

21

As you do this surgery, as a scientist, as

DR. EMERY:

No, because there were choices that

22

happened before we are in the OR.

23

this is a desired pregnancy, point A.

24

23 weeks and six days, which is the legal limit for

25

termination in the State of Pennsylvania, okay?

If we are in the OR,
Point B, it's beyond

So we're
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not talking about a fetus that we would abort on another

2

day.

3

counseling, and they've made the decision to proceed with

4

prenatal surgery, and that's what we're proceeding with.

So these patients have gone through extensive

5

But there are lots of patients who make other

6

decisions.

7

surgery and to accept the postnatal surgery because -- or

8

there's an exclusion criteria.

9

obese.

Some people choose to not have the prenatal

They're too heavy, they're

That's an exclusion criteria.

Or they've had

10

several -- or they have twins or they have, you know,

11

multiple scars in their uterus from prior cesarean section,

12

lots and lots of exclusion criteria, in which case they are

13

not candidates for prenatal closure, so they continue on

14

for postnatal repair or they could choose to terminate the

15

pregnancy.

16

decision, then we support that decision just like we would

17

support the decision for prenatal closure.

18

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

19

DR. EMERY:

And if that's their choice and it's an informed

Thank you.

And I would say that within this

20

arena of this intensive counseling and decision-making I

21

just don't see a role for legislation.

22

personal and deeply complicated problems that sophisticated

23

doctors are having with sophisticated patients, and we

24

don't need -- there are already enough limitations and

25

constrictions.

It's really deeply

We don't need additional constrictions from
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legislation.

2
3

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Representative

Frankel.

4

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Thank you, Madam

5

Chair, and thank you, Dr. Emery.

I very much appreciate

6

you taking the time out to be with us today.

7

And I just want to expand a little bit on where

8

you were just talking about in terms of the difficulty of

9

the decision.

As you noted, if somebody gets to you, it’s

10

a wanted pregnancy and they're looking for a way to solve a

11

critical problem, potentially catastrophic problem for

12

their child.

13

So let me ask you if it’s possible for you to

14

tell us a little bit about the counseling process and what

15

considerations folks go through, what do they take into

16

consideration when they come to you and particularly when

17

you may not be able to address the medical condition in

18

vitro?

19

that?

I mean, so can you maybe shed a little light on

20

DR. EMERY:

21

question.

22

on the record.

23

I ’m not sure I understand the

I ’m going to ask you to rephrase it since w e ’re

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

So, you know, when

24

you’re counseling somebody who comes to you and the

25

decisions that they have, so maybe they’re not a good
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prospect for in vitro surgery -

2

DR. EMERY:

3

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Okay.
—

in terms of

4

carrying on with the pregnancy, what are the considerations

5

that people take in as they come to a conclusion as to what

6

direction they’re going to go in that counseling

7

discussion?

8

there, you know, the house that they live in, the future

9

that they have as family, other children, so forth?

10

I mean, are there financial issues?

DR. EMERY:

Oh, I get it.

Are

Yes, absolutely.

You

11

know, life is complicated, and oftentimes these patients

12

lives are complicated.

13

parent.

14

disability.

15

they don’t have reliable transportation or they don’t have

16

money to get to Pittsburgh and, you know, pay for

17

transportation or parking or meals or whatever.

18

it’s a major question for them.

19

care for a baby with spina bifida?

20

considerations that each of these patients have.

21

You know, they might be a single

They might have three kids at home, one with a
They might live an hour and a half away and

You know,

Well, how am I going to
So there are multiple

And every patient is different, and that’s why

22

you can’t legislate this.

23

decide what is best for them because they’re the only

24

people that know what is best for them.

25

legislated.

You have to let the patients

It should not be

These are complex decisions in people’s
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complex lives.

2
3

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:
Emery.

4
5

Thank you, Dr.

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:
Frankel.

Thank you, Chairman

Thank you, Doctor.

6

Representative Borowicz, did you have a question?

7

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

Doctor, thanks for

8

being here.

9

again, I'll speak for those who can't speak for themselves,

I'll have to disagree with you, and once

10

you know, standing for life, that all life should be

11

desired and protected at all times in the womb and outside

12

of the womb.

13
14

So my question for you is this.
used on babies when you perform surgery?

15

DR. EMERY:

16

right?

17

for improving life.

18
19
20

Is anesthesia

I like life.

Well, first off, I agree with you,
I'm for life.

I devoted my career

So let's put that on the table, okay?

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

Yes, and I

appreciate -
DR. EMERY:

Regarding anesthesia for fetal

21

surgery, absolutely, yes.

22

typically perform the open repair.

23

anesthetized because of the medication that we are giving

24

the mother, so, I mean, that's part of the plan is we put

25

the mother under deep anesthesia, so deep that it actually

At 25 to 26 weeks gestation, we
The fetuses are
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paralyzes the uterus, and that’s one of the ways this

2

surgery works because what w e ’re about to do is make an

3

incision in the uterus and deliver a portion of the baby

4

where the defect is, but the uterus has to be quiet.

5

can’t contract because when the uterus is quiet, the

6

placenta remains attached to the wall of the uterus and

7

does its thing.

8

baby.

9

placental circulation.

It

It provides oxygen and nutrients to the

If the uterus starts to contract, then we lose that
So deep anesthesia is critical for

10

the surgery, and it’s also one of the major risk factors

11

for the mom.

12

Now, think about this.

You know, there’s -- you

13

have to understand that maternal-fetal medicine is a

14

balance of risks and benefits, and it’s complicated because

15

risks and benefits are both maternal and fetal, so it’s a

16

very complicated equation.

17

the mom -- I ’m sorry, for the fetus, a 50 percent chance

18

that we will improve upon the natural history, but w e ’re

19

going to expose this mom to significant risk in this

20

pregnancy and subsequent pregnancies, so w e ’ll get back to

21

that.

22

W e ’re trying for benefit for

So deep anesthesia for the mom, fortunately,

23

those anesthetic medications cross the placenta and

24

anesthetize and paralyze the fetus.

25

provide a little extra by an intramuscular injection of

Just in case, we
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paralytic and pain medication to make sure they’re

2

comfortable during the surgery.

3
4

So if that answers your questions about pain
management in the fetus -

5

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

6

DR. EMERY:

Yes —

And then the other point to sort of

7

develop, maternal risk to this equation, which is for her

8

an anesthetic complication, hemorrhage is a big

9

complication.

She has to deliver by cesarean section in

10

this pregnancy and in all subsequent pregnancies because

11

the type of incision we make in the uterus is prone to

12

rupture in that pregnancy and in subsequent pregnancies.

13

There are also risks for other complications related to the

14

uterine incision, so it’s a big commitment.

15

risk on the m o m ’s side to take on this surgery.

16
17
18

REPRESENTATIVE BOROWICZ:

It’s a big

Were you saying to make

the mom feel comfortable or the baby?
DR. EMERY:

The baby.

The mother is under deep

19

general anesthesia, and the baby is under general

20

anesthesia as well because it passes to the fetus through

21

the mother.

22

bit lower so we give it a booster intramuscular injection.

23
24
25

The fetal concentrations are lower, a little

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you,

Representative.
MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Doctor, thank you so
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much.

2

I would say they’re more recent but I don’t know how long

3

you’ve been performing these surgeries, and I think it’s

4

amazing that we have physicians who can do these surgeries.

I myself have watched and seen articles of these -

5

And you did mention the optimal gestational age

6

for you to perform these surgeries, but could you repeat

7

it?

8

there an optimal gestational age to perform these surgeries

9

of our unborn?

I know you did mention -- could you tell us again, is

10
11

DR. EMERY:

It’s disease-specific and diagnosis-

specific .

12

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

13

DR. EMERY:

14

Specifically for spina bifida, 24 to

25 weeks is sort of the sweet spot -

15

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

16

DR. EMERY:

17

Okay.

Okay.

-- for best outcomes, for mom and

baby.

18

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

19

DR. EMERY:

Are there —

Other surgeries we perform as early

20

as 16 weeks gestation.

21

weeks gestation.

22

and the intended outcome of the intervention.

23

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Others w e ’ll perform as late as 35

It just depends on the path of physiology

24

you can relax a little bit.

25

any legislation as of now.

And, Doctor, I think

I don’t think w e ’re looking at
That wasn’t the intent, I don’t
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think, of any questions.

2

would agree that surgeries that can be performed to correct

3

anything in an unborn child, and certainly anybody I think

4

would know that there are risks to that procedure.

5

I think most of us sitting here

I don’t see any other questions for you, Doctor.

6

I truly appreciate you weighing in and bringing this

7

information to us.

8

screen, but I certainly appreciate you taking the time to

9

be with us today.

And we weren’t able to see you on the

And I think it’s -

10

DR. EMERY:

11

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Okay.
And I think it’s

12

certainly a procedure that those of us who are interested

13

in this subject and usually makes national news when

14

something new as far as a procedure is being performed, so

15

I thank you for what you do.

16

DR. EMERY:

Well, thank you.

And let me just say

17

I not worried about legislation about whether we perform

18

fetal surgery.

19

extreme.

20

abortion for pregnant women.

21

That would be counterproductive in the

I ’m talking about legislation to limit access to

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

22

Well, thank you for clarifying that.

23

so -

24

DR. EMERY:

25

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Okay.

All right.

I appreciate that,

Okay.
All right.

Thank you,
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sir, for being with us today.

2

DR. EMERY:

3

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you.
Our last testifier,

4

w ho’s been here with us today in person, Dr. Castelli, I

5

truly appreciate your patience, and I truly appreciate you

6

being here for the entire hearing.

7

microphone, Doctor.

8

there’s a little green light, that should be working.

9

you may proceed if you want to tell us a little bit about

And you may use either

And if you press the button and
And

10

your background, and you have the advantage of having to

11

listen to everyone today, so w e ’ll just wait for your

12

presentation.

13

We thank you, and you may proceed.

DR. CASTELLI:

Thank you.

Madam Chair Kathy

14

Rapp, Chairman Dan Frankel, and Members of the Committee,

15

thanks for the opportunity to present testimony concerning

16

fetal development and public policy.

17

address the topic of fetal development from the perspective

18

of a board-certified obstetrician/gynecologist of course

19

whose primary concern is the safety and well-being of all

20

my patients and all patients.

21

my personal experience and opinions.

22
23

I ’ve been invited to

My comments are limited to

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Excuse me, Doctor.

Could you bring your microphone just a little closer?

24

DR. CASTELLI:

25

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you.
Thank you.
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1
2

DR. CASTELLI:

The opinions in regard to my

specialty.

3

I practice obstetrics and gynecology in King of

4

Prussia, Pennsylvania, and have 33 years in practice with

5

the treatment of low- and high-risk pregnancies in general

6

gynecology in the hospital in which I was delivered, which

7

is Bryn Mawr Hospital.

8

testify to the issues of fetal pain, viability at

9

increasingly earlier gestational ages, and best practices

10
11

And specifically,

I ’d like to

in the case of obstetric emergencies.
First, I ’d like to tell you that I am pleased

12

that I made the trip up here to hear the testimony of all

13

the other doctors, all four of them.

14

experience.

15

appreciate their opinions, and I do appreciate the

16

information they gave us.

17

testimony before you, but with your privilege,

18

have the license of sort of bouncing on it up and down like

19

a trampoline instead of just reading from it.

20

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

It was an educational

Their testimony was honest and true, and I

I ’m hoping that you have my

21

have it, so you’re welcome to -

22

DR. CASTELLI:

I ’d like to

I don’t believe we

With respect to pain, it’s a very

23

complex subject.

24

has been given to us from our nervous system that tells us

25

that something’s wrong.

Pain is the provision that we have that

It’s a protective mechanism that
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signals that there's tissue that's being damaged.

2

Everybody knows what it's like to sit on a tack, put their

3

hand in the fire, withdraw it.

4

that we can help ourselves and save ourselves from

5

difficult situations.

6

It's been given to us so

But it's not just a mere component of nervous

7

connections that exist between some parts of your body and

8

your cortex through the spinal column, through the

9

thalamus, and through the cerebral cortex.

There's a lot

10

of emotional aspects to pain.

11

many, many different ways.

12

sometimes sail through it without an epidural and some

13

can't tolerate one contraction.

14

amputations, traumatic amputations in the heat of battle

15

don't even feel their arm being blown off.

16

emotional component.

17

studies in order to determine whether a human fetus feels

18

pain.

19

that fetuses do.

20

and something that you really can't take a look at

21

comparative anatomy with an animal and apply it to a human

22

being.

23

People respond to pain in

Women that I've seen in labor

Soldiers that have had

So there's an

I'm not so sure you can use animal

I'm not sure that animals have the same emotions
So it's a very, very difficult subject

So that being said, it's difficult, but you can

24

look at pain in two different segments.

25

physiologic pain, which is the noxious stimuli that's

You have the
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applied to tissue that causes you to feel this unpleasant

2

sensation, and then you have the emotional response to that

3

pain, which comes over a period of history of you having

4

experienced pain or been in painful situations.

5

very, very difficult.

So it’s

6

But we do know one thing, and we do know that

7

babies develop and they develop on a course toward when

8

they leave fetal life and become newborns, and then

9

newborns turn into toddlers and toddlers turns into

10

teenagers and then you have three 21-year-olds like me who

11

really experience this pain.

12

But that being said -- and not to inject levity

13

into the conversation -- the point is that these studies

14

that tell you that the cortex has to be connected to

15

everything else in order for something to feel pain is old

16

information.

17

25 weeks, that the cortical subplate actually can send

18

signals to the cortex so that you can feel pain before 25

19

weeks.

20

I mean, everybody knows now that it precedes

Now, do we know exactly when that’s going to

21

happen?

22

feeling pain as it was, which is old information, is based

23

on opinion.

24

and looking at how animals developed and looking at how

25

they respond to stimuli.

No.

So the information we have on 25-weekers not

It’s based on comparative anatomy with animals

But as scientists, that’s not how
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we make decisions.

2

evidence, not conjecture.

3

seen drugs being tested and tested and tested, equipment

4

being tested and tested.

5

process of proving that something is either harmful or is

6

beneficial.

7

the coronavirus vaccine, albeit it was accelerated, but it

8

was tested and tested and tested so we knew that it was

9

going to be safe when it was going to be delivered to the

10
11

We make decisions based on empiric
I mean, we all know that.

We've

It hypothetically goes through a

We all experienced this in the development of

public.
So that being said, we can't test a baby.

12

There's no way you can test a fetus.

13

You go along with the principle of primum non nocere which

14

is, above all, do no harm, a nonmaleficence that we share

15

as physicians, that we take every day when we're talking

16

the patients that if we're going to do something, we don't

17

want to do something that's going to hurt them.

18

keep it safe, and we want to deliver an appropriate

19

treatment for the disease or the problem that they have.

20

I've delivered many babies between 22 and a -

So what do you do?

We want to

21

well, earlier than that, but I've delivered many babies

22

between 22 and 25 weeks that have gone into the neonatal

23

intensive care unit.

24

neonatal intensive care practitioner.

25

these babies that are 23 weeks and two days or 23 weeks and

I met my wife because she's a
And I go and visit
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three days as they're starting IVs and they're starting

2

scalp lines on them and as they're putting UV lines and as

3

they're caring for them.

4

They respond in a way that anybody here in this room would

5

respond to pain, by withdrawing, by grimacing, and

6

sometimes by crying when they're old enough to do that or

7

they don't have an endotracheal tube in.

8

that we see all day long.

9

These babies feel real pain.

These are things

We have objective evidence of extrauterine 23-

10

weekers that are feeling pain.

11

weeker inside the uterus is any different than the 23-

12

weeker that's outside of the uterus is ludicrous.

13

And to assume that a 23-

But there are times when we as physicians and we

14

as parents even administer pain that's beneficial.

15

just indulge me for a second because I want to create a

16

situation that I searched through my memory banks to give

17

you an analogy.

18

resident at the Hahnemann University Hospital, a little

19

baby by the name of Jessica McClure fell down a well that

20

was only eight inches wide, and she was 18 months old.

21

I don't know if you remember, but they called her "Baby

22

Jessica.”

23

and they hurt her down there.

24

so long she started singing songs herself.

25

all the way down next to the well, broke into the well, and

Now,

On October 14th, 1987, when I was a senior

And

She was 22 feet down in a small eight-inch well,
In fact, she was down there
They dug a hole
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they called an obstetrician because they couldn’t get her

2

out.

3

of her, but he couldn’t.

4

And the obstetrician wanted to go down and take care
They wouldn’t let her.

So they sent the emergency medical guy down, and

5

they said, listen, take all this lubrication down, and I

6

want you to lube her up as much as possible and I want you

7

to pull as hard as you possibly can.

8

screams, don’t stop pulling even if something comes off.

9

And that’s what they did and they saved her.

And if she cries and

The point

10

being is there are things that we do in medicine and in

11

this situation that are painful, but there’s a benefit on

12

the other side.

13

They saved her life.

These small babies that are being aborted have

14

nothing to look forward to.

15

Their last moments of life are extremely painful.

16

heard how it’s done.

17

sharp instruments where they dilate the cervix, go in,

18

start pulling off pieces of the baby until they think they

19

have the whole thing.

20

get the placenta, and then they put all the parts together

21

that they made sure that everything came out.

22

what’s happening.

23

do I have objective evidence of that?

24

a 23-weeker outside the uterus feels pain, then a 23-weeker

25

inside the uterus is going to feel pain.

There is no upside to them.
You

An extraction abortion is done with

Then they put the suction after they

And that’s

And these babies experience pain.

Now,

I can assume that if
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So what should we do?

We should above all do no

2

harm.

3

this is a terrible, terrible thing w e ’re doing.

4

We should know that these babies feel pain.

And

So let me direct my attention to viability and

5

the early gestational ages of viability.

6

time the medical community is learning more about fetal

7

pain, we as physicians are having access to moving

8

viability ages.

9

that you were happy to send a 26- or 27-weeker to the

So at the same

It used to be when I was in my residency

10

neonatal intensive care unit because that was probably the

11

age where the baby was going to survive and it wasn’t going

12

to have a lot of physical or mental disabilities.

13

getting lower and lower and lower.

14

Hospital the age where they offer neonatal support is 23

15

weeks and zero days.

16

family because it’s recommended at 25 and it’s offered at

17

23.

It’s

In fact, at Bryn Mawr

Now, that’s where they’ll go to the

18

But how do you hear about the stories about 21-

19

weekers and 22-weekers that are surviving in the neonatal

20

intensive care unit?

21

gestations.

22

ultrasound that comes out, say, at seven weeks, the

23

standard deviation of error of an ultrasound at any

24

gestational age is 8 percent so that if you have an

25

ultrasound that’s done at seven weeks, seven times seven is

Well, I think it comes down to dating

If you date a gestation based on an early
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49, 8 percent of 49 is probably four, that means that the

2

standard deviation of error on calculating that gestational

3

age if the mom did not know her last menstrual period is

4

somewhere four days greater or four days less than seven

5

weeks.

6

ultrasound and that’s the only ultrasound you have to date

7

that pregnancy because the mom has avoided prenatal care,

8

has not gone to anybody and she says I don’t know when my

9

period is, let me do an ultrasound and figure it out, if

10

you look at the 8 percent rule for a 20-weeker, then you

11

could have a baby somewhere between 19 weeks and six days

12

and 21 weeks and four days.

13

weeker, it could be as old as 23 weeks and four days.

14

that’s how possibly a 24-weeker ends up in the neonatal

15

intensive care unit doing well.

16

But if you wait to 20 weeks and you do an

But if you look at a 22And

But absent that, you know, w e ’re getting to a

17

point in medicine where w e ’re developing artificial

18

placentae, plural placenta, placentas where we can actually

19

hook babies up that are born significantly premature in

20

order to sustain their life until they get to the point

21

that they can actually maintain life in the neonatal

22

intensive care unit in the traditional ways.

23

is changing.

24

just by what we know science to be or what really is

25

existing the way that it should be, the way that babies can

So viability

If w e ’re crafting law, are we crafting law
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be in the future?

2

you pick a gestational age and say you can’t do an

3

abortion, you know, after 24 weeks, at 23 weeks that baby

4

lives in the neonatal intensive care unit.

5

And this is what w e ’re doing.

So when

And then I just want to address my attention to

6

one other thing, and that is that Pennsylvania law permits

7

abortions up to 24 weeks gestation and even allows

8

abortions later in pregnancy where necessary to protect the

9

mother’s life or protect against a significantly reversible

10

impairment of the mother’s basic bodily function.

11

practicing obstetrician/gynecologist,

12

patients to my own personal views with respect to abortion.

13

I have had women who have had significant morbidities

14

coming into the pregnancy or approaching certain

15

gestational ages where I know that terminating the

16

pregnancy is the only way that’s going to save her.

17

that have had significant, significant preeclampsia where

18

their blood pressure is uncontrolled, they’re 21, 22 weeks

19

pregnant, they’ve already seized, and you know if you don’t

20

have the time to induce them, right, doing a hysterotomy

21

and delivering the baby through a large incision that is

22

not going to survive is not the appropriate thing to do,

23

and the only thing to do is offer the opportunity to go

24

down and do under anesthesia where the baby is protected an

25

extraction abortion to save her life.

As a

I don’t sacrifice my

People

I ’ve had patients
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like this, and those are recommendations that I offer her.

2

So I ’m not oblivious to the need for certain things.

3

But as we approach ages of viability and we have

4

women with medical emergencies or I should say obstetric

5

emergencies where those babies can survive beyond 23 weeks,

6

beyond 22 1/2 weeks and we have the privilege of being able

7

to induce their labors and allow them to deliver vaginally

8

or take them to a cesarean section and deliver those babies

9

by cesarean section so that baby can be presented to the

10

neonatal intensive care unit to live is options that I ’ve

11

used many, many times.

12

Now, look, as an obstetrician/gynecologist, we

13

all terminate pregnancies, all of us, and we do it all day

14

long.

15

that’s a week and a half overdue, you bring them in, you

16

start some medicine, you deliver their baby.

17

thing I said to my patients after they deliver is your

18

pregnancy is over.

19

terminated your pregnancy.

20

all do this.

21

at 23, 24, 25 weeks in a way that saves the baby, that

22

saves the mother.

23

It’s called an induction of labor.

You have someone

You’re no longer pregnant.

So the first

We

Now you have your baby.

So we

There are times when we terminate pregnancies

And if I could just comment on one thing.

It’s

24

been my personal experience that I ’ve never had anybody,

25

not one patient regret either delivering a very, very

183
1

premature baby that went to the neonatal intensive care

2

unit and has problems or a baby that wanted to be induced

3

at 20 weeks obviously before the age of viability and

4

delivered her baby and held that baby -- I have never had

5

one complaint.

6

never one had a person complain.

7

her baby, she never regrets.

8

the people who didn’t do that, the people who terminated

9

their pregnancies.

And in an argument to what Dr. Beck said,
She has closure, she held

The only regrets I see are

Now, not all of them regret, but if you

10

look at the ones that regret who terminated versus the ones

11

who regret who didn’t terminate the pregnancy,

12

had one regret.

13

I ’ve never

So that being said, let me make sure I didn’t

14

miss anything.

15

to testify today.

16

knowledge and perspective in evaluating how to best serve

17

pregnant women and unborn children in the Commonwealth.

18

Thank you.

19

I thank the Committee for the opportunity
I call upon lawmakers to consider this

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Doctor, and

20

thank you for your testimony.

21

testimony, so I was able to follow along.

22

And I did find your written

Just a quick question since a lot of your

23

testimony was on fetal pain, how early do you think that -

24

or how early would you recommend giving fetal anesthesia

25

for fetal pain?
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DR. CASTELLI:

You know, are you talking about in

2

the face of an abortion or are you talking about in the

3

face of, you know, an apply fetal surgery like we had just

4

heard testimony over?

5
6

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Well, I guess in

general, if any procedure -
DR. CASTELLI:

7

You know, if I was to apply, you

8

know, above all do no harm, it would seem reasonable that

9

since we don’t know when feti feel pain, since we have no

10

objective evidence, I mean, even Representative Frankel

11

said w e ’re looking for scientific -- I even wrote it down.

12

W e ’re looking for scientific and objective evidence.

13

w e ’re looking for scientific and objective evidence, you’re

14

not going to find it.

15

fetus whether it feels pain.

16

weekers in the neonatal intensive care unit felt pain when

17

we thought that their neural collections were not complete,

18

so it would seem reasonable to me that you should offer it

19

to everybody.

20
21

You can’t find it.

You can’t ask a

We do know that 22-, 23-

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you.

Thank you,

Doctor.

22

Do we have questions from the Members?

23

Representative Klunk.

24

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

25

If

Thank you, Madam Chair,

and thank you, Doctor, for joining us today.
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So I have the privilege of being a new mom for

2

the second time.

3

I have been, you know, for the past year almost under the

4

care of an OB/GYN and went through all of the scans, the

5

tests, and many, many more things than I ever could have

6

imagined, you know, to deliver my daughter Claire.

I have a now three-month-old at home, so

And so for those of us, those on the Committee

7
8

who might not have gone through a pregnancy personally or

9

been, you know, the husband of a wife who has or known a

10

family member or friend, I have some questions around, you

11

know, the testing that takes place and what a woman

12

experiences kind of from start to finish as a patient when

13

it goes to, you know, some of those fetal anomalies, some

14

of those scans and blood tests.

15

know, what the different tests are, you know, blood tests

16

versus scans when it comes to fetal anomalies throughout

17

pregnancy?

18

DR. CASTELLI:

So can you talk about, you

So absent, you know, specific

19

situations where we know to test for certain anomalies like

20

people of Ashkenazi Jewish background, if you’re talking

21

about the average person that comes into your office

22

without any previous family history, we have an obstetric

23

profile that we get on them, which is blood type, blood

24

count, any unusual antibodies, hepatitis screening, HIV,

25

syphilis, but we also offer what’s called genetic testing,
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which is also known as cell-free DNA or noninvasive

2

prenatal testing or NIPT testing, and that's traditionally

3

done at 12 weeks.

4

So at 12 weeks the patients are offered testing

5

that's optional.

6

company.

7

scan for a marker for aneuploidies, which is another word

8

for abnormal chromosome counts, and that's called a nuchal

9

translucency where they have an ultrasound where they scan

10

the back of the baby's neck and they measure and see if it

11

is, you know, within normal.

It's usually paid for by their insurance

And it involves an ultrasound where they do a

12

And then shortly after that they come in for a

13

blood test, which is called the NIPT test, which is sent

14

off which is, you know, very, very accurate.

15

false negative rate is somewhere around, you know, 3

16

percent.

17

I think the

And that's done at 12 weeks.
Subsequent to that, there's usually no testing

18

routinely done until 20 weeks when they get what's called a

19

fetal anatomy scan, and after the fetal anatomy scan, they

20

usually come in for their glucola, which is the screening

21

for diabetes in pregnancy.

22

as long as their glucola is normal, their last test in the

23

office is something called a group B strep culture so that

24

we can identify those people that are at risk for getting a

25

group B strep infection in labor.

And then following the glucola,

And then really there's
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no testing, you know, until they deliver in the average,

2

uncomplicated pregnancy.

3

I personally add a fetal anatomy scan in the

4

beginning of the pregnancy because I want to make sure we

5

have the right, you know, due date, so regardless of

6

whether they're measuring appropriate -- and usually, you

7

know, nowadays people are coming in before they missed

8

their period with a positive pregnancy test, so you can't

9

really tell anything at the first visit.

So I usually send

10

them for an ultrasound that is somewhere around six to

11

seven weeks when we know we're going to see the heartbeat.

12

We can usually see the heartbeat earlier than six weeks,

13

you know, at our perinatal testing centers with a

14

transvaginal scan, but I usually get an anatomy scan

15

shortly after their first visit.

16

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

And so say a fetal anomaly

17

presents itself, you know, some of those are structural,

18

some are functional.

19

the differences in some of those anomalies that might exist

20

that you've seen in patients?

21

Can you explain, you know, some of

DR. CASTELLI:

So, you know, absent an

22

aneuploidy, which is an abnormal chromosome count, most of

23

the anomalies that we will see will be structural anomalies

24

that will be picked up on either the 12 week scan or be

25

picked up on the fetal anatomy scan, the most common ones
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being what we spoke about today, which is neural tube

2

defects like open spina bifida or closed spina bifida.

3

see cleft lip, cleft palate.

4

is a defect in the abdominal wall.

5

which is when the bowel develops outside the baby.

6

then you can see all kinds of structural anomalies with

7

their limbs and things like that.

8

up those problems with blood testing.

9

You see omphaloceles, which
You see gastroschisis,
And

Not usually do we pick

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

So just some follow-ups

10

with that.

11

screening tools that you might use?

12

about some, but, you know, what is your host of options

13

that are available to you?

14
15

Are there, you know, noninvasive prenatal

DR. CASTELLI:
told you are noninvasive.

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

17

DR. CASTELLI:

19

I know that you talked

Well, all the tests that I just

16

18

You

Are all not invasive?

Yes, they're all blood tests and

ultrasounds, so, yes.
REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

20

blood test or an ultrasound or -

21

DR. CASTELLI:

22

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

23

DR. CASTELLI:

So it's just a simple

Right.
—

you know —

Now, if we were to find an anomaly

24

and suspect that there was some type of aneuploidy, you

25

know, that escaped the NIPT test -- you have to understand
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that the NIPT test was designed to pick up, you know, three

2

specifically genetic abnormalities, which is trisomy 21,

3

which is Down syndrome, trisomy 18, and trisomy 13.

4

you wonder, well, why just those three?

5

three because those are the genetic anomalies that can make

6

it to term.

7

know, are eliminated, you know, within the first or early

8

second trimester because they’re lethal.

9

the ones that actually we will know that those babies have

10
11

And

Well, it’s those

So usually the other genetic anomalies, you

So we test for

them to term.
REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

And so, you know, when it

12

comes to those types of genetic anomalies, you know, Down

13

syndrome, for example, and some of those other chromosomal

14

abnormalities, you know, I note that, you know, CVS testing

15

is one of those options that’s available.

16

little bit about that and what that entails?

17

DR. CASTELLI:

Can you talk a

Yes, it’s a good question because

18

CVS testing has sort of been replaced by the noninvasive

19

prenatal testing.

20

they were unusual.

21

and bleeding, you know, that would worry the mom and dad

22

from the chorionic villus sampling, which is, you know,

23

what a CVS is.

24

replaced that, so now if there’s a problem after 12 weeks

25

if we suspect something with the NIPT testing, we could

And there were risks with CVS, although
You know, there were pregnancy losses

And the cell-free DNA has pretty much
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either repeat the NIPT testing, you could do an

2

amniocentesis, or you can do a cordocentesis where you

3

actually take some blood out of the umbilical cord and

4

sample it directly.

5
6
7

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

And when would you

typically do an amniocentesis?
DR. CASTELLI:

Well, I wouldn’t do the

8

amniocentesis.

9

But it would probably be, you know, after we get an

I would send them to the perinatologist.

10

abnormal result on the cell-free DNA if they thought that

11

they couldn’t by ultrasound determine what the problem was.

12

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

So there are a number of

13

options available before you would get to any truly

14

invasive type of a procedure for the patient.

15

blew my mind again as a new mom -- I have a daughter who’s

16

three, a three-month-old -- you know, when you were talking

17

about these genetic testings, everything has moved up even

18

from my three-year-old, that pregnancy to now, how much

19

sooner we can test for these things.

20

of experience in this realm and in this practice area.

21

can only imagine what you’ve seen over, you know, 33 years

22

and how far we have come.

23

And what

And you have 33 years
I

And one of the things that blew my mind was, you

24

know, gender.

You can now, it’s my understanding with that

25

initial test, find out whether it’s a boy or a girl.

Is
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that -

2

DR. CASTELLI:

3

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

4

DR. CASTELLI:

5

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

6

DR. CASTELLI:

7

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

8

DR. CASTELLI:

9

REPRESENTATIVE KLUNK:

Yes, you can -
That’s correct.

Yes.
At how many weeks?

That would be at 12 weeks.
At 12 weeks?

Yes.
So it’s amazing where

10

science has come, but there are so many things that we know

11

at that, you know, 12-week mark and don’t need invasive

12

testing, and I just wanted to make sure that all the

13

Members knew that and what a typical mom goes through.

14

thank you, Doctor, for letting us go through that journey.

15

DR. CASTELLI:

Thank you.

So

And I think that’s my

16

point because, you know, when I say that the age of

17

viability -- I mean, I define viability is at that age of

18

gestational that the baby will survive outside the mom with

19

or without any kind of extra care.

20

is changing.

21

like I said with the artificial placentae.

22

about it, Pap smears are indicated every five years now.

23

We were doing them every year, now it’s every five years.

24

We know who gets cervical cancer and we know who doesn’t,

25

so, you know, the goal line is changing and continues to

That age of viability

I mean, it’s getting less and less and less
I mean, think
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change.

2
3

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Doctor.

Thank you, Representative.

4

Representative Benham.

5

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Thank you, Chairwoman,

6

and thank you, Doctor, for joining us here today.

7

you say above all do no harm, but there are in fact four

8

standards of medical ethics, correct, and I heard you hint

9

at two of them, nonmaleficence, do no harm, and benefit or

10

beneficence.

11

two are?

Would you mind listing for us what the other

12

DR. CASTELLI:

13

I don’t understand the question.

14

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

15
16
17
18

I heard

The other two of what?

I ’m sorry,

The standards of medical

ethics.
DR. CASTELLI:

I don’t know what they are.

Educate me.
REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Autonomy and justice is

19

what they are, autonomy and justice.

20

noted, that there are times when the harms and the benefits

21

to the mother and to the fetus come in direct conflict with

22

each other, we must necessarily turn to the other standard.

23

So I want to talk about autonomy for a little bit

24

because clearly among my colleagues there’s disagreement as

25

to when a fetus feels pain or as to even when life begins,

And given, as you
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so I would like for us to set those aside for a moment and

2

talk about bodily autonomy.

3

DR. CASTELLI:

4

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

5

DR. CASTELLI:

6

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Could you speak up, please?
Yes.

Thank you.
So say that a parent has

7

a child, well, let’s say, a 16-year-old child for whom they

8

are a match with regard to a kidney replacement.

9

child will die without having that kidney transplant.

And that

10

that parent be ethically forced to give that child a

11

kidney?

12

DR. CASTELLI:

13

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

I don’t know.

Can

You tell me.

The answer is no.

That

14

parent cannot be forced to give that child a kidney.

15

yet you are arguing that a pregnant person ought to be

16

forced to give up their entire body, all of their organs to

17

a child, to a fetus.
DR. CASTELLI:

18

I don’t think I made that

19

statement.

20

person should give up their autonomy to end their

21

pregnancy.

22

where abortions are legal, and my patients can do that

23

whenever they want.

24
25

No, I don’t think I made that statement that a

I mean, we live in the State of Pennsylvania

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:
that?

And

And you’re okay with
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DR. CASTELLI:

Of course I ’m okay with whatever

2

they decide to do, but I ’ve never made the statement that

3

they should give up their autonomy, you know, to their

4

child.

I don’t think you heard me say that, did you?

5
6

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

So the autonomy of the

parent supersedes anything to do with the fetus?

7

DR. CASTELLI:

Well, I mean, we live in a society

8

where value is given to the fetus by the desire of the

9

mother to keep it.

That’s where we live, right?

So value

10

to the fetus and the value to the baby relies on its

11

mother’s desire.

12

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

13

DR. CASTELLI:

14

So —

I don’t think it’s right, but

that’s what we do.
REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

15

So it is important then

16

whether or not the pregnant person has a desire for the

17

pregnancy?

18
19
20

DR. CASTELLI:

It’s legal.

important or not is not the issue.
REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

Whether it’s
It’s legal.

Well, there are many

21

things which are legal or illegal, and that is irrespective

22

of their morality.

23

opinion it is ethical or moral given that those of us in

24

this room have the ability to change laws.

25

I ’m asking you, Doctor, if in your

DR. CASTELLI:

I ’m not going to comment on
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whether it meets my standard of morality because my

2

standard of morality I don’t impose on my patients.

3

their standard of morality that’s important -

4

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

5

DR. CASTELLI:

It’s

In your opinion —

-- and since the value of their

6

baby rests in their desire to keep it or not, then, you

7

know, that’s what they decide to do.

8
9
10

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

So in your opinion ought

this body to impose our moral standards onto pregnant
women?

11

DR. CASTELLI:

You make the laws, so you have to

12

decide, not me.

13

to the medicine, so you’re the lawmaker.

14
15

I just gave you my testimony with respect

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

That is true, I am the

lawmaker.

16

DR. CASTELLI:

Right.

That’s right.

So you go

17

into your heart of hearts and you determine whether it’s

18

moral or not.

And you heard the medical testimony.

19

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

20

testimony had implied morality, so I am -

21

DR. CASTELLI:

22

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

23

DR. CASTELLI:

24
25

Yes, and your medical

No, no, no.
—

asking you, Doctor —

No, I never implied morality,

never -
REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

If you have your morals
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and the patient has their morals and -

2

DR. CASTELLI:

3

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

4
5

I never used to the word -
—

so you would not

impose your -
DR. CASTELLI:

With all due respect,

6

Representative,

7

back and you can listen to my testimony.

8

use the word moral.

9

I never used the word moral.

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

You can go

Never once did I

All that aside, you said

10

you would never impose your belief or value onto what that

11

person decides to do, what their desire is.

12

asking you is in your opinion should anyone do that, a

13

medical professional or a lawmaker, impose their desire or

14

there belief upon another person with regard to what they

15

do with their body?

16

DR. CASTELLI:

So what I am

I would hope you would make

17

decisions not based on your own moral standards but based

18

on the people in the Commonwealth and sampling them,

19

determine what they want based on the testimony and the

20

presentation to lawmakers as we work through our

21

Representatives.

22

imposing your morality on somebody else but by

23

understanding that you serve the Commonwealth.

24

Commonwealth are your constituents.

25

serves the Commonwealth.

That’s how you make decisions, not by

And the

And everybody here

197
1

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

2

DR. CASTELLI:

I'm not trying —

So if you want to put your

3

morality into, I think you've made the wrong decision to be

4

a Representative.

5
6

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:
morality -

7

DR. CASTELLI:

8

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

9

you what you thought.

10
11

DR. CASTELLI:

Okay.
—

into it.

I was asking

So thank you -
I likewise am not going to impose

my morality on my patients.

12

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

13

DR. CASTELLI:

14

I don't want to put my

Wonderful.

So we all do our job the right

way.
REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

15

So in your opinion if the

16

majority of Pennsylvanians support access or increased

17

access to abortion care, then that ought to be what those

18

of us who are here as Representatives push in this esteemed

19

body?

20

DR. CASTELLI:

No, I don't think that we

21

legislate by majority.

22

government.

23

constituency.

24

sample them and you find out what your constituency wants,

25

you take your morality out of it, and you do your job.

We legislate by representative

You have a constituency.

You represent that

If you go back to your constituency and you
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REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

So in your opinion each

2

of us here should go back to our districts and find out

3

exactly what it is that the majority of each of our

4

constituencies wants and legislate in that way?

5
6

DR. CASTELLI:

Isn't that the way our government

works?

7

REPRESENTATIVE BENHAM:

I agree.

8

DR. CASTELLI:

9

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you, Doctor.

I

10

would just like to remind those of us who are citizens of

11

this Nation that we are indeed a republic with

12

Representatives in our government.

13

where simple majority rules.

14

representative form of government.

15

with a representative form of government, we as

16

Representatives have a duty to listen to our constituents,

17

and we know that our constituency differs across the State

18

because we are a very diverse State.

19

We are not a democracy

We are a republic with a
And yes, in a republic

And so just to comment on the Representative's

20

questioning,

21

Nation is a republic.

22

republican form of government with Representatives sent to

23

a body to make decisions based on what we hear from our

24

constituents.

25

type of worldview that guides us in the principles that we

I just want to make that statement that this
Our State is based on being a

And I think most Representatives have some
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stand on.

2
3

Doctor, I thank you for your testimony, and at
this time I will go to Representative Schemel.

4

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

Thank you, Doctor, for

5

your testimony.

6

role of legislators.

7

the answer.

8

ethics quickly in one question and one sort of comment

9

question, so first for the question.

10

I'm not going to ask you to opine on the
I would probably be concerned about

I will, however, touch on just the issue of

You know, we've heard some testimony from the

11

previous testifiers in relation to -- I think you said

12

there are three tests that you can do for genetic

13

abnormalities that are not life-limiting, and you consider

14

trisomy to be one of those, which I understand that is Down

15

syndrome.

16

aborted at a much higher rate.

17

counseling do you give to mothers when they do have

18

children, you know, that have a genetic abnormality like

19

Down syndrome?

20

However, we know that Down syndrome children are

DR. CASTELLI:

So, as an OB, what

Thank you for that question.

I've

21

had a number of patients whose babies have been diagnosed

22

with Down syndrome, and to this date I haven't had one

23

that's terminated her pregnancy.

24

patients will gravitate to doctors that sometimes are like-

25

minded.

But then again, you know,

So they know that I value life at all ages.
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So,

you know, when I come across anybody that

2

has, you know, a very, very difficult situation whether it

3

be a baby with an aneuploidy or somebody who just has a

4

hard time, and many times I ’ll see people in the office

5

that say I just can’t afford another baby right now, I

6

think the only thing that I can do as a caring physician

7

is, number one, get to know your patient and talk to them,

8

and then, you know, try to bring them into an understanding

9

that, you know, their baby has value.

And, you know,

10

believe it or not, it’s easier with a Down syndrome baby

11

than it is with someone who just can’t afford another

12

pregnancy.

13

But the best thing I can do is just talk to them

14

and tell them that, you know, that every human life has

15

value, that this pregnancy has value.

16

wife and I adopted three children, and now they’re all 21

17

years old.

18

our problems with infertility that, you know, I would say,

19

look, if you don’t want to have this baby, then you have it

20

and give it to me, I ’ll take it.

21

And, you know, my

And it was standard for me when we went through

But, you know, I just try to instill value.

And

22

in most circumstances, you know, it’s successful.

23

look at things a little differently.

24

w e ’re going to take really, really good care of you, that,

25

you know, I ’ll be there for you through the whole process

They

I tell them that

201
1

and, you know, praise God, most of the time it’s successful

2

and sometimes it’s not.

3

REPRESENTATIVE SCHEMEL:

So you mentioned the

4

ethical principle,

first do no harm, which I know is a

5

medical standard.

I was a philosophy major.

6

good at science.

7

principle of don’t do evil to achieve a good, a statement

8

by St. Paul, but actually by Socrates before that.

9

heard Dr. Beck, who is an abortionist herself or at least

I wasn’t as

But philosophically we have the ethical

We

10

performs abortions, which would qualify her as an

11

abortionist, explained that these decisions are often

12

difficult.

13

lot of decisions that are difficult.

14

someone like, you know, an individual that, you know,

15

perhaps is going to lose a limb and the decision to cut off

16

the limb is a difficult decision for them, but it has to be

17

done in order to preserve their life.

18

feel certainly loss because they’ve lost something of

19

theirs.

20

And I ’m sure in medicine that you deal with a
It strikes me that

And then they’ll

The decision to terminate or abort a child is a

21

loss as well, but after the procedure is concluded, there’s

22

actually nothing lost from the mother physically.

23

is it a loss of?

24

County who has left said that autonomy is one of the

25

medical principles of ethics, so it’s the loss of something

So what

And my colleague who’s from Allegheny
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else.

2

is a difficult thing.

3

that’s where we as legislators have to conclude what is a

4

person.

5

autonomy?

6

conclusions must be very different.

7

So we all recognize, which is why Dr. Beck said this
These are difficult decisions, and

Is it a loss of a person in a person with
In which case then the situation or the ethical

I ’m grateful for your testimony today.

8

grateful for the assistance you provide to women.

9

thank you very much.

10

DR. CASTELLI:

11

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

I ’m
And

Thank you.
Thank you, Doctor.

12

It’s approaching two o ’clock, and I know Representative

13

Frankel has some closing remarks, and I will have a few

14

myself.

15
16

Thank you.
DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

But first of all,

thank you, Dr. Castelli.

17

DR. CASTELLI:

18

DEMOCRATIC CHAIRMAN FRANKEL:

Thank you.
And I appreciate

19

your perspective and I appreciate the fact that, I mean,

20

you have obviously a very strong opinion about abortion,

21

but you’re not in a position of imposing that point of view

22

on anybody, and I greatly respect that.

23

But, you know, we also heard from other doctors

24

today, many of whom admitted that they do not want abortion

25

to be legal.

And they say that they privilege the fetus
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over the woman.

2

the most effective forms of contraception.

3

that these doctors are available for the patients who want

4

to go to them, but we also heard about care that is not

5

about the doctors’ perspective but about the patients

6

themselves.

7

They offer natural family planning but not
And I ’m glad

We heard each patient is different.

I ’m hopeful

8

that coming out of this hearing we don’t decide the patient

9

should do what doctors want but that doctors can provide

10

the care that patients want.

11

something I heard from you today, Dr. Castelli, so thank

12

you very much.

13

And that’s certainly

Thank you, Madam Chair.

I really appreciate the

14

opportunity to have a hearing.

15

first time in 10 years w e ’ve had this process, and I

16

appreciate you reaching out to us to include testifiers as

17

well, so thank you.

18

And, as I said, this is the

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

Thank you, Chairman,

19

and thank you, Doctor.

20

contraceptives that it is addressed in the Abortion Control

21

Act that the Abortion Control Act does not limit

22

contraceptives in this State, so a woman and a man is free

23

to use contraception in the form that they choose.

24
25

I did just want to say about

And, Doctor, I want to thank you for being here
from the very beginning of the hearing and presenting your
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testimony.

2

get in as much testimony.

3

session weeks to have hearings on session days, and so we

4

decided to do a lengthy hearing, and I think it was

5

valuable.

6

with us from the very beginning and then being able to

7

comment on the other testimony as well, very much

8

appreciate what you do.

9

It’s been a long day for us, and we wanted to
It’s very difficult during

And I certainly appreciate your time and being

And I ’m very glad that in our great country, in

10

our great State we all have the right to choose our

11

beliefs, and we have the right to stand on the principles

12

that we believe in and we have the right to share those

13

views.

14

before we consider legislation and the impact that it has

15

on others, to hear, you know, both sides of an issue, so I

16

am grateful for that.

17

responsibility to protect our life, liberty, and pursuit of

18

happiness.

19

And as legislators, we do have a responsibility

But, as legislators, we do have a

So thank you.
Thank you, Members, for being here, and we will

20

be back here in session week after next, but if you have

21

any follow-up with us, Doctor, please don’t hesitate.

22

And I thank the ladies and gentlemen who are in

23

the room with us as well and the public for being with us

24

today and my staff and Representative Frankel’s staff, the

25

Chairman’s staff.

Thank you for being here and
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participating.

2

today.

And bless everyone as you return home

3

DR. CASTELLI:

Thank you.

4

MAJORITY CHAIRWOMAN RAPP:

5

DR. CASTELLI:

Thank you.

Thank you.

6
7

(The hearing concluded at 2:04 p.m.)
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